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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HEEETIATR HK$ Million 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
hREs Shareholders’ funds 12,335 13,311 15,403 17,050 19,941
BMHEH Subordinated notes 4,684 3,698 3,979 3,762 5432
REGH Deposits from customers 97,281 113,369 117,936 129,843 142,580
BETHENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,746 3,164 5,753 6,133 6,110
Faas Total deposits 102,027 116,533 123,689 135,976 148,690
BfReE Total liabilities

(BIEEEER) (including subordinated notes) 118,102 132,012 140,674 150,162 165,372
EPEH Advances to customers

(TREE55E) (excluding trade bills) 71,900 80,867 86,174 97,978 105,230
EEER Total assets 130,454 145,470 155,839 167,227 185,328
R (L7 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,135 1,147 1,480 1,756 2,034
2ERERE Total dividend distribution 322 342 388 449 505
LTI HK$
SRERRF|(72) Basic earnings per share (Note 2) 0.94 0.90 1.15 1.35 1.49
HRERE Dividends per share 0.27 0.28 0.31 0.33 0.36
WERRINT Percentage %
et e dGR) Loan to deposit ratio (Note 3) 705 69.4 69.7 72.4 708
e Note:
1. 2010 F £ 2013 F 2 BREARBFE R AR TR 1. Basic earnings per share for 2010 to 2013 have been restated to take

2014 FE2FFTH 2 ERBOFZE T LAES - into account the rights issue of the Company completed in the second
quarter of 2014.

2. BRHFRLEARFEREE (TREESE 2. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to

B)EFREE (REEBITHFERE) 2E - customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates

of deposit issued).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

KEFBITEBEERA T DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
EEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Fopa David Shou-Yeh Wong

E Chairman
=EH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

ey Vice Chairman
i Robert Tsai-To Sze

B ITEE Independent Non-Executive Director
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung

BB ITEE Independent Non-Executive Director
R fs 7 Seng-Lee Chan

B ITEE Independent Non-Executive Director
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng

B TEE Independent Non-Executive Director
FHER Shoji Hirai

FHPTTEE Non-Executive Director
FiHH Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

B AR T AR Managing Director and Chief Executive
FiaZ Gary Pak-Ling Wang

HITEE Executive Director
EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE
S E Robert Tsai-To Sze

i Chairman
IR s ) Seng-Lee Chan
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng
BERFHMEES NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
s E Robert Tsai-To Sze

FE Chairman
PEE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
RER ik ) Seng-Lee Chan
TP David Shou-Yeh Wong
SEMRER REGISTERED OFFICE
EBELTITE 1085k 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

AL BA L 3612
TiE - 2507 8866
{EE : 2598 5052

108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866
Fax: 2598 5052

BERE & E R DSBAHKHH S.W.L.F.T.: DSBAHKHH

484t : http://www.dahsing.com Website: http://www.dahsing.com
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong Fcis, Fcs

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited

Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited

Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith Freehills

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 287 to 292 of this annual report for respective list
of branches.)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 74, was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
in 2004. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”),
Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau Insurance
Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New
Asian Shipping Company, Limited and various other companies. He
serves as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of both the Company and DSFH. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President
of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, a Vice President of
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a Vice Chairman of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Mr. Wong has over 45
years of experience in banking and finance. He is the father of Mr.
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing Director and Chief Executive
of the Company, Vice Chairman of DSB and DSLA, and an Executive
Director of the Company’s other key operating banking and fellow
insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 62, was appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company in 2004 and promoted as Vice Chairman in April
2011. He was appointed as Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”) in 1993 and promoted as its Managing Director
in January 2002. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989 and was promoted as its Managing Director in 2000 and Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He ceased to be a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of both the Company and DSFH in
September 2014. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He is
a Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a Non-
Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqging Co., Ltd.
in which the Group has a 17% equity interest in its H shares listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers
(U.K.) and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has
over 35 years of experience in banking.
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Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 2004. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),
Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of both the Company and DSFH, and a non-executive Director to a
number of Hong Kong listed companies as set out below. Mr. Sze is
a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a former partner of an international firm of accountants with
which he practised for over 20 years.

Apart from the Company and DSFH, Mr. Sze also holds/held
directorships in other Hong Kong listed companies during the last
three years, namely, China Travel International Investment Hong Kong
Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited,
Nanyang Holdings Limited, Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings
Limited, Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited (retired
in June 2013) and QPL International Holdings Limited (retired in
September 2013).

Mr. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 2004 and Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 2006. He serves as a member
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
since 2005. He is currently a Legislative Councillor (Industrial First),
the Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong Industries and
Textile Council of Hong Kong, and a Council Member of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council. He is also a Director of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited, and an Independent
Non-Executive Director of China South City Holdings Limited, CN
Innovations Holdings Limited and Harbour Centre Development
Limited.
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Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2008 upon his retirement in June
2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of Heidelberg China Limited. He
serves as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2011. He is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, and was appointed in May
2012. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the Print
Media Industry and with a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.

Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company in
April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(the Company’s banking subsidiaries), appointed in October 2012
and February 2013 respectively. He serves as a member of the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee of DSB since May 2013. Mr.
Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Chinney Alliance
Group Limited, a public company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is an
Associate of The Chartered Institute of Bankers (UK) and a Fellow and
an honorary advisor of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Ng
has 40 years of extensive experience in banking and financial industry
with a focus on the corporate and institutional banking business
management for the last 12 years prior to his retirement from Hang
Seng Bank Limited in 2011.

Mr. Shoji Hirai
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hirai, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in August 2013. He is currently Deputy General Manager
of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU”) Hong Kong
Branch and a Director of BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited. He served
and managed various divisions in BTMU before appointed as General
Manager of Honggiao Sub-Branch of Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
(China), Ltd. Shanghai Branch in 2011. Mr. Hirai has over 25 years
of extensive experience in corporate banking, as well as corporate
planning.
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Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and Chief
Executive in April 2011. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010.
He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. Mr. Wong was appointed as a member of
The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee, a sub-committee
under the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority, in October 2014. He is a qualified solicitor
in England and Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr.
David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Company
and Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in 2004. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Group Financial
Controller in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997,
responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group for a number of years
since then. Mr. Wang was promoted as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of DSB in May 2011. He is also a Director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wang has over 25 years of experience in financial management
and banking.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and Deputy
Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Mr. Mayhew, aged 47, joined Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”) in 1998 and is currently an Executive Director of DSFH, Dah
Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company
Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as the
Deputy Chief Executive of DSB, and Head of Treasury and Corporate
Finance of DSB, responsible for its treasury and corporate finance
activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 25 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Mr. Lau, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key
operating subsidiary of the Company, in 1992. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of DSB in May 2012 and an Alternate
Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014. He is currently the Head
of Commercial Banking Division, responsible for overseeing and
supervising commercial banking business. He is also a committee
member of SME Standing Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong in 2013-2014. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of
experience in commercial banking.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank

Ms. Wong, aged 48, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a
key operating subsidiary of the Company, as the Head of Retail
Banking business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB
in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014.
Ms. Wong has over 25 years of experience in retail and personal
banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong, including
Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.
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Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and was
appointed as the Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Head of
Business Development of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB
China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company, in September
2012. He was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB China in
December 2014 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China in
February 2015. Mr. Yau has 28 years of experience in the banking
industry in China and Hong Kong, and had assumed various senior
executive positions in Standard Chartered Bank before joining DSB.

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited and was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over
25 years of experience in banking and finance business with other
banks in Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered
Bank, and with particular focus in corporate and institutional banking
business management for the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited.
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Our core businesses had a steady year in 2014. Performance in
Hong Kong and Macau was good, whilst Mainland China was mixed.
Against a backdrop of slowing growth in China, we reported another
year of record profits, with an increase of 16% in profit attributable to
shareholders to HK$2,034 million.

The key drivers were strong performance from our core Commercial,
Retail and Treasury businesses in Hong Kong, a record profit from our
Macau subsidiary bank, Banco Comercial de Macau, and a steady
contribution from our investment in Bank of Chongqging, which offset a
weaker performance from our China subsidiary bank. It is encouraging
that as we continue to pursue our “back to basics” strategy, our
profitability, as well as our profit, continued to improve, with a return
on equity of 11%.

After the rights issue of the Company, supported by Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited’s own rights issue, completed in the
second quarter of 2014, our capital position continued to strengthen,
with our overall Capital Adequacy Ratio of 16.3%, and Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 11.4% as at 31 December 2014.

We were also well prepared for the new liquidity rules that came into
effect on 1 January 2015, and continue to maintain our liquidity ratio
at much above the regulatory minimum level. Whilst the process of
regulatory change under Basel Il has yet to be completed, it is notable
that in dollar terms, our CET1 is now more than double the equivalent
Core Capital that we maintained in 2007, before the main impact of
the financial crisis. This demonstrates how much our capital base has
been strengthened over the past few years.

T - =

iancial G

RIBOTEEERATNEEENE (WELER)  EEEL - FHERLLE - LEMALE REESKL  ErEAL - THERAE

BRESAISEAE « RIRASEREMEARE -

The Board of Directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (from Left to Right): Mr. Derek Wong, Mr. Shoji Hirai, Mr. Robert Sze,
Mr. Andrew Leung, Mr. David Wong, Mr. Harold Wong, Mr. Seng-Lee Chan, Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng and Mr. Gary Wang.
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CHANGES IN BOARD MEMBERS DURING THE YEAR

There was no change in the Board composition of the Company
during the year. Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) resigned as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company with effect from 15 September 2014, but remains as an
Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

We continue to live in uncertain times. Whilst there are some
encouraging signs in 2015, notably the continuing recovery of the
US economy, other developments mean that we should be cautious.
Risks that may affect us during the year include the slowdown in the
Mainland China economy, and the credit risk that this may bring, as
well as the continuing volatility in financial markets, and the possible
change in the policy direction of the Federal Reserve, as it considers
whether to start to raise interest rates after an extended period of
Federal Funds rates close to zero. All of these potential developments
urge caution.

However, we should not forget that our core market is Hong Kong,
and of our banking subsidiaries, our Macau bank is still bigger than
our Mainland China bank. Conditions in both Hong Kong and Macau
remain steady, and credit quality is extremely good, so we are not
overly pessimistic about 2015. Our investment in Bank of Chongqging

continues to perform well.

AHeMEEEERARMERESZRI 2GR o
A group photo of the Directors and Company Secretary of Dah Sing Financial Group before a Board Meeting.
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RIS () FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)
RIEME @ BIVBEENURE - PEA &R In the longer term, we continue to see our base in Hong Kong,
FIAEREM - ARE P RETAIEFNZ - Mainland China and Macau as one that we can build on, for the benefit

of our shareholders, customers and staff alike.

& AABLRBRAEBEVESAELHZCEESR Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
B WERREEEH T TEIREBEF2F contribution and extend, on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
S UREFHERE 7 RIS - all of our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past

year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers and
shareholders.

FiE David Shou-Yeh Wong
FFE Chairman
B 2015F3 A25H Hong Kong, 25 March 2015

K i GRAT @B A A

DAHSINGBANK €&3 Dan SING LIFE

RITEBL NBEERARTEBELNERREF
Dah Sing Management at the Hong Kong headquarters building celebrating the Chinese New Year of the Horse.
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Our Group’s financial results for 2014 were satisfactory, with a
profit attributable to shareholders increasing by 15.8% to HK$2,034
million, a record for our Group, producing a return of 11% on average
shareholders’ funds. Overall, the performance of our wholly-owned
businesses was encouraging. Excluding the contribution from Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”), profit attributable to shareholders increased by
21.5% to HK$1,431 million, reflecting the continued improvement in
the core earnings of the banking businesses that we own and operate.

An important management objective is to achieve a satisfactory
return on capital in the long term, whilst maintaining strong capital
and liquidity ratios as we grow our core banking businesses. While
we have improved the return on capital to 11% in 2014 from 7.7% in
2011, in spite of an enlarged capital base further to the completion
of the rights issue in 2014, we would caution that generating an
attractive return on capital will be more difficult in the next few years.
The phasing in of capital requirements pursuant to Basel lll should
see to that, unless banks in general are able to capture better margins
from the products and services provided.

¢ RAREES
001 SME s Pariner Award

%‘;.ﬂﬂ‘hel.
N e

T Best SME's Award

EURELERS ¥ 3:3:1 4]

L R
€& han SiveBank

R Ak d

RIRITHTESREAERITEEERIRESE (W - A ) BEXEBRNECEEESRE [/ PEREREE] BRE -
Mr. Eddie Lau, Executive Director and Head of Commercial Banking Division (Standing: 1st from right) received the award of “Best
SME Partner Award” by Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business.
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While prospects for 2015 indicate a lower growth in business
volumes given the slowdown in the Mainland economy, there remain
opportunities in those areas of our core banking businesses that have
performed well for the Group since 2011. We will continue to make
investments in our key businesses for the longer term.

As explained in my letter last year, the basic banking business is easy
to understand but difficult to execute well. We have strived to maintain
our focus on the key banking tenets to drive profitability including our
deposit franchise, risk-adjusted returns from a diversified portfolio of
loans and assets, non-interest income from serving our customers,
and prudent management of our risks and costs. Amidst the increased
complexity of rules and regulations in financial services, it is important
for our colleagues not to lose sight of the simple banking tenets, which
continue to be the foundations of our business strategy.

Despite the intense competition in the markets in which we operate,
we are pleased to report an overall satisfactory performance in our key
profit drivers, including the following:

° Net interest income was up by 6.9% from HK$2,797 million to
HK$2,990 million due primarily to a growth in volumes.

° Net fee and commission income increased by 18.5%
from HK$702 million to HK$832 million driven largely by
improvements in wealth management, bancassurance,
securities brokerage and treasury related businesses, as well as
general banking fees.

° Net interest margin narrowed slightly from 1.79% to 1.76%
during the year but broadly held up in spite of higher deposit
costs and risk aversion in loan underwriting in view of the
challenging credit conditions in the Mainland.

Managing expenses and keeping costs under control are vitally
important in banking. Managing expenses well means that every
dollar we spend should be aligned with our strategy and priorities.
This ought to ensure that we are spending money in our key business
areas, investing in the right technologies and products, and focusing
on our customers as well as our people. In spite of the considerable
pressure of cost increases and the need to invest for growth in our
core businesses, our operating expenses were contained to an
increase of 7.7%. This was moreover outpaced by the increase of
9.1% in operating income from HK$3,817 million to HK$4,165 million
(indicating the effects of “positive jaws”), which helped to reduce
slightly our cost-to-income ratio to 51.1% in 2014. However, while the
quantum in cost increase was satisfactory in 2014, we need to work
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smarter and harder to ensure that our spending is deployed effectively
in line with our strategy. We believe that managing expenses and
resources, if done well, should allow us to realize benefits as our
business scale grows over time without diminishing customer
experiences or increasing operational risk.

A clear blemish during the year was an increase in loan impairment
losses and other credit provisions from HK$310 million to HK$473
million, due primarily to an increase in Mainland related delinquent
loans. While credit conditions in the Mainland deteriorated along with
the slowdown in the economy, it is nonetheless disappointing that
we suffered from delinquencies, and we must learn the lessons and
improve on underwriting in Mainland related lending going forward.
However, credit conditions in our core Hong Kong and Macau markets
remained benign, and overall the impaired loan ratio stood at a healthy
level of 0.35%. As banking is a risk management business, prudent
credit underwriting will continue to be an area of important focus for
the management team and our Group.

2014412 A 31 HAF @ MEEER AR (RERRE

440) - RAFIRITEEGR AR (BRRR : 2356)
WK -

Closing prices of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 440) and Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (Stock code: 2356) on 31 December
2014.

201412 A 31 BEAHEEZ W R -
Closing price of Hang Seng Index on 31 December
2014.
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BOCAQ continued to perform well with a contribution of HK$602 million
for the year, an increase of 4% over the prior year, a lesser percentage
increase than the 21% increase in the underlying earnings growth
of BOCQ, due to the dilution of our interest from 20% to 16.95% in
BOCQ subsequent to its IPO in late 2013. We continued to account for
the earnings of BOCQ on the basis that it is an associate of our Group.
Unlike the businesses that we own and operate, where items relating
to revenue and expense are included in our financial statements,
only our proportionate share of net profit of BOCQ is included (as an
associate) via a one-line entry in our consolidated income statement.
However, whether or not we account for BOCQ as an associate, the
value to its shareholders (including our Group) of the earnings and
capital of BOCQ is determined by the use to which they are put and
the subsequent level of earnings produced by that usage. That value
is therefore determined by BOCQ and is not affected by the inclusion
or non-inclusion of the share of such earnings in our own reported
profit for the year.

The growth in earnings, coupled with the relatively modest loan
growth during the year, contributed to an improvement in our capital
ratios, further to the completion of the Group’s rights issue during the
second quarter of 2014. As at 31 December 2014, our total capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR”) was 16.3% and our CET1' was 11.4%. We will
need to further sharpen our discipline to generate an adequate return
from the capital deployed on our loans and assets, as we strive to
improve our profitability and further strengthen our capital base over
time.

We maintained an unvaryingly strong liquidity position, with a liquidity
ratio of 45.3% in the year and a loan to deposit ratio of 70.8% at the
end of 2014. Most of our funding is from customer deposits, which
quality we have worked hard to improve over the past few years,
with the goal of increasing the share of lower cost deposits through a
deeper, more transactional relationship with our customers.

We introduced a set of core values and guiding principles for the
Group along with our medium term strategy in 2011, with the objective
to guide and align the actions of our people at work. Moreover, we
emphasize the qualities of energy, intelligence and integrity in our
people, who are key to our Group’s ability to create value for both
our customers and shareholders. We are delighted that the efforts of
our people were recognized by the market, with a number of awards
received during the year in different areas of our business.

' Common Equity Tier 1 capital
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Celebration of the 10th anniversary of our Graduate Trainee Programme.
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| want to thank all of our stakeholders — our customers, communities,
colleagues and shareholders — for helping make 2014 a good year.
In particular, full credit goes to the leaders of Dah Sing Bank in
Hong Kong, including the management of our Commercial Banking,
Personal Banking and Treasury businesses, and BCM in Macau,
who have been ably supported by our support divisions, for the
performance and earnings of these businesses which contributed
meaningfully to our Group’s results in 2014.

It has been a privilege to lead the Group and serve you - our

shareholders — as our performance has improved steadily over the
past few years.

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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REFEBEUWHRBREBIINNTR:

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for
the year are summarised in the table below:

2014 £ 20134 k)
2014 2013 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.76% 1.79%
AEBT HK$ Million
MEREEERZ Operating profit before
& iE i impairment losses 2,037.7 1,841.6 10.6%
MBRREEEEZ Operating profit after
BIE impairment losses 1,564.7 1,531.8 2.1%
[ 5R FE A 5 A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,033.6 1,756.5 15.8%
EFEXR Advances to customers 105,230 97,978 7.4%
BPFHR Customers’ deposits 142,580 129,843 9.8%
B BITIFGE Certificates of deposit issued 6,110 6,133 -0.4%
FERas Total deposits 148,690 135,976 9.4%
EBITOERE Issued debt securities - 775 -100.0%
BIEER Subordinated notes 5,432 3,762 44.4%
BESR Total assets 185,328 167,227 10.8%
BEAS Total liabilities 165,372 150,162 10.1%
f&FRE & Shareholders’ funds 19,941 17,050 17.0%
FR B EERA Net interest income/operating income 71.8% 73.3%
AT A L & Cost to income ratio 51.1% 51.8%
M & E R Return on average total assets 1.2% 1.1%
YRR E ¢ EIH Return on average shareholders’ funds 11.0% 10.8%
BER(TREESER)HFK Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit
(PIBEEBEITHFHE) L= (including certificates of deposit
issued) ratio 70.8% 72.1%

20 REPITEBERRA | 2014555 . ___________________________________________________________________



E e
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Bt %5 [0 R

014 F RAEERBMBEN—F  REEERT
BIFFHEZE20/83T4a &8 - 1EK16% © 1%
RZFERARFRBERMASWAUAREER
ABFRY 2R MEARBEERAZER
BB B IEIE - BAEERIT([EERIT])
ZENEBBERASEERREI ISR - B
BERENEERASCRABREE S REHA
REREE11% ©

BRRFANEHREEABERTE - MAKE
B M ) E IS AR AR E A B A B R
BHEMBSRRINEERA « THFNHEFIG
ReE  MEFEFIERT.A%  HEEF -

R2014F - REBBBEN2013FEEYHTFAE
HRER BAFATEFNERPEREFF
18 ERBEESARE BENMSERES
REFBEBEMTE  SEERAEN  A5E
E(¥BESBBEEEESRATER  MEHRASE
EEBHREMT - (55K INAE R 7 A5 5K

EROEBIHRBER  BEEFELEREE
M- EEEWAERIIY% NS ?W%ﬁ%mj
LB AL K106%  UWEREFEREBK
ﬁm%°%ﬁ¢ﬁwgﬂﬂxﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
ERAEM - MBRBEBIEE 2 EERTIER
21% - FANAEBE L EBFHFREERN - BPR
R EEEFIE R 15.8% - Bi & AR EBIRITE
RAEY & A R 4.1% o

FREMWAR27EIT7TEEATILENT% £ 29
BOTFEBT  FEHNEBERAMFE - A
EEWFESEWERAEE - FREERAS K
AB7TEZ2EESBILLEA185% £8E3F2H
AT - REBEBRAENEZHATEEE RIR
TRBUEIEM - HETEPUEERIEN - &
H RIS R — AR T AR TS AR A B R AT EK

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2014 was a satisfactory year for the Group, with 16% growth in core
profit attributable to shareholders to a record level of HK$2,034
million. The key drivers were strong growth in net fee and commission
income and trading income, and overall operating income growth
running ahead of the increase in expenses for the year. With a steady
contribution from the Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) and higher loan
impairment charges, the improved performance resulted in a higher
return on equity, reaching 11% for the first time since the financial

crisis.

Business conditions remained fairly stable in Hong Kong and Macau,
whilst our Mainland China business reported higher credit costs in
part due to the continued slowdown in the Mainland China economy.
Loan growth slowed in the second half of the year, with full year loan
growth at 7.4%, somewhat slower than in the prior year.

In 2014, we continued to build on the platform that we had established
in 2013, with encouraging results, although it is notable that growth
in the second half of the year was slower than that in the first half.
Whilst the slowing Mainland economy has impacted our business,
with higher credit costs experienced, to date the credit quality of our
business remains strong and credit costs manageable in relation to
the scale of our overall business.

All our core revenue lines achieved growth, with 9.1% growth in
total operating income, and 10.6% growth in overall pre-provision
operating income, despite more modest volume growth, with loans
and advances to customers increasing by 7.4%. Despite higher credit
costs attributable to Mainland China exposures in our subsidiary in
China, operating profit after impairment losses increased by 2.1%.
We reported disposal gains on securities investments during the year,
which contributed to growth in profit attributable to shareholders of
15.8%. The profit contribution from our associate BOCQ increased
modestly by 4.1%.

Net interest income grew by 7% from HK$2,797 million to HK$2,990
million due mainly to growth in volumes offset slightly by a small
decrease in net interest margin. Net fee and commission income
increased by 18.5% from HK$702 million to HK$832 million. The
increase in fee income was driven largely by improvements in wealth
management and bancassurance revenues, increases in our sales
of treasury products to customers, securities services and general
banking related fees.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

We reported an overall increase in operating income by 9.1%, slightly
ahead of the increase in operating expenses of 7.7%.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions increased from
HK$310 million to HK$473 million. Whilst credit conditions in our core
Hong Kong market declined modestly and Macau remained benign,
we experienced a further increase in credit cost overall due to a small
number of Mainland and Mainland related loans during the year.

Our associated company BOCQ continued to perform well with a
contribution of HK$602 million for the year, an increase of 4% over the
prior year. BOCQ recorded a strong profit growth of 21%. The lower
growth rate on our share of BOCQ net profit was due to the dilution of
our interest from 20% to 16.95% when BOCQ was listed in November
2013.

Total assets of the Group reached HK$185.3 billion, an increase of
11% over 2013. Shareholders’ funds as of 31 December 2014 stood
at HK$20 billion, up 17% on 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, Dah Sing Bank’s (“DSB”) consolidated total
capital adequacy ratio was 16.3%, and its consolidated Common
Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) ratio was 11.4%, more than 1% higher than the
levels at the end of 2013. The improvement was driven largely by the
impact of the rights issues of the Company and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, and the subsequent HK$1.2 billion equity injection
to DSB, and completion of a new issue of Basel Ill compliant Tier
2 subordinated debt of US$225 million in early 2014, whilst profit
retention by DSB in the year also contributed to boost our capital
ratios.

2014 was the third full financial year in which we implemented the
medium term strategy adopted by the Board in 2011, with a focus
on profitability and balance sheet management, core products,
customers, service quality, credit risk management, cost control and
overall efficiency, and the development of our Mainland China and
cross-border businesses, in addition to our core Hong Kong hub.
We are encouraged by the results of the strategy implementation in
the past three years, both in terms of our financial performance and
the progress achieved to date to further improve our prospects and
financial strength in the medium term.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the consumer finance, vehicle
finance, retail banking, VIP banking and private banking market
segments, achieved an encouraging increase in net profit in 2014.
Despite higher loan impairment provisions, mainly due to higher
volumes of unsecured consumer lending, the operating profit after
impairment losses of our Personal Banking business increased by
16% when compared with 2013, with broad based fee income growth
and improved asset yields.

Wealth Management income grew by 34%, driven by expansion of
our wealth management activities including unit trust sales, securities
brokerage and insurance sales. Focus was placed on the higher
value VIP banking segment, which contributed a significant portion
of the total income during the year. In 2014, we further upgraded our
VIP Banking platform, launching new currency-linked products and
enhanced services such as investment seminars, FX market updates
and a quarterly investment newsletter. We also continued our efforts
to expand and upgrade our retail securities services, with encouraging
results: securities fee income increased by 36% when compared
with 2013. As of the end of 2014, we had a total of 35 retail securities
centres in our branch network. Towards the year end, we were one
of the first-batch of banks to launch the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect securities service.

Our efforts in wealth management services were recognized by
various awards, including “Outstanding Brand Award — Wealth
Management Services” by Economic Digest 2014, “Excellent Brand of
Mobile Securities Services, Banking Service” and “Excellent Brand of
On-line Securities Services, Banking Service” of Hong Kong Leaders’
Choice by Metro Broadcast, “Outstanding Financial Management
Planner Award” by Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and “IFPHK
Accredited Professional Financial Planning Award” by Institute of
Financial Planners of H.K.

Loan growth in the Personal Banking segment in the year was up
modestly by 6%, with a similar level of increase in net interest income.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

Building our current/savings accounts balances was another
important focus during the year. We launched our “YOU Banking”
service targeting customers using on-line and mobile channels for
banking transactions, and we also rolled out DSB’s Mobile Banking
App and Facebook page.

We promoted our personal loan products during the year, with efforts
in enhancing efficiency for customers to gain access to credit needs
by launching the first-in-market online personal loan application and
credit checking service. We also extended other banking services
to personal loan customers, via Tax Loan bundling with deposit
offers. TV advertising and other promotion activities were employed
to enhance market awareness of our personal loan offering. The
marketing campaign in the year was effective in generating new
business and gained good market recognition with the awards of
“Excellent Brand of Bank Personal Loan” by Metro Broadcast and
“Outstanding Personal Loan Banking Service Award” by CAPITAL
magazine.

In the credit card segment, we launched our ONE+ Credit Card,
with the associated ONE+ mobile app. We also launched a digital
m-wallet employing Near Field Communications technology to enable
customers to pay with smart phones.

The asset quality of our retail lending portfolio remained benign, with
the loan delinquency rate and loan loss rate staying at relatively low
levels. The increase in the loan impairment charges was mainly due to
increases in the volume of unsecured personal loans of both DSB and
our consumer finance subsidiary, OK Finance.

We continued our branch network upgrade programme with
the objective to improve our services and offer better customer
experience. At the end of 2014, our branch network included 46 retail
branches in Hong Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank, with 20
VIP Centres and 35 Securities Centres. An additional five branches
operate under the OK Finance brand.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking recorded double digit growth in both loan assets
and net profit.

Loans plus trade bills rose by 11% which was driven by mainland
cross-border related trade financing, commercial lending and
syndicated loans. Deposits grew by 13%, largely contributed by
growth in low cost current and savings deposits.

Net interest income was up 7%, due both to loan growth and also
the gradual shift towards higher yield products. Non-interest income
recorded moderate growth, against a higher base recorded in
2013, particularly relating to sales of treasury products to corporate
customers.

We worked hard to launch new products to meet our customers’
needs, including new insurance products, and upgraded internet
banking platforms (DS-Direct and iISME).

Our dedication to customers was recognized by the market and
public. During the year, we have won five awards from the industry
with extensive media coverage as listed below:

. Elite Award — Best Commercial Banking from Ming Pao Weekly

° Best Corporate Banking Award from Metro Prosperity

° Capital Merits of Achievement — Internet Banking Services
Award from Capital Magazine

° Best SME Partner Award from the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business (“HKGCSMB”)

° Asia Excellence Brand Award from Yazhou Zhoukan

Commercial Banking continued to support SMEs in Hong Kong by
promoting the Government guaranteed financing scheme including
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme offered by the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation as well as the Special Guaranteed Scheme
offered by the Trade and Industry Department of HKSAR Government.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Commercial Banking (Continued)

As a local SME oriented bank, we sponsored a wide range of SME
events and conferences. We were the platinum sponsor for the Hong
Kong Award for Industries, which aimed to recognize the outstanding
achievements of Hong Kong enterprises in their move towards higher-
end technology and high value-added activities; the sole sponsor for
the World SME Summit in two consecutive years, held by HKGCSMB
at the 2014 World SME Expo; and also the annual event organized by
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. We were very pleased
to be able to add value and to contribute to the SME, development
of trade and manufacturing businesses managed or based in Hong
Kong, and in the Pearl River Delta region.

Treasury

Our Treasury division recorded record profit in 2014, due both to
much stronger net interest income and non-interest income in the
year.

Global markets were mixed in 2014. Whilst broadly bond and equity
markets performed well, there was some volatility during the year.
Foreign exchange markets were also volatile. During the year, the US
Federal Reserve ended its market purchase of assets (or “Quantitative
Easing”), and the market began to look towards a gradual rise in the
benchmark US Federal Funds rate in the medium term. The RMB
moved both up and down during the course of the year, in contrast
with its relatively steady appreciation during the years prior to 2013,
and ended 2014 somewhat weaker against the US dollar compared
with year end 2013. Nevertheless, compared with the extreme
volatility experienced in a number of years in the recent past, overall
market conditions during the year were generally stable. Against this
backdrop, our Treasury took action to reposition the investment and
deployment of surplus funds to achieve improved yields and a better
asset allocation, balancing liquidity, credit and interest rate risks.

Major activities of our Treasury business, including the investment
book, money market business and sales and marketing, outperformed
the prior year, bringing to the Group higher investment and trading
income.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Treasury (Continued)

Close collaboration with our Commercial Banking division in serving
our commercial customers and meeting customers’ needs for treasury
products and services contributed to our Treasury division’s higher
fee and trading income.

As part of our efforts to rebalance our investment portfolio, we
continued to make securities disposals in the year to improve the risk
profile as well as to manage down the duration of the portfolio which
realised a small disposal gain. With the reduction in risk exposure
during the course of the year, we considered it appropriate to write
back HK$60 million of the collective impairment provision previously
made against the higher risk securities investments.

Banco Comercial de Macau

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM?”) provides a comprehensive range
of commercial and retail banking products and services to customers
in Macau. As of the end of 2014, BCM operated a total of 14 branches
in Macau.

BCM'’s loans and deposits grew 12.7% and 12.5% respectively
relative to the end of 2013. Loan growth was driven largely by
mortgage loan and syndicated loan increases, while commercial loan
and consumer finances also recorded solid growth.

Due to stronger asset growth and improved loan yields, and tight
control of deposit cost, BCM recorded an increase of 9.3% in net
interest income. Together with stronger fee, commission and net
trading income, BCM’s operating income increased by 11.1% when
compared with 2013.

Operating expenses, despite local inflation and additional business
support and operational control cost pressure, were well controlled.
Asset quality remained very benign, maintaining minimal loan losses,
with no additional loan impairment provision required in the year.
BCM’s 2014 net profit, adjusting for the amortisation of intangible
assets (recognised at the initial acquisition of BCM) and some Group
level adjustments, was 20% higher than 2013.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE (continued)
Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of DSB and was locally incorporated in China in 2008.

Affected by higher credit cost, DSB China recorded a net loss in 2014.
Our loan portfolio slightly contracted in 2014 as more cautious new
business and lending were pursued, in addition to adopting tighter
credit underwriting standards. Against the outlook of a slower rate of
economic growth in China, we will continue to develop DSB China’s
commercial banking and retail banking businesses in a highly cautious
manner in 2015.

DSB China now operates in 6 major cities in China, with a network
comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in Shanghai,
Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou (with a sub-branch in Foshan),
and a sub-branch in Shenzhen, offering a variety of commercial and
retail banking lending, deposits and related banking services to our
customers in China.

Bank of Chongqing

BOCAQ is the leading city commercial bank in Chongqing, which is
the largest city in Western China with a population of over 33 million
people, and is one of the 4 leading municipalities in China reporting
directly to Beijing. BOCQ operates a branch network of over 120
branches and sub-branches, including branches and sub-branches in
Chengdu, Guiyang and Xian.

BOCQ'’s business performance and financial results in 2014 continued
to be strong, as reflected in its net profit increase at 21% over 2013,
growth in total assets by 33%, loan to deposit ratio at 63.4%, non-
performing loan ratio at 0.69%, cost to income ratio (excluding
business tax and surcharges) at 31%, and 19.2% ROE.

Following the completion of BOCQ’s IPO in late 2013, our interest was
diluted from 20% to 16.95%. Our share of BOCQ net profit continued
to be recognized on an equity accounting basis, with the total amount
of our share of BOCQ net profit increased mildly from HK$579 million
in 2013 to HK$602 million, an increase of 4%, incorporating the effect
of the dilution of our shareholding.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, we enhanced our risk governance and control
framework, including the revision of the new product approval
processes as well as further development of stress testing
framework. Preparation was also made to ensure the transition to
the new regulatory liquidity standard, and the compliance with the
new Liquidity Maintenance Ratio by January 2015. On credit risk
management, we strengthened our procedures in data collection for
financial and regulatory reporting. Continuous efforts were also made
to streamline our credit approval and documentation handling to
enhance efficiency.

EXRRBEE CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY

2014 F 20134
RITHER Banking Business 2014 2013
M ERTT 2 BAREM (LB BBITE) Capital base of banking subsidiaries

—-®12A31H (HK$ million) — at 31 December

— LR - Common Equity Tier 1 14,443 12,069
——& — Tier 1 14,443 12,069
— —Tier 2 6,226 4,714
R 2 B ARERE G5 Total capital base after deductions 20,670 16,783
BARF B E Capital adequacy ratio*
— LR - Common Equity Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
——& — Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
— BB — Total 16.3% 14.5%
NRBEELE(FEFH) Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 45.3% 46.2%

* 2014512 A31H %2013F12 A31A 2 E ATt 2
LR Ty RIIRITHER A AR (BIERFIR ERT
R RFIRTT (R E)) R2ERTTE (BEAR) KA
WEERHE I ERRAAENGEE LR - ZRE
BEARF R RN HE D E REITSERMRIER
& o
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The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The Group’s business maintained healthy capital adequacy ratios over
the past two years, whilst the Group pursued its growth strategy and
implemented changes to comply with the new regulatory capital rules.
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CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY (Continued)

Total capital adequacy ratio and CET1 ratio were more than 1% higher
when compared with the ratios at the end of 2013. The improvement
was driven largely by the impact of the rights issues and equity
injection to DSB concluded before mid 2014, and completion of a
new issue of Basel Ill compliant Tier 2 subordinated debt at US$225
million in early 2014, whilst profit retention by DSB in the year also

contributed to boost our capital ratios.

Our Group continued to maintain throughout the year a very high
liquidity ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets including cash
and placements with banks, and diversified marketable securities held
for investment and liquidity purposes.

HUMAN RESOURCES

We have implemented a series of corporate value building training
programs to deepen staff members’ understanding of our mission,
vision, guiding principles and values since the adoption of a new
medium term strategy for the banking business in 2011. For staff
members who have consistently demonstrated and exemplified the
Group’s guiding principles and values at work, ten “Unsung Hero”
awards were made in 2014, and their stories were published in the

Group’s newsletter.

Growing with employees through mutual commitment is a part
of the Group’s corporate mission. We continued to invest in staff
development in 2014. A new 3-day tailor-made Dah Sing Manager
Program was launched during the year for middle managers to
enhance their core competencies and alignment with the Group’s
vision, mission, guiding principles and values. The Graduate Trainee
Programme, reaching its 10th anniversary in 2014, is an important part
of the Group’s commitment in recruiting and nurturing young talents.

In 2014, we furthered our effort in fostering a caring culture throughout
the organization. New family friendly policies and benefits, including
enhancing our medical scheme, were implemented, as well as
initiatives to promote staff wellness.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (Continued)

The Group was presented with “The Best Practice Award 2014
in Mentoring Programme Development” by The Best Practice
Management Group. The award is a recognition of the Group’s best
practices in providing systematic and structured career development
for the newly joined Relationship Managers and Financial Services
Trainees which could also enhance the leadership capability of the

frontline managers as mentors.

The Group was given the “Family-Friendly Employers 2013/14 Award”
by the Family Council in recognition of our efforts on family friendly
policies and practices for our staff members. We are as also honoured
to receive the “10+ years Caring Company” award from the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our commitment to
corporate social responsibility.

To cope with business growth covering the Hong Kong, Macau and
China markets, and the increasing demand for human resources
to strengthen our capabilities in both business units and support
functions, the Group’s headcount further increased in 2014, with the
total number of employees of our Group increasing from 2,387 at the
end of 2013 to 2,482 at the end of 2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

Good corporate governance promotes and safeguards the interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the
credibility and reputation of the Company. The Board of Directors
(“Board”) and the Management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance standards, which
is essential for delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of
business integrity and maintaining investors’ confidence. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all code provisions with the exception
of code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 as explained in the following
relevant paragraphs, and, where applicable, certain recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). This
Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, and
explains how the Company applies the principles of the CG Code.

() CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct for directors’
securities dealing (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the prevailing required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following
specific enquiry, the Directors of the Company confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
and the Directors’ Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December
2014.

(Il BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company so as to promote its success and continued growth.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has
sound systems of risk management, internal control and regulatory
compliance. The Directors, collectively and individually, have a duty to
act in good faith, and to take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Group. The Board sets the business objectives for the Company,
and monitors the execution of those objectives by the Management of
the Company.
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(I)  BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition

The Board comprises 9 Directors, namely Messrs. David Shou-Yeh
Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman),
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong (Managing Director and Chief Executive) and
Gary Pak-Ling Wang as Executive Directors, Mr. Shoji Hirai as Non-
Executive Director, and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Andrew Kwan-
Yuen Leung, Seng-Lee Chan and Yuen-Tin Ng as Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”). There is a strong independent element
on the Board to ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board’s decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and
impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately
and effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to the business activities of the
Company in order to ensure effective governance and oversight. Brief
biographical particulars of the Directors, together with information
relating to the relationship among them, are set out on pages 6
to 11. The Company has maintained on the websites of Dah Sing
Bank and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited an updated
list of its Directors identifying their roles and functions and whether
they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Company’s Directors.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board considers all the INEDs to be
independent. Further, the Company has also received from each of
the INEDs an annual confirmation of his independence.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the Non-
Executive Directors (including INEDs), setting out the terms and
conditions of their appointment.
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(1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and Annual
General Meeting

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings
are held as necessary. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board

FRE ) ZEHBEHRTE meetings and the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) in 2014 are set
out in the following table:-
BR=R
EEEeR BFEXE
Board meetings AGM
2014 FRBHAEEARE Total number of meeting(s) held in 2014 4 1
BUHBITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
B Robert Tsai-To Sze 4/4 1
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 4/4 1
RER ik ) Seng-Lee Chan 4/4 1
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng 4/4 1
FHITEE Non-Executive Director
FHER Shoji Hirai 4/4 1
BITESE Executive Directors
TP David Shou-Yeh Wong 4/4 1
=EH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4/4 1
FiEH Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 4/4 1
Fla% Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4/4 1

THARZEZE SR TURD14RTELEBHA
NEFEEEARELHLE - EBMAESES
B MELAREAEM - BEFAAETDIRTX
RIAEEZARMARMEREFERIIANESS
EHEHERELHANER - ARANEXRAHWERE
BZNERFESEREFTRESZEWmRE
ZERFNH I ETAEFRRIAEBAREML
A EREAHRER -
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Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to
the Company Secretary, in writing, and at least 7 days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board
are kept by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant
committees, and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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(1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and Annual
General Meeting (Continued)

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also meets with
the Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), without the presence
of the Executive Directors, to facilitate open and frank discussion on
issues relating to the Company.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. In circumstances where Directors believe that independent
advice is needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive in the first instance with their request. No such
request will be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary
or the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage an
appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the Company. The
Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors.

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after his/her
appointment. Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Company noted that in the past, the managing director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire under the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Company put forward a special resolution at the
2014 Annual General Meeting, and the shareholders, among other
things, approved the special resolution to amend the Articles by
removing the provision of excluding the managing director from the
requirement of retirement by rotation. As such, the Company has
complied with code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code.
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) EEg@m () BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

AGHERE Roles and Responsibilities

EEECORERARBEHESB AR TR The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running
EHEE UVHEEREEETEEZRERFTRAZE the Group to the executive management, and has delegated
2 (FBHNUTEEH) - BEEEgREaE responsibility for certain matters to a number of committees, which
TE ETEHALEEZS P ERNERFAEE - are described more fully in the following sections. As defined in the
TEERTFTEECETLZESAHNITEERE - % Board’s terms of reference, there are a number of matters which
LEREBEEBIE require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated

to the committees of the Board or the executive management. These
reserved matters include:

* BRARNEIEZERRAESTANRER IR * Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a
Z conflict of interest;

* BEANERHEEE  PRAEBBEAR * Material acquisitions or disposals at an amount that exceeds
AEREESFEXTE(UKKEALE) 2 10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value and market
10% capitalization at the relevant time;

* BARESHHERE (B FRANEBRF 4 * Material investments or disposals of investments (except for
BedREESARMEL 2 EEIREL normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course
FBHBEERARIN) of deploying the surplus funds or investment funds of the

Group);

* AEFEEBNE 2 HIEREE * Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;

* REHES * Appointment of new directors;

* MAEREEUR * Approval of relevant policies;

* MBRFERE K * Approval of annual budget; and

* B EE o * Risk Governance.
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() BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Induction and Training for Directors

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s induction
handbook and materials relevant to the Company and briefed by the
Management to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he or she is
aware of his or her responsibilities under the laws and applicable
regulations. The Company also organized continuous professional
development and training to its Directors to ensure that they are fully
aware of their responsibilities under the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company has organized board briefings for Directors. All Directors
provided to the Company Secretary a record of the training they
received in 2014.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the
year:—

b
Training Areas
FEIR, ES
EREHE DTABZER/ [y, 9
EHEE ARBER =

Developments in
Regulatory Mainland China/

updates and Asia Region/ Business/
compliance Internationalization Financial/

i) Directors matters of RMB Management
BUHHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
£ & Robert Tsai-To Sze v v v
REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung v v v
PREEFI Seng-Lee Chan v v v
RIRH Yuen-Tin Ng v v v
HEHITEE Non-Executive Director
THER Shoji Hirai v v v
HITEE Executive Directors
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong v v v
BEHE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) v v v
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong v v v
B 2N Gary Pak-Ling Wang v v v
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(1) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of
its management — the management of the Board and the day-to-
day management of its business, and that there should be a clear
division of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a
balance of power and authority, so that no single individual should
have unfettered powers of decision. The roles and objectives of
the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive,
Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, are therefore separated and have been
approved by the Board. The Chairman mainly provides leadership for
the Board to ensure that the Board works effectively and discharges
its responsibilities, and all key and appropriate issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman possesses the
requisite experience, competencies and personal qualities to fulfill
these responsibilities. The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,
enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal control. Mr.
David Shou-Yeh Wong is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong.

(V) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

The Company has one Non-Executive Director and four INEDs.
Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company confirmation of
independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
with sufficient number of independent non-executive directors who
possess the appropriate professional qualifications and experience.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Non-Executive Directors, as equal Board members, give the Board
and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They attend regular and special
Board meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. The Non-Executive
Directors make valuable contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments and suggestions.
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(VY BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of
new directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management
of the Company, and require that such appointments are made after
deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its
roles and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible,
among other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors,
approval of the remuneration of directors and senior management.
Since December 2010, the Committee’s terms of reference have
covered the following roles and responsibilities as well:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the
design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system;

- To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Company’s remuneration policy and practices;

- To be delegated with the responsibility of the Board to
determine the specific remuneration packages of executive

directors and senior management; and

To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration
system and its operation is conducted.
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V) EEZEe-RERFMZESES W (v BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

TEERRBE Corporate Governance Duties

RELRFMEESNETT NS - The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also performs the

following duties:

- ZEOEBFERIEFSOEE - AZ - AKX - To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
RZat  WHESSELEBREES Board at least annually and make recommendations on any

proposed changes to the Board;

— THRNEFENEESIERRKN  LH - To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
EEEENERHEN the functioning of the Board, particularly in respect of the

composition of Board members;

- MEESGXELRSEEEASMETT - To approve the succession planning policy for Board members
SBR YHESRSEETEABEEI and senior management, and make recommendations to the
HEFRESSREEZ & Board on succession planning for these positions; and

- RBRNEFEXNEZT(CER =282 - To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related measurable
NEEE - objectives and progress on achieving these.

TEeNETEMBYIRNTEELHF - TEE® The majority of the members are INEDs. The terms of reference for the

ZHRESRENRART Z M EE R AFIEIT Committee are available for inspection at the Company’s registered

HE LB - office and the website of Dah Sing Bank.

REARFMEEGN2014FANE BHIRNGH ° The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held three meetings in

ZEERELZERERFEEN2014F 2 HE D 2014. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

Ul records in 2014 are set out below:

2014 FRBHERRE Number of meetings held in 2014 3

BUHBITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

eEmE(ER) Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) 3/3

REE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 3/3

ek 5 7 Seng-Lee Chan 3/3

HITESE Executive Directors

B David Shou-Yeh Wong 2/3

=E Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 2/2

(R2014F9 A 15 AE1T) (resigned on 15 September 2014)
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(VY BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Corporate Governance Duties (Continued)

The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during
2014 included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors to the
Board and senior management of the Company and of the
Group

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration policy and
related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s remuneration
systems and practices

- Reviewing the 2013 performance evaluation of individual INEDs
and the Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of
the individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and
regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages

of executive directors:

Business needs and performance

The economy and business conditions in general

Each individual’s contributions to the Group
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V) EEZEE-RERFMEES W (Vy BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
A& B2 HEBUR () The Group’s Remuneration Policy (Continued)

- EREEZERR

— S2ZREABERN 2 TSHHKFE

- BITEEES

- BEZEERZRLERZEE

REEBRET  EETAI2EBMERNATHHZ

RIE e

ESEHEZUILEE

EEEN2013F 12 A3HRMNESTERESZ

BE - HEF2H3RET

- Risk related performance

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the
individual’s responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

Board Diversity Policy

it The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) on 3
December 2013. The key terms of this Policy are set out as follows:
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1. Purpose
This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s Board in order to enhance the quality of
its performance which in turn benefits the Company and its
business as a whole.

2. Policy statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board in supporting the attainment of its business
objectives and sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the factors on personal
attributes outlined above, expectation on contribution to the
Board, and the benefit of diversity of the Board.
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(VY BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
3. Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

4. Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review
and report annually, in the Corporate Governance Report, a
summary of this Policy, the measurable objectives to implement
this Policy and progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

5. Review of the Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy
and discuss and recommend any revisions that may be required
to the Board for consideration and approval.

(Vi) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the Directors have exercised
the care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate
accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgments used in producing the financial statements.
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(V) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports
its major findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the
Company’s internal control system are set out below, whilst for
risk management, these are shown in the Supplementary Financial
Information under Risk Management and described with appropriate
financial quantification in the Financial Risk Management sections as
notes to the annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for
inspection at the Company'’s registered office and the website of Dah
Sing Bank.

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
(Chairman), Mr. Seng-Lee Chan and Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng. All of the
members of the Committee are INEDs with extensive experience
in banking, finance and business management. The Committee’s
chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified accountant and was a partner of
a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996.
None of the other committee members are employed by or otherwise
affiliated with the former or existing external auditors of the Company.

The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2014, a total of three meetings were held.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee
meetings in 2014 is set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2014 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman) 3/3
Seng-Lee Chan 3/3
Yuen-Tin Ng 3/3

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions
of the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings
are included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to
Directors.
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(V) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during
2014 in discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2013 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2014 interim

results and interim report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2013 audit and financial
statements;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2013 for
inclusion in the Company’s 2013 annual report and the key
changes to the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing
Rules;

d. Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
Audit Committee in the second half of 2013 and the first half of
2014;

e. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

f. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors;

g. Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

h. Review and approval of internal audit plan;

i Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;

j Review of update from Group Legal and Compliance Division on
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) examinations and

regulatory concerns, management’s actions in implementing the

HKMA'’s recommendations;
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(V) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

K. Review of the highlight of major new accounting and financial
reporting standards and guidance issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and impact to the
Group on their adoption; and

l. Review of significant accounting treatments for the preparation
of 2014 financial statements.

Accountability and Audit of Financial Statements

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing such explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2014, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditors on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to statutory or regulatory requirements.



THEERARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

V) EEZEE-EREEEW
AR EEE

EFEEREEEEARRIT R 2 NERE
%Hf NEREE RIS RUR BT IE R BT
EEFERBZEF  CEFEAERAR
IZ%%%%EEE&EM%HK‘/R EmEasERE - R
Wi EBTR - AEREEEFERREZE
7 ERETEREIRBRR UARHEIEAR
EHERRREMIES - WEKRARRZER - R
M- AEREZAMEERFEATEERRE - B
REHFHRHEAIEMIFBE 2 RE o

AR R BIR AR B RAEPET - HEAR
IREFLAT

- RUBMZERAGRE BRABREARE
Z*Eﬁﬁ - ARMERBE -

- HKYBRZEE®  UNERREFHEXER
I% miEERR - RBHES R EE
CIRERBREARRER -

- TEHRSEEEABNREERZESEHEAR
REZEBRR - BUHEBERKRABR
HPEZUY - EEEEFRALEEZ
%ﬁ‘%&ﬂﬂ%%ﬁiﬁo

—  HIRTEEBERER  MMEEHEP &
PR BEES IXPZZEEERTE
- BEZRE EEEEREARER
EBER S ARER (BRRBLER
#(R®HE])  BTHI - EARRE
R’ EMERREARET  HEEBEE
ME - MBER(BREER  BERE &
FEEMBRELEN M BRSE - B
SR REEES  REVK)  UREEE

BRE (BRBEDEZREEZENR)FET
[EPA =y S

(Vl) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to
develop and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal
control system, operating through a framework of management and
operational controls, and risk management systems, is intended to
allow the Board to monitor the Group’s business performance and
financial positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance on controls
against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and to exercise oversight on and provide guidance
to management in achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it
should be recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures
can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an
effective internal control system are as follows:

- A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-
defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest
rate risks, operational risk and compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management
committees. Actual performance results against budgets are
closely monitored. The Board reviews the Group’s business and
financial performance on a quarterly basis.

- Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering (“AML")),
staff training, IT development, IT governance and information
security, business continuity planning, financial control
(including accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting
to comply with regulatory and financial reporting standards,
management accounting and budget control, reconciliation of
accounts), and system of management oversight including the
operations of various functional committees.
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The independent internal audit function monitors compliance
with management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal
control reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity,
efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head
of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the
Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to senior management, Risk
Management and Compliance Committee and the Board, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in the
portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a
proper risk and return balance.

The Group’s business continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to strengthen its risk
control and effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance of
sound internal control process of the Group.

The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability
of compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Group Legal and Compliance Division performs
an independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, while the AML
and Financial Crime Risk Department manages and oversees
AML and financial crime risk of the Group.
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(V) BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Board has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external
auditors.

Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal
Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management practices. The 2014 reviews included an annual
assessment of internal control system with reference to the comments
made by both internal and external auditors, policies and procedures
of the Group, regulatory guidelines and the CG Code regarding
internal controls. The Group will continue to work to enhance its
internal control system and processes.

(VIl) AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
for performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when
the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the
independence and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external
auditors can be maintained. Otherwise, professional services from
other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services during 2014
by rendering review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory
services, review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure, and review
of the update on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank, Limited’s
US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk management and
internal control of the Group.
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(VIl) AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND REMUNERATION

(Continued)
HZE2014F12 A31 BILFE  BEX AL The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
FARR RISNEE AL BN B A AR TS R B A% LA INAR Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
BT - year ended 31 December 2014 is set out as follows:
exft BNz EA
BARRA TR R Services rendered for the Company Fee paid/payable
(F#&x)
(HK$°000)
EIZR Audit services 7,437
FRZAIMNRTE Non-audit services:
o EHEEIMEBUMNTISHEH e Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note 720
SHEEI([5181)) & Programme (the “Programme”) and professional
RFTIRITIERT B TN BT work on new subordinated note issue of
BEEBHNEEIE Dah Sing Bank under the Programme
o EHAFEEABERKRIERF e Review procedures relating to rights issue in the year 295
o BTHASEMBBAHEG e Tax compliance review on taxation computation 1,213
BRI IETE NE ARG and advisory service on compliance with new tax
ZMBERES regulations relevant to the Group
o Hits e Others 1,580
&

(VIIl) B A B AL
EBE

B=%

Total 11,245

(VIII) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

-  HIERBIARENDEERARERER - to develop and review of the Group’s policy and practices on

corporate governance

- RBRIREFEERSEEEABNEIIR - to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
SEHEERE development of directors and senior management

- BERERAEEEETEEREERTE - to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
ﬁ@ﬁ’ﬂﬂlﬁ& L) compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

- HE BRAREREENZFARTER - to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
& RFMm compliance manual applicable to employees and directors

—  BEAAEESTEEEARSTANERRE - to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

EEREARE N

KIBITEBEBR AT | 20145 55

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report



REAME
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(VI EEERBEE @)

2014 F N EBGEITUATLEEABE -

-  FMRMEBEFERESRE

- BRURMEKEHFNEZTZHFXHTH
BRBABREREERFMEE SBESRS

—  HE2013FEERRE

- FURMEARRBzZEESERABELE
J_?’

- BRAARKREFMERER

(IX) ERRZEE
(1) BEXERE

EXeRBRARRZIEE  BRAFAERK
RREf—(AREEEIRBELZEE - EFEET
FELRMAERGRNZM - EEZEGEFERIN
SRZBENR RIS LR RIBF A G AR EAR
B ©

BRI R AR ST B BT
B U5 ARFZEEBRITRAB TS EE
RERRAERSNALE  EREEAERR
ERMBRT - MESRERARABREL
BEHE -

RSN + RFTERTTAINE (www.dahsing.com) & i
RUEARB 2 HBEM - DEIREBE - UK
FRRTEERRBREREN - UHAREE
ZEBROEHGETED -

(VIIl) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Continued)

During 2014, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

Established and approved the terms of reference of the Board

- Reviewed and approved the updated versions of Code of
Conduct for Directors’ Securities Dealing, Shareholders’
Communication Policy and terms of reference of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

- Approved the Corporate Governance Report of 2013

- Established and approved board governance policy and
procedures for the Company

- Reviewed the Group Remuneration Policy

(IX) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(1) Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication with
shareholders. The Annual General Meeting provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the
Board and all Directors make an effort to attend. The Chairmen of the
Board Committees and a representative of the external auditors also
attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in connection
with the Company’s annual and interim results. Apart from the
above, designated senior executives maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s development, subject to compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers timely access to the Company’s financial information,
announcements/circulars to shareholders and information on the
Company’s corporate governance structure and practices, in addition
to business and corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.
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(IX) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
(2) Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
the Company may put forth requisition to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting, (ii) be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and (jiii) be deposited at the Company’s
registered office at 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong. It may also consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
(i) the contact details of the requisitionists(s) and (iii) the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
Such meeting should be held on a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the meeting is given.

If the Directors fail to convene the Extraordinary General Meeting
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of the
requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) by reason of
the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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(IX) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
(3) Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders, or not less than 50 shareholders, who are entitled
to vote on a resolution at a general meeting, may:

- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement with respect
to matters to be dealt with at a general meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for further details on
the shareholder qualifications and the procedures and timeline in
connection with the above.

(4) Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s attention
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at 36th
Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong.
Questions about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting may also be put to the Company Secretary.

(5) Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company’s practices in relation to communication
with shareholders and the investment community. The Policy is
available on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com).

(X) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In view of the coming into force of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) on 3 March 2014, the Company put
forward a special resolution at the 2014 Annual General Meeting held
on 27 May 2014 to amend the Articles of Association (including the
abolition of the memorandum of association and the removal of the
objects clause) and to adopt a new set of Articles of Association.
The adoption of the new Articles of Association was approved by the
shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting. The new Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the website of Dah Sing
Bank (www.dahsing.com).
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(XI) COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who possesses the relevant qualifications and experience
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. She has
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
her skills and knowledge during the financial year ended 31 December
2014.

(XIl) CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions as set out in
Note 49 to the financial statements, all the INEDs of the Company
have reviewed the said transactions and confirmed that the said
transactions have been entered into:

(1)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

() in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors, PwC, to
report on the Company’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out in Note 49 to the financial statements
in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter
needs to be submitted by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the
“Company”) is banking investment holding. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 32 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and geographical
segments are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 73.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share and a
total of HK$140,153,563.70 in cash was paid on 25 September 2014.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.26
per share in cash, totalling HK$364,442,469.30.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 45 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 46 to the financial statements.
DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,693,000.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Note 34 to the financial statements.
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EEg DIRECTORS
AEEAREAREABILEZFTFA - The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong

e Chairman
mEH Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

BlE/E Vice Chairman
Bk Robert Tsai-To Sze*
REE* Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*
R s ) > Seng-Lee Chan*
RRHE* Yuen-Tin Ng*
FHER Shoji Hirai
FAEE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

EFMICEFTIHABAR Managing Director and Chief Executive
Fia% Gary Pak-Ling Wang
CBUHNITEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
RIRA N B A ERARIE107 R108158E - E In accordance with Articles 107 and 108 of the Company’s Articles
Fe=H7— (I&RABLETPR=92—)H of Association, one-third (or the number nearest to and not less
EMEFHRRZKEANER ZRRAFK2H than one-third) of the Directors being those who have been longest
BER - REBEMAIFE107 210812 EAEEAE in office shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting. The
ST o IBIBNIATE - ESPESLLE  FHEAA Directors retiring under Articles 107 and 108 are, however, eligible for
MR A BREE 2 RRAFRGRE & re-election. Accordingly, Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong, Harold Tsu-
BRWREEERET - Hing Wong and Seng-Lee Chan will retire, and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year, and the Company still considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “SEHK”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they have taken on or are deemed
to have acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers and the code of conduct for directors’
securities dealing adopted by the Company (collectively the “Model
Code”) were as follows:
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F) ERQBAREBEBEAE 2RO ER

(Continued)

a)

Interests in shares of the Company and its associated
corporation

HERT
BB
EEADH
Percentage
ROHE of interests
Number of shares in the
BARER HEER Hirigs &3HER  total number
Personal Corporate Other Total of issued
2 Director Interests Interests® Interests Interests shares
BEAQARALBERRS Number of ordinary shares
in the Company
TTE¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,955% - 1,045,626,955 74.60
BEAHEAEEERAR Number of ordinary shares
EERRA in Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited
TTFE¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong - 11,096,495  126,189,187® 137,285,682 40.97
i Notes:

(1)  ERENEEERDIERENBRRAS LAE=
DZ—HALRERZ RRIMFAEZRD

(2 WUEBRNEEITESBRENKTEREERR
RR 2 B ik H RIS GBI EXVEE
EWREREANRE 74.59% 2B ER KT F
IR ERIE B 2 AR RIRG ©

@) WEROTIEATTEREFIEKE SR
ZERERIAAESRRERARADBES

Ao
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The corporate interests are in respect of shares held by companies in
which the director controls one third or more of the voting powers at
general meetings.

Such shares include the corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong
under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial share interests in the
shares of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited which currently holds a
controlling interest of 74.59% in the Company and interests in the shares
of the Company held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh
Wong.

Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation

i) Share option schemes of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Option Scheme”)
and, at the same time, the termination of the Share Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on 12 June 2004 (the “Old
DSBG Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be
offered under the Old DSBG Option Scheme after its termination
but the provisions of the Old DSBG Option Scheme remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
exercise of all options granted prior to the termination of the
Old DSBG Option Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
termination.

In accordance with the requirements of The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), a summary of the Old DSBG Option
Scheme and the New DSBG Option Scheme (collectively the
“Schemes”) is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the Schemes:
The purpose of the Schemes is to attract, motivate and
retain high quality executives to contribute to the Group’s
business and growth.

(2) Participants of the Schemes:
Eligible participants of the Schemes included directors

and employees holding supervisory positions in the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

)
3)

Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Schemes and percentage of total number of issued shares
as at the date of this Directors’ Report:

Following the termination of the Old DSBG Option
Scheme, no further share options can be granted under
the Old DSBG Option Scheme.

The number of shares available for issue under the
New DSBG Option Scheme and any other schemes is
70,076,781 shares, representing 5% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at the date of this
Directors’ Report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Schemes:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the Schemes and the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of
the Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the Old DSBG Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in five equal tranches between
the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

)
©6)

Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under the Old DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable
within one year from the date of grant.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 21 days upon offer of granting of
options or the date on which the conditions (if any) for the
offer are satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules
and is determined as no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company'’s shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
for options granted before the commencement of the
Companies Ordinance, the nominal value of the shares of
HK$1 each in the capital of the Company. (The Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), which came into force on 3 March
2014, adopts a mandatory system of no nominal value for
all Hong Kong incorporated companies having a share
capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for all
shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of the
Company have no nominal value.)
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BEERTHARER @ INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(Continued)
Z) EARQRTREBLEEZRRETEE b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
TR REER @) Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
] A ELZFRAR 1B Z) (4) i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
Q) EEEEMsENE (9) Remaining life of the Schemes:
KR8 B E R IR ER 2170 2014 The Old DSBG Option Scheme was terminated on 27 May
is H 27 B IE - FTABRBAFRTT 2014 and all outstanding share options granted under the
EE IR M S ARITEZ Old DSBG Option Scheme and yet to be exercised shall
pL\H%E1D97"$x$Z o R¥TIRITEE R remain valid. The New DSBG Option Scheme shall be
REiESt 2l 201445 A 27 B 10 valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
FRNBR - £2024F5A26H f@m ° from 27 May 2014 and expiring at the close of 26 May
2024.
RAIRITER BRI E B 201465 A No share options were granted under the New DSBG Option
27 BEARE « I AT RARE R IBE RFTIR Scheme since its adoption on 27 May 2014.

TREFTRRE DL -

BERAIBITEBEZRESS > A28 Pursuant to the Old DSBG Option Scheme, certain Directors of
MHEE2E W% AIMETESERT the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted
RAMIRITER B E R BT 2 RAXHE - options under the Old DSBG Option Scheme. Details of the
ERAFMBITEEERBETEI T NRITE movements during the year ended, and the status as at, 31
Z A REA R BB MO EFEEZ2014F12 A December 2014 of the Company’s outstanding share options
B1TBILFEAZEERFRESR ZFFBN which have been granted under the Old DSBG Option Scheme
N are as follows:
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

TR REER @) Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
i) AR Az SRR E (&) i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
AREEEZALARGEE
Number of Company’s shares in the options
Ro014% RRE Ro014%
1A18  014ER  E2EE0 014ER NMER 128318
K& Bl Adjustment % XM L i RiiA %8
Held at Granted  forRights  Exercised Lapsed Held at Exercise Grant Exercise
ARA Grantee 1172014 during 2014 Issue® during 2014  during 2014 31/12/2014 price date period
(Bm) (RIR/F) (BIRI%)
(HKS) (DY) (DY)
£z Directors
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 2,800,000 - 107,927 - - 2,907,927 8.910 121212011 121272012~
1211212017
1,000,000 - 38,545 - - 1,038,545 7.960 211212012 21/12/2013 -
2112/2018
TR Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,600,000 - 100218 - - 2700218 8910 12112/2011 12/12/2012 -
1201212017
900,000 - 34,691 - - 934,691 7960 211212012 21/12/2013 -
2111212018
EftESBEP  Aggregate of other employees @ 2,400,000 - 92,510 - - 2492510 8910 12/42/2011 1211202012 -
121212017
2,100,000 - 80,946 (166,168)%  (249,251) 1,765,527 796" 21142/2012  2112/2013 -
21/12/2018
- 300,0009 11,564 - - 311,564 11.680 26/03/2014  26/03/2015 -
26/03/2020
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of the Company
completed in May 2014. The key summary of related adjustments
had been announced by the Company on 8 May 2014.

) Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who
are directors, senior executives or officers of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

3) On 26 March 2014, the Company granted 300,000 share options
at an exercise price of HK$12.13 per share. The closing price of
the shares of the Company on 25 March 2014 (being the business
day immediately preceding 26 March 2014 on which the options
were granted) was HK$12.00 per share (the adjusted closing price
due to the Rights Issue completed in May 2014 was HK$11.571
per share).

(4) The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2014 was HK$13.995.

(5) All the existing share options under the Old DSBG Option Scheme
shall be exercisable upon vesting in five equal tranches between
the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

6) No share options under the Old DSBG Option Scheme were
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(7) Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 50 to the financial statements.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company

On 28 April 2005, the shareholders of DSFH approved to adopt
a share option scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, a
summary of the DSFH Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of the DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
DSFH group of companies.

(2) Participants of the DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in DSFH
group of companies as the Board may in its sole discretion
determine to be eligible to participate in the DSFH Option
Scheme.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of total number of issued
shares as at the date of this Directors’ Report:

The number of shares available for issue under the DSFH
Option Scheme is 11,021,984 shares, representing 3.29%
of the total number of issued shares of DSFH as at the
date of this Directors’ Report.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the DSFH
Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the DSFH Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of
DSFH, and is specified when related options are granted.
Shares under the options must be taken up within 10
years from the date of grant. All the existing share options
under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon
vesting in five equal tranches between the first and fifth
anniversaries from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH, and is specified when related options
are granted. None of the existing share options under the
DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year
from the date of grant.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

™)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting
of options or such period the Board may determine from
time to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules and is determined as no less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of DSFH shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
for options granted before the commencement of the
Companies Ordinance, the nominal value of the shares
of HK$2 each in the capital of DSFH. (The Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), which came into force on 3 March
2014, adopts a mandatory system of no nominal value for
all Hong Kong incorporated companies having a share
capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for
all shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of
DSFH have no nominal value.)

I DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

67



ESgWRESE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEERTHARER @

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

Z) EARRTREBLEIEZRRETEE b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
TR REER @) Company and its associated corporation (Continued)
i) AREZIERNEIAFT 2 BEEEFR i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
NELZ RRIESE (&) Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)
(9 KR eRRREE M ERA W - (9) Remaining life of the DSFH Option Scheme:
K& rb R EI R 2005F4 A28 The DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
HEF10FRNER  £2015F4 7 a period of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and
27 BIE ° expiring at the close of 27 April 2015.
BIEXFSRRIRESE KRS RE Pursuant to the DSFH Option Scheme, certain directors
TELENBARMNE TESERTAH of the Company and its major operating subsidiaries were
SRARARETEI T 2R E - EAFTRE granted options under the DSFH Option Scheme. Details of
RIS EI TN ARITEZ A RE RS the movements during the year ended, and the status as at,
AP ERIE Z2014F12 A31BIEFERZ 31 December 2014 of the DSFH’s outstanding share options
BE) M FREBRZ BT ¢ which have been granted under the DSFH Option Scheme are
as follows:
IRERZZ AN ERRAEE
Number of DSFH shares in the options
Ro014% RRE Ro014%
1R1B 014k EZBEY  0UER  014ER 128318
2] Rt Adjustment il % <22} i RitA T8
Held at Granted  forRights  Exercised Lapsed Held at Exercise Grant Exercise
ARA Grantee 1172014 during 2014 Issue® during 2014  during 2014 31/12/2014 price date period
(&) (B/R/IE) (BIR/E)
MY oMY My
£ Director
THE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong 250,000 - 10,767 - - 260,767 38.350  12/12/2011 12/12/2012 -
1211212017
150,000 - 6,460 - - 156,460 31,880 21/12/2012  21/12/2013 -
2112/2018
A e Others @ 500,000 - 21,534 - - 521,534 38,350 12/12/2011  12/12/2012 -
1211212017
250,000 - 10,767 - - 260,767 31.880 21/12/2012  21/12/2013 -
2112/2018
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and its associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, the holding company of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue of DSFH completed in
April 2014. The key summary of related adjustments had been
announced by DSFH on 29 April 2014.

) Share options were granted to certain employees of DSFH or
its subsidiaries, who are directors, senior executives or officers
of the major operating subsidiaries of DSFH and are working
under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous
contracts” for the purposes of the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong.

(3) All the existing share options under the DSFH Option Scheme
shall be exercisable upon vesting in five equal tranches between
the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(4) No share options under the DSFH Option Scheme were cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(5) Details of the computation of the value of options are shown in
Note 50 to the financial statements.

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at 31
December 2014, none of the Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO which are required to be recorded
in the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(Continued)

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As of 31 December 2014, the following are the persons, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company whose interests are
disclosed above, who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the
Company.

HERITROBHZ
EREALO
Percentage of

FERHEE interests in the

& 54 Number of total number
Shareholder Capacity shares held of issued shares®
IBEE HHEEGREEETHEER

%18 e R A e
Christine Yen Wong Deemed interest by virtue of her

spouse having a notifiable interest 1,045,626,955(" 74.60
RieREERRAA Eatkn
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Beneficial interest 1,045,461,643 74.59
LB SRR AR EREAREEEZ
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interest 1,045,461,643%@ 74.59
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

1) Such shares represented the deemed share interest of Christine Yen
Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial
shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the
relevant share capital of the Company and interest in the Company held
through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling
interest. Christine Yen Wong is taken to have a duty of disclosure
in respect of the deemed interest in the Company. These interests
comprise the same interest of David Shou-Yeh Wong under the heading
of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

2) Such shares represent DSFH’s corporate interest in the Company
indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBCIT”) in
trust for a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family members. HSBCIT is taken to have a duty of
disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company held through
its controlled companies. Related shares have been included in the
“Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the
heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

3) Percentage of interests held by each named shareholder was calculated
with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2014.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2014, no short positions were recorded in the register of
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by
the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2014,
calculated under section 79B of the former Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$72,479,000 (2013: HK$2,144,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been set out in Note 49 to the financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 years are included in the section of the annual report under
“Financial Summary”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group derived less
than 30% of interest income and other operating income from its 5
largest customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING THE
LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2014 2013
FBUA Interest income 4,932,409 4,363,209
FEZH Interest expense (1,941,937) (1,565,713)
BRE WA Net interest income 6 2,990,472 2,797,496
AR5 E KBS WA Fee and commission income 1,061,287 935,902
AR5 E kA& H Fee and commission expense (229,567) (233,989)
FIREERASBKA Net fee and commission income 7 831,720 701,913
FEEWA Net trading income 8 282,400 260,077
H b @ ug A Other operating income 9 60,429 57,688
EEWA Operating income 4,165,021 3,817,174
EES Operating expenses 10 (2,127,363)  (1,975,568)
MBRFE R Z & E%F Operating profit before impairment losses 2,037,658 1,841,606
EFREEEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 18 (472,962) (309,806)
HRREBEZ 2 EEER Operating profit after impairment losses 1,564,696 1,531,800
& HAhEE & E 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets 14 (2,579) (2,715)
S EMENTERRE 2 Flz=m Net gain on fair value adjustment
of investment properties 15 56,809 34,785
HEFEHRE 2 FkE/(B1R) Net gain/(loss) on disposal of investments
in securities 16 17,036 (100,341)
REHEH A A RRE 2 BB Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate - (56,971)
FE(REE R 2 LA Share of results of an associate 602,299 578,556
FEMR L RIERIEEE 2 £4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 20,657 17,311
BB R Profit before taxation 2,258,918 2,002,425
sl Taxation 17 (225,309) (245,987)
FERA Profit for the year 2,033,609 1,756,438
SECAAT ¢ Attributable to:
R AR R Non-controlling interests (32 (32)
PN/ ) 5 Shareholders of the Company 18 2,033,641 1,756,470
FERA Profit for the year 2,033,609 1,756,438
BRE Dividends
[Ehidaal- N Interim dividend paid 19 140,154 112,623
FORAREIR BB A B S Proposed final dividend/final dividend paid 19 364,442 336,369
504,596 448,992
Fedecgd]
BRER Earnings per share Restated
L9/ Basic 20 HK$1.49 HK$1.35
e Diluted 20 HK$1.48 HK$1.35
80 EEF 258 H 2 M ARG Sk 2 — The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2014 2013
FERF Profit for the year 2,033,609 1,756,438
FEHMEE RS Other comprehensive income for the year
TEENDEERE Items that will not be reclassified to the
WaBRMIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
1TEE Premises
REEFDBETERKE Reserves arising from reclassification of
I [ premises to investment properties 36,533 122,248
Higrlge@ sy ERE ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
WzsARAIIER - to the consolidated income statement:
BHZE Investments in securities
RN R 2 RN ERS Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NSRS securities recognised in equity 260,490 50,413
ANEE (W), EEEE K Fair value (gain)/loss realised and
EE B IR transferred to income statement upon:
— HERAHHERS - Disposal of available-for-sale securities (21,692) (107,287)
— HERERRAHEEERF - Disposal of held-to-maturity securities
B EERRIHELSR and investments in securities included
BREER R ERZIEER in the loans and receivables category
ZEHIGE which were previously reclassified
from the available-for-sale category 3,756 135,647
KEEHREZS RERIE Deferred income tax on movements
in investment revaluation reserve (34,183) (20,539)
208,371 58,234
HESIMEREBI SRR MIE L Z8  Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign entities (108,600) 105,918
MERFRIAR 2 FE b 2 E I Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 136,304 286,400
NBRBEE 2 FEEERREE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,169,913 2,042,838
DECEAT : Attributable to:
R FIREAR R Non-controlling interests (32) (32)
ZIN/NGT ) Shareholders of the Company 2,169,945 2,042,870
HBRHRER2EFEEEREEAT Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,169,913 2,042,838
F80HZE B2 WFTI ARG E Mgz — The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
&5 o consolidated financial statements.
RIRITEEBR AR | 201455540 X




2014412 A31H
(PAB R TITALZR)

As at 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Are IR R

Bt
Note 2014 2013
BE ASSETS
e MIEIRITH & Cash and balances with banks 21 14,838,986 8,270,886
EIR1T1 212 @ A REHAR TR Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 22 5,324,811 4,101,293
BEEERENES Trading securities 23 6,850,362 6,335,788
EEAAFEFEZEHE Financial assets designated at
STABENERERE fair value through profit or loss 23 129,633 56,081
PTHESRTE Derivative financial instruments 24 756,829 687,069
ZHEERNEMERE Advances and other accounts 25 115,864,095 108,198,395
Al EE S Available-for-sale securities 27 23,361,861 27,128,417
R HEA Held-to-maturity securities 28 10,832,940 5,669,289
RN AR E Investment in an associate 30 3,746,918 3,304,993
HEZEHFEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 31 65,694 59,657
S Goodwill 33 811,690 811,690
| EE Intangible assets 33 61,844 65,242
TEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 34 1,786,594 1,861,452
"B Investment properties 35 814,229 653,921
BUEAFR IH & = Current income tax assets 999 =
FEREFRITHE = Deferred income tax assets 42 80,591 22,975
EESGT Total assets 185,328,076 167,227,148
8fE LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 1,572,467 1,995,297
PTHEEmMIEA Derivative financial instruments 24 1,146,825 1,117,256
FEBEERAENEE Trading liabilities 37 5,597,614 3,362,473
BPEFR Deposits from customers 38 142,580,239 129,843,151
BEITHIFREE Certificates of deposit issued 39 6,109,777 6,132,561
BEBEITHEBRES Issued debt securities 40 - 775,385
RIBET Subordinated notes 41 5,432,378 3,762,471
HBR B kTER Other accounts and accruals 2,658,437 2,928,230
BNEAFRIH & & Current income tax liabilities 208,693 210,451
BELEFIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 42 65,077 34,304
aEas Total liabilities 165,371,507 150,161,579
s EQUITY
RIS RERR R Non-controlling interests 15,416 15,448
AN TR RE(L S Equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders
A& Share capital 45 6,850,354 1,251,371
1D (E Share premium 46 = 4,404,692
Hinf# e (BREREEF) Other reserves
(including retained earnings) 46 12,726,357 11,093,729
B RHAR B Proposed final dividend 46 364,442 300,329
BRES Shareholders’ funds 19,941,153 17,050,121
EEEE Total equity 19,956,569 17,065,569
EnRkaEas Total equity and liabilities 185,328,076 167,227,148

BEEN 20154 3 A 25 B #EE R IRFERA -

THE

EBZE BFEEHE

FB0HEH 258 MR NABABHRL
i

March 2015.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Director

DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED |

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Managing Director

The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2014
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Bt
Note 2014 2013
BN RIEE Investments in subsidiaries 32 7,058,408 5,854,653
MENEE Current assets
SRITHE SR Bank balances 21 111,290 46,773
FEMER K E At BR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 453 449
e S ENGIE Q] Amounts due from subsidiaries 32 180,305 180,207
292,048 227,429
nBEE Current liabilities
TEIRE A M EMERE Accrued expenses and other accounts 3,070 2,641
AR EYNGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries 32 416,863 416,863
419,933 419,504
B A A Net current liabilities (127,885) (192,075)
6,930,523 5,662,578
S EQUITY
A& Share capital 45 6,850,354 1,251,371
&% B Share premium 46 = 4,404,692
Hib & (BREERBEF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 46 (284,273) (293,814)
FORAREAR 2 Proposed final dividend 46 364,442 300,329
EEEE Total equity 6,930,523 5,662,578
EEEN20154F 3 A 25 At RIRREZA - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
March 2015.
EFE FHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EE EFpE Director Managing Director
580 EEF 258 H 2 Mk ARG ISk 2 — The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

== N\ 7

2BHE

HE20145FE12 A1 BIEEE

(LABEE T ThzFIR)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RARRREEER
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

REIE
BE
B R{7EE Hitiffe REEF Non- ERAq
Share Share Other Retained  controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
201451 A1 RE# Balance at 1 January 2014 1,251,371 4,404,692 1,037,187 10,356,871 15,448 17,065,569
R2014E3R3ABER Transition to no-par regime
REEEE on 3 March 2014 4,404,692  (4,404,692) - - - =
FERANGES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 136,304 2,033,641 (32) 2,169,913
FTHIRRRA Issue of shares under right issue
(BHBEARAER) (net of share issue expenses) 1,192,533 - - - - 1,192,533
TR Exercise of share options 1,758 - (435) - - 1,323
IR AR D AER Provision for equity-settled
Hibgm Bt share-based compensation - - 3,754 - - 3,754
2013 ERHRE 2013 final dividend - - - (336,369) - (336,369)
2014 FHRERE 2014 interim dividend - - - (140,154) - (140,154)
2014512 B 31 HE&R Balance at 31 December 2014 6,850,354 - 1,176,810 11,913,989 15,416 19,956,569
BZE12A1 BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013
BERREBRHA Proposed final dividend
R R EAAR B included in retained earnings 364,442 300,329
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GARREBR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2014F12 A31 HIEFE (B) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
NG e
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
R PR
6
R R AEE EthiEE REZF Non- ERat
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings interests equity
20131 f1 A& Balance at 1 January 2013 1,251,371 4,404,692 746,546 9,000,839 15,480 15,418,928
FERANGER Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 286,400 1,756,470 32) 2,042,838
SARRAE 2 [T ARR (DR Provision for equity-settled
HEhm & share-based compensation = = 4241 = = 4,94
2012 E KBRS 2012 final dividend - - - (87815) - (287815)
2013 ERERE 2013 interim dividend - - - (112,629 - (112629
2013512 A31 B& & Balance at 31 December 2013 1,251,371 4,404,692 1,037,187 10,356,871 15,448 17,065,569
80 E 2 F 258 B 2 M ARG sk 2 — The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

\t =
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HZE2014F12 A31 HILFE
(APE¥E T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L

Note 2014 2013
RETFH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
wESEER A (FTA) R /F5E Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 47(a) 5,571,711  (4,076,015)
RETBHZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
FRIMR BT A A Additional investment in associate company - (330,000)
BEITE  REVEKR Purchase of premises, investment

HAbEE & E properties and other fixed assets (139,556) (229,636)
HETE - AWM Proceeds from disposal of premises,

MEMEEEEMSRIR investment properties and other fixed assets 178 2,897
REES AR ©FE Net cash used in investing activities (139,378) (556,739)
METBZ2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITE RN Issue of ordinary shares

(BHRETRMNHER) (net of share issue expenses) 1,193,856 -
BITIREER Issue of subordinated notes 1,731,250 =
& Ol & 75 3% Debt securities redeemed (775,285)  (1,938,463)
S BBITREGS RMES Interest paid on subordinated notes

X%Z%‘J 2 and debt securities issued (246,560) (258,211)
k2 E AR AR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (476,523) (400,438)
BMEFEERA(FTA) RS FE Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,426,738  (2,597,112)
HeRERBLEE M Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

(RA) B8 cash equivalents 6,859,071  (7,229,866)
FUHReRERFLEE Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 9,305,998 16,502,405
EREE 28 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (83,628) 33,459
FRESRERELER Cash and cash equivalents at

end of the year 47(b) 16,081,441 9,305,998
FB80EEF 258 H 2 M ARG Mk 2 — The notes on pages 80 to 258 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(LABREFThz5I7R)
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W BB BB F S LT 108 57 A & B L 36
o
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2.1 mEEE
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BERTEIAE ) RM 2 BBV REER (&
BUBHREER ] AREMEENERNER
MBHELER - FAGHE([FESFER])
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RIMBITEBER AT | 2014F F5

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related
services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 March 2015.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“NCO”),
“Accounts and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to the NCO, the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, fair value-
hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) designated at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the
period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2014:

. Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011), “Investment entities”, provide consolidation relief
to those parents which qualify to be an investment entity
as defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have
impact to the financial statements of the Group.

° Amendments to HKAS 32, “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”, clarifies the requirements for offsetting
financial instruments and addressed inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation”. There
is no material impact to the financial statements of the
Group as a result of this amendment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

o Amendments to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets -
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets”, removes certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of cash generating units which had been included
in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS 13. There is no material
impact to the financial statements of the Group as a result
of this amendment.

. Amendments to HKAS 39, “Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”, provides relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. These amendments do not have impact to
the financial statements of the Group.

o HK(IFRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the accounting for
an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax. The
interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that
gives rise to the payment of a levy and when should a
liability be recognised. The Group is not currently subject
to significant levies so the impact on the Group is not
material.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2014, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of
HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified into two measurement categories: those
measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The
main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than in the income statement, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch. In December 2013, HKFRS 9 was
further amended when the requirements related to hedge
accounting (other than specific accounting for open portfolios
on macro hedging) were added.

In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board
published the full and final version of IFRS 9 (which is closely
followed by HKFRS 9) and set the effective date of IFRS 9 as
1 January 2018 although earlier adoption of the new standard
is permitted. The final IFRS 9 sets out, amongst other things,
the classification and measurement requirements for financial
instruments as described above, the requirement for a new,
expected-loss impairment model that will require more timely
recognition of expected credit losses, and a substantially-
reformed model for hedge accounting that aligns the accounting
treatment with risk management activities.

The Group has already commenced the assessment of the full
impact and so far has not decided to early adopt the standard,
which shall be effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The NCO came into effect on 3 March 2014. On this effective
date, the concepts of nominal (par) value, share premium
and authorised share capital for all shares of Hong Kong
incorporated companies are abolished. Any amount received
for issuing equity shares of a company on or after 3 March 2014
should be recorded as part of share capital. The effect of this
transition on the Company is to subsume balance in the share
premium account into share capital as set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 of the NCO. There is no impact on the number
of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
shareholders.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the NCO came into operation as from the Company’s
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of the NCO. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the NCO on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of the NCO. So far the
Group has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements will be affected.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31

December.

(@) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and this is the basis on which information about the assets
is provided internally to the key management personnel
such as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer; or

I DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

89



B AR R Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

90

(LABBEFThz5I7R)

AFERITEBBRAR | 2014554

2. FESHHFEEE@m)
26 SREE@®@
2.6.1 73 (&)

(FF) URFlartE AAZE ARz a)%
BEE &)

(i) ARITETENTREEMZARDT
ATAZFUEREREET AL IFE

FERARFEIIREEZ EREENTE
RRRERR [FEENRFEFERLELE
FTABSENEREE] -

(Z2) BEtREKNE

B R E W IR R A R R 5w E I A
BEAEERREENFTESRE
E BRF)ZEAEEFENRHANE
HALEX D BERFIERERENERE
E - RaEARKEEGEREEE SN

() ZEAREBEN I ERREE A
HENEREE (R ZFAKERE
EEXTRASNZ RE A gE W = 9156 5%
BE2E10 -

(A) ARG E

TR S BRAET WIS AURER T
AR 2 T ESBATE -
B R A T i B R RS A B A
AR RBE S ESAE  EXAREE
BRI ERRE -

RN

-

—

FFR 2]

52 B HAIR A Th BB E =X Rl B E AR K
EFEEHE  MAEEEREEFRERER
RENFREZHZITESREE °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.6

2.6.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Auvailable-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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2.6

2.6.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets are
derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on

held-to-maturity investments.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;

o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for
example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;

° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated
are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new
loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past due again is
considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of financial liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

I DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

g



BRSSP oE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

100

(CAEREFThz5I7R)

2. FEETHERBEm@

29 THESRTIERYHTETEE @

fid & H b & B T B 2 LA HTAE T A (fIan ey
BREFA A BHEEPYIFUARBERRE
FEMEMEENEHEETRESTAESE)
AP K L g B 2 S 40 30 SR U B AR -
TANAIFNRFEFEREEHAABER
AMERERITETRRE - RAKBIERERTEZ
RREHBARFEFEREEGT ARSI
WENRITETRERAFESE  EAFER
BEROWERAER

RAFEERIEBNIDEIORNZITETR
EBWIEEREP TR - & IZABURE S
HEZHE - ARBEEE TITETARCDHER
BEXEBEATENETTA - AEEFEL
HeEETHRENTETARRY e EE -

AREBM RT3 5 b 5 Fe S 6 T LB AT i 1R
BNEE  YEEERRERBRNETE TH
R BHIREE o AEE TR EFERE
AREHRSNTET AT HHHATEZS
BRERBEHTE

(FF) RFEE

EEEEFEGHEAFEURNITET
EMAFESS  EREEFRBRIEED
HHEEXABENTAAFEZS IR
UzsBE A DFEERA - AR FEE 2 &
MITEZZFWeE B BTAR -

LR BN A LIRS RENRE
AIEMERAN R AEFE ZRETIEE RE
EH) SRR B R B HIRT AR M M s R A
HEEEEREBMNEE HEZWE A
Bk

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and major part of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding
item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.
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2. FEETHEEBEm 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 HNEBRE ()
() FEEE T2 5] (c) Group companies

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

PREERREZI B IR EEER
(I FBBREEZ B8 ) 2 XERET

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

104
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that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or
remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment  Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or associate is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Company’s
share of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that
entity in the Company’s statement of financial position exceeds the
Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets
including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.
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2. FESHBHEHME@) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 EERF @) 2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(FF) RIKZET (&) (a)  Pension obligations (Continued)

EFEMRHEATESEE R ATHIGENK The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
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schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”
account, in addition to the booking of paid-up capital at par for
each new share to be issued upon the exercise of the option.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The EC and the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the
authority delegated by the Board oversee and guide the management
of different risks which are more particularly managed and dealt with
by the Group Risk Division and different functional committees. In
addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of
risk management and the control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement in 2013. The Risk strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy and
direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the tolerance
for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of return and key
corporate objectives and covers the areas including target returns to
shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other key risk measures.
The Group Risk Division is responsible for the ongoing monitoring of the
compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular reporting
of the status to the RMCC and the Board.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes
positions in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major credit
exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees are
all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors
and senior business and credit officers as members. Credit risk
measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements
are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies
and are approved by different levels of management based upon
established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by
management, credit committees and Group Risk Division. The
Group’s internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits
to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures, and
regulatory guidelines.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@ Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

(i) The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

(i)  Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both
outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

(ili)  The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee, documentary
letter of credit, standby letter of credit and undrawn commitment
on legally bound facilities. Their credit risk is similar to loans
except for documentary letters of credit which are usually short
term and self-liquidating and carry a low level of credit risk and
capital charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d)  Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or
counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their
exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the Group
Credit Committee with reference to the financial strength and
credit rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of
collateral and their characteristics are established within the credit
policies, as are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal
documentation establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and
unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or other credit
enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.

(@) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

o Charges over deposits.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances (Continued)

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such
as setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement
limits and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover,
the Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to
enter into International Swaps and Derivatives Association
(“ISDA”) Agreement or analogous master agreement in order
to follow the standardised market practice of close-out netting
arrangement in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and

derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at

the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under

HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual
account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but

do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on-and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

2014 2013
BEEE BB
IEE TR IEEREREE
ERREBX Botk ERREBX ERaNsd
B2tk  Impairment B2 Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
£E Group advances loan balance advances loan balance
cyO 0/0 0/0 0/0
487 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 99.2 0.2 99.2 0.2
2—FRlEEE 2 — special mention 0.2 10.1 0.2 6.5
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.6 41.7 0.6 44.6

BERARBZAXRTER ZEEFNDERME
HwoREm

F14AR [EF ] B AKEANERTRFGER
ZFEIREIP  KREFARKNIENS RHHE
A2HNEMNENERAS ZENLTES °

F245 [FHFE] B AREABERTRR
RRZE10M - RRERALRRESE - RiET
RRBHEERRERL  AINESAKERRE
58K -

F 3R [ RAFRAT ] BEREEANIFERFTR
AR ZENEFIH - ARERALREARA
EEERMEZREE A2 EUKRE B AKE
REBNBRLEERZERRATER - BHA
AEAE R/ FFEBBRZER - XIHAZERK
RFEBTE BRI RIERERSEEWD -

100.0 100.0

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

or other credit enhancements

£E Group 2014 2013
EHREEABRANEEZEERRENT Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
e MIERITH R Cash and balances with banks 14,838,986 8,270,886
ERT1IZE12 AR Placements with banks maturing
B3| EE e between one and twelve months 5,324,811 4,101,293
HIEEBERZNES Trading securities 6,850,362 6,335,788
EEAAFEFE2AHES Financial assets designated at fair
FFABERNCRIEE value through profit or loss 129,633 56,081
PTHESRTE Derivative financial instruments 756,829 687,069
EEER KRB Loans and advances to customers
EAAER B Loans and advances to individuals
—EAR — Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473
—RIBER - Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139
—Hh - Others 8,660,111 6,674,529
BEERREK Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—HHER - Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155
— B ER - Mortgages 14,074,495 13,139,615
—EB5®E - Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081
—Hh — Others 12,289,676 12,377,528
B5EE Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648
Hfth & 7 Other assets 3,784,908 3,678,102
BREEFRERFIELER 2 Investments in securities included in
BHEZE the loans and receivables category - 1,137,631
A EFS Available-for-sale securities
—ERBESH — Debt securities 22,960,382 26,851,865
FE L BB S Held-to-maturity securities 10,832,940 5,669,289
178,092,954 160,691,172
EREEABRINEBZEERBRENT : Credit risk exposures relating to
off-balance sheet items are as follows:
HBEREEMEERB RN E Financial guarantees and other credit
related contingent liabilities 1,487,700 2,795,495
B R SE R B A5 SRR 2 A Loan commitments and other credit
related commitments 69,193,856 67,734,378
70,681,556 70,529,873
12 A31H At 31 December 248,774,510 231,221,045
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit
risk exposure for the Group at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

. 5% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2013: 6%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2013: 98%);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 0.35% (2013: 0.40%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

° 71% (2013: 75%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @)
3.2 SER@m
325 B RB

BEPERRBFBAMT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

£H Group 2014 2013
8 H K A B RLE Neither past due nor individually
impaired 103,540,813 96,240,434

B HAB R E R RE Past due but not individually impaired 1,340,946 1,356,146
& R E Individually impaired 348,287 380,940
Pk Gross 105,230,046 97,977,520
R EZERE Less: allowance for impairment (508,813) (442,026)
R Net 104,721,233 97,535,494
£5 Group 2014 2013
EER KRR Impaired loans and advances
— ERIRE (G (F)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 348,287 380,940
—fRAamE(GE(2)) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 20,179 15,355

368,466 396,295
REZEE Impairment allowances made
— [ERIE AL (FE () — Individually assessed (Note (c)) (217,744) (244,294)
—fREa R (E(2)) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (18,578) (13,838)

(236,322) (258,132)

132,144 138,163
FEERRATE" Fair value of collaterals held* 169,394 92,205
BEERMBRHEFERK Impaired loans and advances

MBFBE AN as a % of total loans and
advances to customers 0.35% 0.40%

* EHRGAFENEEERRTELEFCRERS * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

B MEPREEEE

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @)

3.2 SER@m

325 B KRB (&)

it

() (ARREERDZEANRERAEEREET
— RS R R E R R BB R E (18 %
B MBS MZIBABHEZER Y AT
KRS RBERTE WA SEHES o

(Z) HAREERRDRIELS NGRA EEERET
i B R R A 2 3R B B E SR (3B AR 00 K 7
BHRBR - FER PR BEE G R
(B2 TR BB A R B E S ) — 21 o

(A) ALFERREEHEEZEERERN12831HE

ZERREE -

B R R B R 2 R B 4l 48 %8 5/508,813,000 74
70 (2013 4F : 442,026,000 Jt. ) + B 4 ¥ (& 5
A E 3 2 EAFE217,744,0007% 7T (2013 4F -
244,294,000 70 ) K #ikir & EEFH A ER
2 48 B8 iR A 2 {$291,069,0007% T (2013 4F ¢
197,732,000/ 7T) © MizE25RRHE Z AR FEXK
REHRREAMR B B 2 REEEER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.2

3.2.5

Note:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$508,813,000 (2013: HK$442,026,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$217,744,000 (2013: HK$244,294,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$291,069,000 (2013: HK$197,732,000) provided on loans

assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment

allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,

and other accounts is provided in Note 25.

I DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

127



BIH5 Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

128

(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3.
3.2

B 75 [ B B (o

EER K @)

325 BRIREB# (&)
(FF) #man B R #EE B i (B2 Bk R #430 (@

EXRBSECTEEREREBHNE
BRI E TS — RARIEF £ 3.2.34- L #93 K

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally

SREN Y - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.3.

EFEAR

fiA(BEEF) i3 BHAE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans

RR+ EARE and

&8 Group Credit  REEX Bt  EHER  REER Trade £t advancesto

20145125318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
a5 Class:

1-E% 1 - pass 4001,781 28709991 8495624 29,800,290 13923338 6,847,083 11,644,961 103,423,048

-HHIER 2 - special mention - - - 18,500 31,923 31,122 16,689 104,234

3= RBFUT 3 - sub-standard or below - 297 954 11,184 1,026 - 70 13,531

it Total 4,001,781 28,710,288 8,496,578  20,820974  13956,287 6,884,185 11,661,720 103,540,813

EREHR

fIA(ZEZF) ¥ ages

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans

iR B5mE and

£ Group Credit  RIEEH iy  FEER  ZBEX Trade £ff  advancesto

2013%12 8318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
i Class:

1-E% 1-pass 4108044 26,739,025 6558120 27,450,103 12,984,847 6707415 11,677,906 96,225,460

Pl g 2 - special mention - - - - 11319 - 978 12,207

3= KBS 3 - sub-standard o below - 321 585 - 1,022 - 549 2,677

At Total 4108044 26739346 6558705 27450103 12,997,388 6707415 11,679,433  96,240434

ERBHIATHB 2 ZBEREEBER

a2 DR ERKTER/RRE

RIRITEEFRAR | 20145555

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were assessed as
not impaired after taking into consideration the value and recovery of
collaterals.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @)
3.2 SER@m

325 B KRB (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(Z) BEERFEZ EFREH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EFERR
A (2EZF) i ey
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
HiE EUE L and
&8 Group Credt  REBER R BHER BRER Trade Eft  advancesto
20145125318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
A1 ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 33,321 355,169 129,107 13,059 101,648 48,782 449440 1,130,526
BE1ERNEZ3MAA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 11,654 24,033 22,858 - 8,237 24,294 52,159 143,235
BH3EANEZ6MEA Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 6,566 10,669 6,309 - - - 12,444 35,988
AE6EAN £ Past due more than 6 months 4,334 4,761 5 - - 240 21,857 31,197
At Total 55,875 394,632 158,279 13,059 109,885 73,316 535,000 1,340,046
FEERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 390,398 3,367 3,469 109,623 12,987 463,764 983,608
RPEFR
fIA(BEZP) &% #30E
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
ERT 2588 and
4] Group Credit RBER =t BHER REER Trade Eft advances to
2013%12 4318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
fat AN RN Past due up to 1 month 34,448 334,907 91,050 - 131,514 38,179 517,040 1,147,147
aB1EANLEZ3MEA Past due more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 10,626 29,526 15,149 - 1,966 14,081 86,729 158,077
WH3EAN EZ6(A Past due more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 5,860 320 5,982 - - 523 7,393 20,078
AE6EAN £ Past due more than 6 months 3,495 4,842 - - - 223 22,284 30,844
H Total 54,429 369,595 112,181 - 133,480 53,006 633455 1,356,146
REARRZDTE" Fair value of collaterals* - 367,188 3,329 - 133,102 10,647 565914 1,080,180

* ER M2 A FEDREERATERER
REESR  MEPREEME

IR ERE R R BRE - HEERR A
FEDKEBEEFEBREEZGET AN

E o BEIREAR

ZHERmZRFEDZE

M5B FEE R -

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated

collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the particular

assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such collateral is

updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar assets.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BRIREB# (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(A) 1EFIREZ &P BN R

REERFARBIFRFERZES KA
ZERIRER P ER N A 348,287,000

7877 (2013 4F : 380,940,000787T) °

BRI EE R R B B R ARE R
TEVE (R 2 1R R 40 fn & FEIZ IR B 23 47 40

(c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$348,287,000 (2013: HK$380,940,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
HEER-
BA(BERF) i fEBI{
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5E allowances -
3] Group BBER At AHER  REER Trade At A3t individual
0145125318 At 31 December 2014 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIAEER Individually impaired loans 4,385 5,054 60,198 8,323 178,071 92,056 348,287 217,744
FEARRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* 4,385 3,391 6,509 7,304 91,168 56,637 169,394
EER-
fAA(ZEZF) i AR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
BoRE allowances -
£F Group REER iy,  BHEX  %EER Trade Eff A indvidual
2013512 431A At 31 December 2013 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERIHEER Individually impaired loans 13,198 3,643 140,052 8,741 150,660 64,640 380,940 244,294
ARG ATE" Fair value of collaterals® 13,198 - 8,829 8,318 32,211 29,649 92,205
* ER Mz A FEDRBERRTERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

RNEBES  MEDREEME o

RIRITEEFRAR | 20145555

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRBF (&) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI3 187U LEZ B R (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
() BWHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2014 2013
BHEREER BEAR(EE
BEREE Bz
Gross Gross
amount of {5#8%  amount of Ih4a=a
overdue Batt overdue Bakt
£H Group loans % of total loans % of total
REBRFER Gross advances to customers
4REE - mHy which have been overdue for:
—31EANLE=61EA — six months or less but
over three months 97,112 0.09 100,260 0.10
—6AANEE1F — one year or less but
over six months 39,052 0.04 69,831 0.07
—1FUE - over one year 185,726 0.18 127,380 0.13
321,890 0.31 297,471 0.30
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRB (@) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

(T) BEI31EFULZ BRI (%) (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)
(i) BHREEERRBRZBEEERER (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
s mE against overdue loans and advances
ENREH il HEREE-

KEBHE B gl izl Hirfz g {BRIHE
Outstanding Current  FrA®HH KeEREFH BERESEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

&8 Group loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2014512731 H At 31 December 2014 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
AEREEEFERRE]  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 321,890 233,734 160,454 161,436 - 146,562

ERRE® Bfm REERE—

AEEEE B ERm BEfm EipEE {E5IzF i

Outstanding Curent  FrAEEMD ReEAEDH ERFERZR  Imparment

amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -

£ Group loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2013512 A31H At 31 December 2013 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation ~ assessment
BEREEEPERREN  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 297,471 177,543 121,065 176,406 - 160,454

FRFF M £ 2 RERF R IR BT Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and mortgage

over properties.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMBEEBERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(%) #MEHEF(EHE EIEE_LILZE (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HE) overdue advances shown above
(EEEE] IH48%R
BaL Epalsd
£9 Group 2014 % of total 2013 % of total
EFEER Advances to customers 171,817 0.16 148,512 0.15
BB Impairment allowances = =
326 EZEE 3.2.6 Trade bills
M2014F12 A31H ' AEEWHEBHREZES As at 31 December 2014, there were no trade bills that were overdue
B A LA E(20134 : @EAKRERSEA A EE6E for more than 3 months (2013: trade bills of HK$475,000 were overdue
B2 B3 ZEE /475,000 BT) WREZESHE for more than 3 months and up to 6 months) or impaired (2013: Nil).
(20134 : %) ©
327 WEI#E# g 3.2.7 Repossessed collateral
RERFEZKREERRAT ¢ Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:
£ Group 2014 2013
BEHE Nature of assets
ek Repossessed properties 69,680 87,660
Hfth Others 315 85
69,995 87,745
WEEKRRIEATEARREE - ERFIERMN Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
BIREBZERARBERS - proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.
& 51 7] % 35 42 {6 /566,228,000 7T (2013 £F : Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
67,860,000 7T ) 2 1£ 1 B (A 3t 69 & T H (4 realisable value of HK$66,228,000 (2013: HK$67,860,000), which had
¥ DAREBERIERBEAMIARBEG ZES T been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
R LA IR E R R B o X33 i 73 2 A K+ 36 issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
ZIEMEE|BTHNFEBLNEZEE - HEZ Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

ERER R IETER © 36. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. MBEABREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEF 3.2.8 Debt securities
(F) EEFREBIEE 2SR IT (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRIIRMN2014F K% 2013F 12 A 31 BiZ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
T RMIBIE E 2 SR DT 2 (ETEFE S o agency designation at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

BIFEE BEN THEERE HEHHRE BRR
B#EE  AYVEFHE  Available- Held-to- EE

&8 Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity Loans and &t
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 245 - 1,072,104 - - 1,072,349
AA- Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 6,849,743 - 6,120,273 1,591,932 - 14,561,948
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 374 - 9,930,632 3,456,521 - 13,387,527
BAREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 126,567 3,918,441 1,749,218 - 5794,20
REFR Unrated - 3,066 1,918,932 4,035,269 - 5,957,267
At Total 6,850,362 129,633 22,960,382 10,832,940 - 40,773,317

FEEE RELN IHHERE KRR Bk

figdE  ATEHE  Avalable- Held-to- [ENIE
& Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity ~ Loans and At
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 assets  atfairvalue  investments  investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 10,240 - 1,377,938 - - 1,388,178
AA- Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 6,325,368 - 7,016,032 867,349 - 14,208,749
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 103 - 12,730,721 1,806,195 37,220 14,574,239
BB EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 55,772 4,065,664 845,524 1,100,370 6,067,330
RBTR Unrated 77 309 1,661,510 2,150,221 41 3,812,158
At Total 6,335,788 56,081 26,851,865 5,669,289 1,137,631 40,050,654
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
328 EHFEF %) 3.2.8 Debt securities (Continued)
(Z) #ZEaR &7 (b)  Analysis by overdue period
NI IERE D A AER R EWRIE 7 & Investments in securities which were classified as loans and
HKE  RERRX12 A31 BABSHNT receivables upon initial recognition, and were overdue at
RN : the time of recognition, and which remain overdue as at 31
December are shown below:
&5 Group 2014 2013
RYBTERF S EAERK Investments in securities classified
FEWGRIE 2 B AR E as loans and receivables upon
initial recognition
161 Hf Overdue for
—1FUE — over one year - 41
R ERR DB EER R ERE IEZ.M The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as

FREMS RO EBRE LlimiE)
&2 BEEMBARNKER

329 WEEEERBRZEMEEZ EBEE
HEE

() =15

EEER BT HIRIEE Z B R KR
Bl 2ZIERANEDE - — RIS &
EXNERIFEREERATRZESE
B RS A% o

TRAEBEFERERIRBEEHIN -

3.2.9

loans and receivables upon initial recognition was recognised
in the statement of financial position at a value after taking into
account the above overdue status.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(@) Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20145 20134

12A31H 12A31H

At At

&5 Group 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
HEERMBE Gross advances to customers

— BB - Hong Kong 83,856,418 77,492,360

—H - China 8,278,746 8,890,132

— P — Macau 11,435,277 10,187,485

—HAh - Others 1,659,605 1,407,543

105,230,046 97,977,520
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEMRERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SER@m

329 WEBEEERBRZEMEEZEEE

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

HEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(F) B ) (a) Geographical sectors (Continued)

TRAAEEEHERLRR  BHRE
RAESRITOARANTER Z B REEIT

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
Group in relation to loans and advances, investments in
securities, and balances and placements with banks.

RITRHA
SRS
Banks DERE
£8 Group and other Public
2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 financial sector Hit Fohy
BEBTT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DAR  NEEEBEN Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 25,948 2,041 22,022 50,011
EEREE North and South America 911 548 2,122 3,581
BOM Europe 5,672 - 359 6,031
32,531 2,589 24,503 59,623
RIT A
RS
Banks NEHEIE
£E Group and other Public
2013512 A31H At 31 December 2013 financial sector Hith Bt
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DAR  NEEEBER Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 20,456 254 17,165 37,875
EERBEE North and South America 213 775 2,332 3,320
BOM Europe 2,544 - 867 3,411
23,213 1,029 20,364 44,606

tREEERAHRERERARNEE
&+ 1RIBE 5 %0 A AR 0 T BR800
R BHFREEENAR - —BAE -
EXSYFOERZHETRAERY S —
FHER - RETEER—RETHENS
7 MESHLERTRANER - 1 &
RERE-AREBEE—AK -

The above information of cross-border claims discloses exposures
to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is
derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking
into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one
country to another is recognised if the claims against a counterparty
are guaranteed by another party in a different country or if the claims
are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in
a different country.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEMRERE @) 3.
3.2 SER@m

329 WEEEEBREBZEHEEESEMRE
HEEE (&)

(Z2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

BEPERRE — HTERERARSH Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

£8 Group 2014 2013
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEs Rt Industrial, commercial and financial
I ES - Property development 1,741,185 2,015,552
—EKE - Property investment 15,752,867 15,122,078
— SR - Financial concerns 821,938 740,178
—RELALD — Stockbrokers 133,234 109,264
—BEETERE — Wholesale and retail trade 4,497,466 4,006,724
—BhEX - Manufacturing 2,971,483 1,975,672
— By MBI - Transport and transport equipment 4,612,041 5,050,680
—R&EE) — Recreational activities 277,832 300,505
— BB — Information technology 22,938 24,916
—HAh — Others 5,036,198 3,571,083
35,867,182 32,916,652
EA Individuals
—-BE [FEEEEE] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[RAZEERETE ] & Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEBHEREE | BFER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 962,720 1,080,873
—BEHEMEFEDEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 19,451,578 18,041,141
—fERARER — Credit card advances 3,838,208 3,949,544
— A - Others 8,355,472 6,880,302
32,607,978 29,951,860
EEAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 68,475,160 62,868,512
BE5mE (7(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 6,517,342 5,918,454
EBBAIMERNER (FX(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 30,237,544 29,190,554
105,230,046 97,977,520
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”) totalling HK$618,230,000 (31 December
2013: HK$992,627,000) are classified under Loans for use outside
Hong Kong.

2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
Group Risk Division, as an independent risk management and control
unit, identifies, measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures
against approved limits and initiates specific actions to ensure
positions are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as stipulated in the relevant
policies and procedures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to DSB and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of 250
days (or one year) using a method known as parametric
VaR methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$1,821,000 (2013: HK$1,453,000).

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(F) THREREER % (%) (a)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
@iy  EEITRIE (&) (i)  Stress tests (Continued)
BAORRAZERAESGREREY The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
ZEgTEHEHN - and its delegated committees regularly.

(Z) TEE G EE (b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BE20145F12A31H #Z 201312 H31H
128 A 1E121E A
12 months to 31 December 2014 12 months to 31 December 2013
F 15 ) 543 19 R =43

&8 Group Average High Low Average High Low
AN 2 B2 Foreign exchange risk 1,396 2,166 706 934 1,529 450
) = & i Interest rate risk 1,089 3,201 240 1,058 2,193 330
2 EPE R All risks 1,821 3,460 1,120 1,453 2,625 689
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3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on-and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2014, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$10 million higher (2013: HK$16 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$10 million lower (2013: HK$16 million lower).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
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(i)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.

At 31 December 2014, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the
next 12 months and the economic value would have
been HK$201 million lower (2013: HK$193 million lower)
and HK$843 million lower (2013: HK$970 million lower)
respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
on the same basis for both 2013 and 2014.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk, the Group’s investments in debt securities and
equity securities are also exposed to other price risks.
Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events
that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

liabilities translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

currency.
£8 Group BT E sk ARH Hitr &t
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
8E Assets
Re RERITNES Cash and balances with banks 2,181,349 8,858,496 383,548 2,631,821 783,772 14,838,986
ERT1212{8ANEIES0EH Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months - 3,220,767 - 1,970,543 133,501 5,324,811
RIEEERBNES Trading securities 6,849,988 - - 374 - 6,850,362
RENATEHEAEE Financial assets designated at
TABRNSHAE fair value through profit or loss - 129,633 - - - 129,633
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 28,748 702,458 - 43 25,580 756,829
REERREMER Advances and other accounts 81,415,606 15,015,931 5458779 13,145,687 828,092 115,864,095
AEHEES Available-for-sale securities 1,972,138 20,393,558 631 673,141 322,393 23,361,861
B2 Held-to-maturity securities 1,199,530 7,212,714 920,497 1,139,908 360,291 10,832,940
SREERH Total financial assets 93,647,359 55533557 6,763,455 19,561,517 2,453,629 177,959,517
af Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 60,580 1,505,241 101 255 6,200 1,572,467
fTASRIA Derivative financial instruments 25,820 1,048,669 - - 72,336 1,146,825
FIEEERANERE Trading liabilities 5,597,614 - - - - 5597,614
RPER Deposits from customers 95,474,895 15,869,292 7,202,569 18,067,795 5,965,688 142,580,239
BETMFRE Certificates of deposit issued 5,799,744 310,033 - - - 6,109,777
BERETHERES Issued debt securities = = - - - -
#ERR Subordinated notes - 4,131,026 - - 1,301,352 5,432,378
HiRE kR Other accounts and accruals 1,315,723 727,108 56,885 485,554 73,167 2,658,437
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 108,274,376 23,591,369 7,259,555 18,553,604 7,418,833 165,097,737
BEERRLERTE Net on-balance sheet positions (14,627,017) 31,942,188 (496,1000 1,007,913  (4,965,204) 12,861,780
BESERIMERERTE" Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 25,959,998  (31,213,945) - 340,548 4,855,770 (57,629)
FERE Credit commitments 62,216,083 3,930,806 495194 3,848,740 190,783 70,681,556
* BEABRIMNGEZRFHREIZANREARAS * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
INEZBRER 2 INESRITETANERTF amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
B o are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 WiEEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JMEREE (&) 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
£H Group BT e il ARE Aoty At
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
Be RERTRER Cash and balances with banks 879,053 1,419,895 442,598 4,905,415 623,925 8,270,886
ERT1Z 121 R REIHRER Placements with banks maturing

between one and twelve months - 1,343,478 - 2,757,815 - 4,101,293
FEEERGENES Trading securities 6,335,608 - - 180 - 6335788
RENATESEAHE Financial assets designated at

TABRNSHAE fair value through profit or loss - 56,081 - - - 56,081

fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 26,945 608,954 - - 51,170 687,069
REERREfERE Advances and other accounts 76,530,739 13,304,523 4,538,712 12,254,168 1,570,253 108,198,395
ERESH Available-for-sale securities 2,172,667 24,041,700 485 649,869 263,696 27,128,417
2SR S Held-to-maturity securities 540,637 3,174,645 590,539 951,316 403,152 5,669,289
SHEER Total financial assets 86,494,640 43949276 5572334 21518763 29121196 160,447,218
B Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 59,591 1,886,917 256 30,574 17,959 1,995,297
ITHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 30,834 912,746 - - 173,676 1,117,256
FIEEERENER Trading liabilities 3,362,473 - - - - 3362473
RPER Deposits from customers 82,258,381 14,886,479 6,393,074 19,399,000 6,906,217 129,843,151
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,356,465 775,465 631 - - 6,132,561
BERTHERES Issued debt securities - 775,385 = = = 775,385
{&EET Subordinated notes - 2,398,493 - - 1363978 3,762,471
HilR B RER Other accounts and accruals 1,511,779 879,673 58,739 389,527 88,512 2,928,230
SRAEA Total financial liabilities 92,579,523 22,515,158 6,452,700 19,819,101 8,550,342 149,916,824
EERRRLFEFE Net on-halance sheet positions (6,084,874) 21,434,118 (880,366) 1,699,662 (5,638,146) 10,530,394
BEEARRIMGRRE T8 Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 14936216 (20,476,354) 249,867 (163,843) 5,384,119 (69,995)
SR Credit commitments 61,463,280 4,261,313 454,286 4,187,601 163,393 70,529,873
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3. UHEEEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 WiEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.34 FIFEmEEE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TREINAER 2 FEE - RANBFENERIR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
EHBETE eRmEERAE  WIKEELEX risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
HekR|EAH (AREE A%E) 5fE - liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual

repricing or maturity dates.

3fEANE TERE

3f8A EE E5E
EDUN Over Over SENE e
58 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest it
014%12A318 At 31 December 2014 or less to1year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
&E Assets
Re MRS Cash and balances with banks 12,616,114 464,207 - - 1,758,665 14,838,986
R Z12EAMEISBRER Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 2,280,629 3,035,182 - - - 5,324,811
RIEEERROES Trading securities 2,051,864 4,769,256 29,042 - - 6,850,362
KENATE2EEEY Financial assets designated at
TAERNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - - 119,812 9,821 129,633
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 756,829 756,829
BEERREMEE Advances and other accounts 83,291,573 10,575,020 11,120,258 6,104,592 4772652 115,864,005
THHERS Available-for-sale securities 2,417,059 2,004,641 12,424,145 6,034,710 391,306 23,361,361
FEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 2,231,325 2,186,169 6,415,446 - - 10,832,940
SREERH Total financial assets 104,897,564 23,124,475 29,989,091 12,250,114 7680273 177,959,517
8 Liabilities
BIAER Deposits from banks 1,501,734 - - - 70,733 1,572,467
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,146,825 1,146,825
RIEEERRYER Trading liabilities 3,016,569 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
ZFRH Deposits from customers 117,845,733 19,276,547 789,799 - 4,668,160 142,580,239
BENGRE Certificates of deposit issued 2,460,682 1,014,801 2,634,204 - - 6,109,777
BRINERER Issued debt securities - - - - - -
) Subordinated notes - - 3,516,676 1,915,702 - 5,432,378
Hi0iRE RS Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,658,437 2,658,437
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 124,824,718 22,824,699 6,088,463 1,915,702 8544155 165,007,787
NESBEEAT (REHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)  (19,927,154) 299,776 23,000,628 10,343,412
FEffETIRRN2 HE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,646,315 409,492 712,526 (3,842,627)
NESRERA (£%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (17,280,839) 709,268 23,713,154 6,500,785
* REARNEHEEBENIREEBBRRANEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENFREEETE - LABRMNEHREEEFA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
FOBEFIE R R TR KOTET A S LMK takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
Ho into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3fAANE 3
3f4A EYE E5%
FUT Over Over SENF PitE
£E Group 3 months 3 months 1 year QOver Non-interest &t
2013512318 At 31 December 2013 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
ReRERANER Cash and balances with banks 7,329,504 - - - 941,382 8,270,886
R Z12EAR3ISBRER Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,293

HEEERANES Trading securities 631934 5,368,325 335,529 - - 6,335,788
KENATEZEEEY Financial assets designated at

TAERNERAE fair value through profit or loss - - - 51,833 4048 56,081
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 687,069 687,069
EBETREMERE Advances and other accounts 84,973,168 8,473,687 9,791,152 727,150 4,233,238 108,198,395
AL RS Available-for-sale securities 920,545 1,992,504 18,939,775 4,994,214 281,379 27128417
FEEES Held-to-maturity securities 1,446,017 1,655,194 2,568,078 - - 5,660,289
SREERT Total financial assets 97,190,200 19,701,971 31,634,534 5,773,197 6,147,316 160,447,218
8f Liabilties
FER Deposits from hanks 1759,613 - - - 235,684 1,995,297
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,117,256 1,117,256
RIEEERRYAR Trading liabilties 478,501 2,767,145 116,827 - - 3,362,473
RPER Deposits from customers 103,288,589 19,134,646 1,608,375 164,673 5646368 129,843,151
BEANERE Cerificates of deposit issued 2,259,279 2,107,785 1,765,497 - - 6,132,561
BREMELEES Issued debt securities 775,385 - - - - 775,385
RERK Subordinated notes - - 1,850,719 191,752 - 3,762,471
HiRR kR Other accounts and accruals 413,993 - - - 2,514,237 2,928,230
b EChE Total financal liabilities 108,975,360 24,009,576 5,341,418 2,076,425 9514045 149,916,824
HegREE s (RERE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)’ (11,785,160) (4,307,605 26,293,116 3,696,772
HEfTET AR HZ 72 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,206,603 2,950,892 (4,061,258) (3,130,229)
e gEERas (BRE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)’ (7,558,557) (1356,713) 22,231,858 566,543
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. During the period, the Group had maintained
a sufficiently high liquidity ratio well above the statutory minimum of
25%.

Moreover, the Group maintains the liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2 is
developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to
strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks. During
the year, the HKMA has conducted a series of consultations in relation
to the implementation of the new liquidity standards under the Basel
Il framework in Hong Kong. In particular, authorized institutions
are classified into 2 categories, taking into account of their nature,
size and complexity of operations. Category 1 banks are subject to
Liquidity Coverage Ratio requirement while Category 2 banks have to
comply with the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio, which is an enhanced
version of the existing Liquidity Ratio.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics,
including the liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch on an ongoing
basis. Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set
and sufficient liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can
meet all short-term funding requirements. The Treasury Division is
responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and liquidity
position while the RMCD is responsible for the measurement and
monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity
risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and
liquidity ratio, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquid asset portfolio
is held to withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Debt
securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity. The Group performs stress testing regularly,
which includes an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market
crisis scenario and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order
to assess the potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets
out strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted on
arms-length basis and are treated the same way as other third party
transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under normal
scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage their
liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and stressed
conditions.

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMKE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.2 FIEHZH7 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1ERAL 3EANL
B3EAHAT 3k 1E0E
MHEE  1fARIUT  Smonthsor Over B5E

£9 Group Repayable Upto lesshbutover 3months  Overt year SENE BHHAY ait
0145128318 At 31 December 2014 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
gt Assets
ReRERINES (Cash and balances with banks 212,110 12,066,276 - - - - - 14,838,986
ERTIZ120EAR Placements with banks maturing

SEnER between one and twelve months - - 2,173,304 3,151,507 - - - 5,324,811
HEEERENES Trading securities - 366,993 1,676,984 4,761,251 45,154 - - 6,850,362
BEMATEEELRS  Financial assets designated at

FTABRNSRHARE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 129,633 - 129,633
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments - 50,387 38,998 93,313 350,366 203,765 - 756,829
REEFREMES Advances and other accounts 7,459,311 12,175,713 13,023,821 18,313,283 29,959,704 33,185,517 1,746,746 115,864,095
TREERS Available-for-sale securities - 248,532 1,829,698 2,172,191 12,300,365 6,414,769 396,306 23,361,861
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 561,653 5,16 3,143,157 7,070,014 - - 10832940
BELTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 3746918 3746918
AREHERRE Investments in joinly

controlled entities - - - - - - 65,694 65,694

BE Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
alaE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,844 1,844
EREMETAE Premises and other fixed assets - = - - - - 1,786,594 1,786,594
L Investment properties - - - - - - 814,229 814,229
PEfEAE Current income tax assets - - - 999 - - - 999
ERfEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 80,591 - - 80,591
BEAH Total assets 10,232,021 25,469,554 18,800,901 31,635,701 49,806,194 39,953,684 9,430,021 185,328,076
8E Liabilities
Rt Deposits from banks 41,679 142,433 - 806,727 581,628 - - 1,572,467
fESMTA Derivative financial instruments - 41,082 65,343 116,783 771,698 161,079 - 1,146,825
RIEEBREHAE Trading liabilties - 98,500 2,918,069 2,533,351 47,69 - - 5,507,614
EPEH Depostts from customers 51950684 43461902 27,090,791 19,278,063 789,799 - - 142,580,299
BENEE Certificates of deposit issued - 501,056 840,079 2,134,348 2,634,204 - - 6,109,777
BEINERES Issed debt securities - - - - = = g 5
kR Subordinated notes - - - - 5,432,378 - - 5,432,378
EfbR RER Other accounts and accruals 23,504 758,680 617,075 781,770 1,458 - 415,851 2,858,437
MEfERE Current income tax liablities - - - 208,693 - - - 208,693
ERfERE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 65,077 - - 65,077
Bfait Total liabilties 52,004,957 45004562 31,531,357 25859735 10,383,966 151,079 M5850 165,371,507
FREMEE Net liquidity gap (41,792,936) (19,535,008) (12,730,456) 5,775,966 39,422,228 39,802,605 9,014,170 19,956,569
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1ERNE SfEANE
{E3EAFAT B3l 1)
MEEE  1EAAT  Imonthsor Over B5F

=8 Group Repayable Upto lessbut over Imonths  Over T year SEHE EIHAS Aif
0135124318 At 31 December 2013 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year toSyears  Overbyears Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERINES (Cash and balances with banks 3,364,445 4,906,441 - - - - - 8270,886
TR Z120AR Placements with banks maturing

8t betwieen one and twelve months - - 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,203
BERERENER Trading securities - 147,493 481,050 5,358,136 349,109 - - 6,335,768
BEMATEEELRS  Financial assets designated at

TABRNSRERE fair value through profit o loss - - - - - 56,081 - 56,081
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 65,421 30,274 143,845 124,426 323,103 - 687,069
ZEEFREMES Advances and other accounts 74818771 10,341,642 11,440,930 14,587,802 31,637,306 31,015,481 1,687,357 108,198,3%
i ERS Available-for-sale securities - 383,989 39,426 2,101,347 19,328,062 4,994,214 281,379 21128417
REHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 262,604 - 1,655,194 3,751,491 - - 5,669,269
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 3,304,993 3,304,993
AREHERRE Investments in jointly controlled entiies - - - - - - 50,657 50,657
5 Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
ayEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 66,242 66,242
fEREHEEEE Premises and other fived assets - - - - - - 1,861 452 1,861,452
REnE Investment properties - - - - - - 653,921 653,921
MEfaEE Current income tax assets - - - - - - = =
ERfiasE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 22975 - - 2,975
EEAH Total assets 10,862,322 16,107,590 13,880,712 26,058,585 55,213,369 36,388,879 8,725,691 167,227,148
& Liabilties
Rt Deposits from banks 123,020 476,584 - - 1,395,693 - - 1,995,297
frEemTA Derivative financial instruments - 119,207 45,486 128,324 719,379 104770 - 1,117,256
HERERENAE Trading liabilities - 477,501 1,000 2,767,146 116,626 - - 3,362,473
EPmR Deposits from customers 40124673 42100839 28212501 17,809,946 1504411 781 - 129843151
BEfIENE Certficates of depositissued - 752,633 856,739 2,757,691 1,765,498 - - 6,132,561
BEANERES Issued debt securities - - - 775,38 - - - 775,385
) Subordinated notes - - - - 486,740 3,275,731 - 3762471
HfbR RER Other accounts and accruals 25,574 766,932 762,082 798,954 62,147 - 492,541 2,928,230
HEfEaE Current income tax liabilties - - - 210451 - - - 210451
ERfiaRE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 34,304 - - 34,304
BEas Total liabilities 40,273,267 44,693,786 29,897,808 25,247,897 6,174,998 3,381,262 492,541 150,161,579
FratEe Net liquidity gap (29,420,945) (28,586,196) (16,017,096) 810,688 49,038,371 33,007,597 8,233,150 17,065,569
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1EARE SEANL
{E3fEA=AT B 1§40E
PHEE  1EAIUT  3monthsor Over B58
Repayable Upto  lesshut over 3months  Over1 year SENL EHHAS Ait
&8 Group on demand 1 month 1 month to1year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
01412831 At 31 December 2014
FREesH Certficates of deposit held
included in:
REIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 124,762 - 1,822,615 - - - 1,947,317
201 3@12)1 31H At 31 December 2013
F#ERs Oertificates of deposit held
included in:
BRIEES Held-to-maturity securities - - - 1,006,441 99,831 - - 1,106,272

BEHSEHREANENERAZENERE S
EEEETHEE d\ARNETHNEBRIKER
$$i%%@&$ﬁﬁm'%ﬂﬁﬁ§v%gm
RMERL T EE - MRS ARTERESE
Flges - B m/‘i‘j]mgﬁgﬂ[gnu .

hm;x

EEHAEMNIIHE RAGEBNRAERIE 2
MEEENES  BRHEEERDES AR
K I E R E B AR

R ERREE -

AEE— BT EHRE=HeREFHEBEEZEI
HES - Fﬁﬁﬁﬂ%fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BIE N AT A AT
RBESHEREIREAENSTE BN RZEE
AERBISSRIEBBESAES - ALANE
HREBZEERENRENEGHNBRSERANER
HERBESHRR -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and
o Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1fEANLE AL
3EARUT BE 18N E
1fAZAT 3 months or Over B5E
£8 Group Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5N E &5t
2014%12R31 8 At 31 December 2014 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
aff Liabilities
ROFH Deposits from banks 186,562 2,925 808,988 581,649 - 1,580,124
ZFEH Deposits from customers 95,669,217 27,691,204 19,640,668 911,746 - 143912835
FEEERENERE Trading liabilities 98,500 2,918,086 2,533,739 49,166 - 5,599,491
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 508,734 856,259 2,197,660 2,717,075 - 6,279,728
BEINREEES Issued debt securities - = - - - -
{&EET Subordinated notes 46,821 105,516 150,962 4,423,553 1,803,970 6,530,822
AfafE Other liabilities 568,075 322,278 397,544 - - 1,287,807
RELE Total liabilities
(BH3IEA) (contractual maturity dates) 97,077,909 31,896,268 25,729,561 8,683,189 1,803,970 165,190,897
fIETABRER Derivative cash flow
BEBREEZITESRIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (19,447) (29,589) (58,488) (38,454) (2,933) (148,911)
RRBEE TESRTE Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
it 85 Total outflow 30,744,088 || 15,165,665 || 14,128,887 3,499,792 555,368 || 64,093,800
HAEE Total inflow (31,075,160) | | (15,137,767) || (13,927,269) || (2,993,800) ||  (314,575) || (63,448,571)
(331,072) 27,898 201,618 505,992 240,793 645,229
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3. WXEEMRERE @)
3.4 REBESRES @

34.3 BEHBH H.ZKEEEBLT (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1EAER  3EAMLE
AT 215 14 E
1EASMUT 3 months or Over B5E
3L Group Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5EE ast
20135124318 At 31 December 2013 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETERSER Non-derivative cash flow
afE Liabilities
RITFR Deposits from banks 698,688 2,616 2545 1,398,357 - 2,102,206
ZFEH Deposits from customers 82,428935 28825453 18,080,135 1,795,564 988 131,131,075
RIEEERANEE Trading liabilities 477,501 1,879 2,769,048 116,175 - 3,364,603
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 761,700 869,997 2,805,211 1,851,787 - 6,288,695
BEINREES Issued debt securities 27 - 775,411 - - 775,438
{&EER Subordinated notes - 106,607 105830 2513200  1,920877 4,646,514
AtafE Other liabilities 691,450 495,356 602,158 - - 1,788,964
RELE Total liabilities
(BH3IEA) (contractual maturity dates) 85,058,301 30,301,908  25140,338 7,675,083 1,921,865 150,097,495
ITETARER Derivative cash flow

BFBEETESRTIE Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 66908) (0572  (@22775 (121979 (694  (575.922)

REEREE 7 TESRTA Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 24,428 483 || 12,409,656 || 15,391,173 3,474,947 649,780 || 56,354,039
MALE Total inflow (24,359,868) | | (12,373,388) || (15,208,642) || (2,775,658) (451,578) || (55,169,134)

68,615 36,268 182,531 699,289 198,202 1,184,905

ARAENAARBERAEREREERAEZE
ERRERE  APRRITHER  EREZIEA
MEEES  RITERRBR  IEFERKE
K EABEBT - BOREOEKER —FR
NMEZEFPEFHEEH - 1o BEHFERKE
ERSFDREFANERERE - ARBEYAER
HEFSFMBBRINESRE (PN : mMBEHE)
AR REMHESFRA

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in
the course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to
banks; and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course
of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable
within one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and
treasury bills have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group
would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling
securities and accessing additional funding sources such as asset-
backed markets.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEEMRERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRES @
344 BEEMEZIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

TREIEATIER : Included in the table below are the following items:

. EEREERETREFEEREMRK 2B FHE . Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
EREEAEBEEAGBERIEGMTAY amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
EHAREHE) that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. RERABBERIER NS 2 i o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
1% reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

. REE AHAM A Z T 0] BUE K & FH 49 & o The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

RARKBAXNZ RERENKERE : &

operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BEREENRE 2 BRI - J Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1EHUR 1% 5F L%
£ Group No later E5 Over &5t
2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B e Loan commitments 65,609,969 3,571,018 12,869 69,193,856
R AR Guarantees, acceptances
HA & FARTS and other financial facilities
— - Acceptances 24,061 - - 24,061
—ERRERERL - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 773,616 129,244 83,315 986,175
—REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 477,089 375 - 477,464
RN Forward forward deposits placed - - = =
RS KA Operating lease commitments 158,901 112,500 47,428 318,829
BARENE Capital commitments 157,050 = = 157,050
CE Total 67,200,686 3,813,137 143,612 71,157,435
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @)
3.4 REBESRES @
344 BEEEEXSIEE (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

15 HUR 1 AR 5 LR

] Group No later =54 Over =il
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRUAE Loan commitments 63,521,453 4,146,585 53,883 67,721,921
ER ALK Guarantees, acceptances
H fth & Bl AR 75 and other financial facilities
— &, - Acceptances 948 - - 948
—ERRERER - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,834,851 225,603 83,217 2,143,671
—REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 650,876 = = 650,876
ELIEE Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 - - 12,457
ST K I Operating lease commitments 159,051 214,007 61,661 434,719
B Capital commitments 175,369 - - 175,369
BET Total 66,355,005 4,586,195 198,761 71,139,961

35 EMEERKB/ZAVE
(F) AFEZEE

AFEXRRAHEESRAERRALEE
BEENMHEESREHEFZEHE
R-EXERRMERREARZE SR
BB TAZEERRF - HEARRERER
REZEAMB XS ERMEEM(E
R BT - MIAEBRTIERRE
BRAFEAEBEZ TEMY -

ERMTAZAFEDEBMTSERTH
BSEENABRAETZAEFRRSHTEE
BEMEDAEBREMNZ2ER - T
wERAERTERNKEAGET AR

5 o

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@ Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @)
35 SRIEEREBBZATEM
() RN FEZET®)

RNeMITAZREREKATHHZSM
RHE - BEA TEER  EERBR
EERBEM  RIRRIERARTIZRE
ZEMTR - RNERMSZHRERRTE
RERAISFECERE  YARAESEE
Ae-MemMEEXERABEEAERE
HE AEERRBEEZETELSFE
T REERKR D FEZER °

WMemTAZ AIBRmMIGREREEEE
5 AEEFAGERERZRN ZHE
HEEEZESRMIAZ ATE  BER
BERERZEAEEERT - RERZS
CMIEAZHEREN  KXEESRAR
R B REE(Flm: FX- E
X OREE - EEEE)  MESLRERE
AR BRKE - flanf B BHe02A
FEEGBFORRESR2BENE - R
HAONE S )2 A TFE—RIBIEERITREE
EirE - MREHOZAFEAEEGEZ
EERAGTHE - 10 Black-Scholes =AY o

AEEERIEREREAGEESE
NEFTHERBEIEEREARNTEAE
ZEMEBEZRE - WAKBEZEERE
#FE - AREZEETR  AEESERZ
FaficlE  WAKEZEERENK

e RBEZEELAN AEESRBEY
ZEREZER -

WERE  ARFEREFZEBRZELS
BEWFABRRHBRTIER  HPLHE
HBEEREMNTSERIFN -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximizes
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, FX rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of
interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward
rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived using
appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. UHEEEE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 2RMEEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RFEZR (b)  Fair value hierarchy
AEBFERATIRMEEZETE A FESR A The Group measures fair values using the following
BERIABR2HEEM CBREFEQT hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
& : unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:
Frl AR Level Descriptions
1 HREEXBENFRMEBER 2 RE 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
(REEFAE) - KRBIBERRZ ST E identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
M2 =R that are listed on exchanges.
2 BREARBBE 2 REIN HME 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
Eok B EEEE (BMER) sk (B 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
WEREL) A BR 2 HIE - %R directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
MBREARZEGIMTELEEL - from prices). This level includes the majority of the

over-the-counter derivative contracts.

3 AEXARBBIYIFREINER M 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
HER (TR BRZE8E) - N5 observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
IEABRIBH T BRI 2 i level includes equity and debt securities with significant
REBES - unobservable components.
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RNFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BRATENECEERARE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
] Group E18R EOR IR =5
2014128 31H At 31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A Descriptions
NATFEAEREE Financial assets at fair value
TABRNEREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
ERES Debt securities - 6,850,362 = 6,850,362
BEALFEFEAHE Designated at fair value
BE AER through profit or loss
ERES Debt securities - 129,633 = 129,633
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 540,441 = 540,441
B REL Held for hedging - 216,388 = 216,388
AHEZSRERE Available-for-sale financial assets
B5ES Debt securities - 22,955,554 4,828 22,960,382
BmltEs Equity securities 171,946 154,425 75,108 401,479
RATEGEZEERG Total assets measured at fair value 171,946 30,846,803 79,936 31,098,685
AATFEFEAHES Financial liabilities at fair value
FABENERER through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 5,597,614 = 5,597,614
fTESRMITA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 661,242 = 661,242
A B Held for hedging - 485,583 = 485,583
BEATEGECZAES Total liabilities measured at fair value - 6,744,439 = 6,744,439
A EAFEILREE S EERBIELTHE Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent investments
mEFESREFEE  hEeRMEERE in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They are stated at cost
RENTEEEYEZKAEIT which is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
#H Z=2014F12 A31H k2013F12 A 31 For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there
HIEFE BESREENRAGBE AE were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or out of the
HAFEERFHEIRF - BREE 2 Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying value represent
BHNEE MG I - the exchange revaluation gains/losses.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 2RMEEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) RNFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BAFEAEZEEREE  (8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

162

5B Group F1H F284 ERN CH
201312331 H At 31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A Descriptions
AR EFEREZE) Financial assets at fair value
FTABRNEREE through profit or loss
HEBERRE Held for trading
B EH Debt securities - 6,335,788 - 6,335,788
EENATFEFELH Designated at fair value
ZH AER through profit or loss
B EH Debt securities = 56,081 = 56,081
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEBERRE Held for trading - 299,574 - 299,574
¥ R {EH+ Held for hedging - 387,495 - 387,495
AN EZSBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
B 5 Debt securities - 26,847,037 4,828 26,851,865
Bt E S Equity securities 70,288 131,123 75,141 276,552
BRATEEZBEART Total assets measured at fair value 70,288 34,057,098 79,969 34,207,355
AR EFEREZE) Financial liabilities at fair value
FABRNERER through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 3,362,473 - 3,362,473
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 459,361 - 459,361
8 R+ Held for hedging - 657,895 - 657,895
BATEEZAEA Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,479,729 = 4,479,729
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B E e B (@) 3.
CREEREBEZATE® 3.5

(A) AL FlEGTEZEHMTA

TEREAZERAEERBARNKARINA
RNFHEIRZEBEER BB REEM
NFE - ERBEMEENE - EAFE
THiR B (ARE ) 78 & B DA 8 B i1 355 A1) 2 Bl
RERZEMTARKANOENRDR
MR BEFREME - RHIHERHL

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group

REEBTE for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BRE{E ATE
Carrying value Fair value

£E Group 2014 2013 2014 2013

SREE Financial assets

B& RERITHAEH Cash and balances with banks 14,838,986 8,270,886 14,843,860 8,268,706

ERT1IZE12MAR Placements with banks maturing

FIEREY 7R between one and twelve months 5,324,811 4,101,293 5,345,936 4,112,843

BEEERRBN Loans and advances to customers

(EYN-EEE Loans and advances to individuals

—fEAR - Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473 4,058,213 4,162,888

—RIBER - Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139 29,109,232 27,122,028

—Hfth - Others 8,660,111 6,674,529 8,662,133 6,668,029

EERRBR Loans and advances to

corporate entities

—BHER - Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155 29,904,055 27,582,271

—RIBER - Mortgages 14,074,495 13,139,615 14,074,520 13,139,973

—B5RE - Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081 7,136,859 6,908,396

—Hfth - Others 12,289,676 12,377,528 12,289,649 12,379,431
COES Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648 7,461,102 5,975,492
BIEEERRER Investments in securities

IR BHILE included in the loans and

receivables category - 1,137,631 - 1,020,606

BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,832,940 5,669,289 10,862,006 5,732,857

cRAE Financial liabilities

RITFER Deposits from banks 1,572,467 1,995,297 1,572,372 1,997,667

BRER Deposits from customers 142,580,239 129,843,151 142,585,649 129,890,730

BETNTRE Certificates of deposit issued 6,109,777 6,132,561 6,096,361 6,124,475

BETNEEES Issued debt securities - 775,385 = 774,718

®RIEED Subordinated notes 5,432,378 3,762,471 5,574,367 3,826,392
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held-to-
maturity categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets
and loans and receivables is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for
supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA
on a quarterly basis.

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios as of 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0%
respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. Moreover, the Leverage
Ratio that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel
run until 2017 and relevant information has been submitted by
DSB for regulatory monitoring during 2014. In addition, the capital
conservation and countercyclical capital buffers newly introduced
under Basel Il will be implemented from 1 January 2016 in Hong
Kong. In line with the international standards, the HKMA also adopts
the phase-in arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to
the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and capital
buffers as proposed by the Basel Committee and will achieve full
implementation by 1 January 2019.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognized by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

I DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

167



B AR R Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

168

(CAEREFThz5I7R)

4.1

4.2

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

EREgT R 2EEG s R
I & ()

EESHATTRER @

(Z2) 2@ TAZFE

AEBEZRAFEINRZEBESFRERND
R AR 2 THRETE - BN 2008
FZREEREESIBERTIHFER
B ARERBIWSORBETERE
UEFZTSREZEREREKN - N&H
MG HE A E REFEHEER
REESEH-ZINABRINZHRE 0
2R 58 REXRZAEENEE -
K ABRIAR BB 7B 2 7HE

() BEREFEEZE

REBEHT  BUOREIABELELE
EX EREERARNEREERKAESL
Wiz RR<EREE  BREEE2E
XZARKBBRERE  AETHERE
EASMEARNBMYTEMRE - Bt
BEZREEEFLAR - WERXLER
T EREERBERATEDZ K
HIREEEAE  RIARERZEEMNRIE

EREESBR ZEXHE

(F) REYEHEEFYREZ 2T

AEBETEEMERENRINERED
ENER - EIEHABHEER - AKEA
ERZMERBDENZAEBEMFEME
EBHTRERSRE - FEARWERAM
RUEZRERENMEREDELRES » TE
EEESHEEREAEMEEMEL -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (“HTM”)
and loans and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end
of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its AFS, HTM and LNR
securities is individually impaired as at 31 December 2014.
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4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories (Continued)

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities since 2011. As at
31 December 2014, the amount of such collective impairment
allowance was HK$15 million (2013: HK$75 million).

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances-for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity-it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group
need to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the
information relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood
and estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be
incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such as

recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
(“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s
estimate of the VIU is based on a discounted cash flow
projection which contains certain assumptions derived from
management and observable market information. This estimate
is subject to application of management judgment and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash
flows arising from the holding of this investment and from its
ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2014, management’s estimate of the VIU is
higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking
business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BARS BREAT BT #ER
Personal  Commercial &R Overseas A Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
EFRERA/ (Xi) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,312,668 978,782 399,266 537,362 (237,626) - 2990472
HBMA/ (2 Non-interest income/(expenses) 559,054 269,405 305,088 121,551 (61,776) (18,773) 1,174,549
EENA Total operating income 1,871,722 1,248,187 704,374 658,913 (299,402) (18,773) 4,165,021
BETH Operating expenses (1,163,698) (347,412 (143964)  (486,161) (14901) 18773 (2,127,369)
TRREFERE b EERE L Operating proft/(oss) before impairment
BEEH/(BR) losses and other credit provisions 718,024 900,775 560,410 172,752 (314,303) - 2,037,658
ESREFERAMEERRE Loan impairment losses and other credit
(12h)/mB provisions (charged)/written back (201,779) (63,223) 60,000 (267,960) - - (472,962)
ThAESERAESRER Operating profit/(oss) after impairment
LEERT/(BR) losses and other credit provisions 516,245 837,552 620,410 (95,208 (314,303) - 156469
HERENEREMEEAERA Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ATEFRE (BR)/ e adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (844) (60) 9 (46) 55,189 - 54,230
HERFRA NG Net gain on disposal of investments in securities - - 17,036 - - - 17,036
EEBREAR X5 Share of resuls of an associate - - - 602,299 - - 602,299
ElhLREHEE 26 Share of results of ointly controlled entities - - - - 20,657 - 20,657
RHELER]/ (B Profit/{loss) before taxation 515,401 837,492 637,437 507,045 (238,457) - 2258018
BB (L) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (83485)  (138,186)  (105177) 32,324 69,215 - (225,309)
RiikER/ (B) Profit/loss) after taxation 431,916 699,306 532,260 539,369 (169,242) - 2,033,609
HE2014512 431 HLLER For the year ended 31 December 2014
HEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 51,203 10427 6,256 42,831 32,557 - 143,364
R2014F12 8317 At 31 December 2014
HRAE Segment assets 41,988,779 54,596,171  55550,630 33,581,542 4209677  (4,618,723) 185,328,076
PRk Segment liabilities 78375819 36248907 15126832 25,631,700  14,606972 (4,618,723 165,371,507
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

[AAKS iG] MR EIEE
Personal ~ Commercial BIA%H  Overseas 2 Inter- izt
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,233,273 914,331 372,738 524,456 (247,302) - 279749
ERBMA/ (2 Non-interest income/(expenses) 444,435 239,291 286,112 120,380 (35,478) (35,069 1,019,678
EEIA Total operating income 1,677,708 1,153,622 658,350 644,836 (282,780) (35,062) 3,817,174
BELH QOperating expenses (1,091,660) (296,834) (138,141) (443 ,201) (40,794) 35,062 (1,975,568)
TRREFERE b EERE L Operating proft/(oss) before impairment
2EE7/(BR) losses and other credit provisions 586,048 856,788 520,709 201,635 (323,574) - 1,841,606
ESREFERAMEERRE Loan impairment losses and other credit
(iRf)/ provisions (charged)/writen back (140,949) (92,699) 25000 (101,159) - - (309,806)
ThAESERAESRER Operating profit/(oss) after impairment
LRERH/(B8) losses and other credit provisions 445,099 764,089 545,709 100477 (323574 - 1531800
HERENEREMEEAERE Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ATEFRE (BR)/ e adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (2,167) - - 30 34,207 - 32,070
HEZHRE LT (BB)/ e Nt (loss)/gain on disposal of investments
in securities - - (21479 - 2753 - (100341)
RRLERERTRE B Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (56,971) - - (56,971)
il N 4 Share of results of an associate - - - 578,556 - - 578,556
ElLREHEE 2 Share of results of ointly controlled entities - - - - 17,311 - 17,311
B/ (BB) Profit/(loss) before taxation 442,932 764,089 417,833 622,092 (244,521) - 2,002,425
BB (L) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (73989  (126,075) (68,942) (27,460) 50479 - (245,987)
RiikER/ (B) Profit/loss) after taxation 368,043 638,014 348,891 594,632 (194,042) - 1,756,438
HE2013512 431 HLLER For the year ended 31 December 2013
NEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 41,266 6,467 5,047 38,062 28,280 - 119,122
R2013F 124317 At 31 December 2013
PBAE Segment assets 39,558,463 49216979 47675728 32,018,112 3,405,174 (4,647,308 167,227,148
HRRE Segment liabilities 69,442,368 32,237,167 14025526 24,726,047 14,377,779 (4,647,308) 150,161,579
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° of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension

&

to customers.

TREHZREBEZERN  BREDREAEE
ASNEPE IR EARTS - HEBMER S REIHE
ESATE MRS 2 FTE M T FEERR

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

176

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZ2014F12831 HILEFE For the year ended
31 December 2014
2 A Operating income 3,794,850 371,071 (900) 4,165,021
R 7% A1l A Profit before taxation 2,074,524 184,394 - 2,258,918
R2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014
BEAG Total assets 169,238,805 17,355,567 (1,266,296) 185,328,076
BEA Total liabilities 151,425,155 15,212,648 (1,266,296) 165,371,507
BREERDE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 554,867 = 873,534
HABERAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 74,867,402 1,937,199 - 76,804,601
& 355 T
3
BSREA Inter-
Hong Kong Pl segment HET
and Others Macau elimination Total
EHZE2013F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended
31 December 2013
N Operating income 3,483,086 334,688 (600) 3,817,174
BB A A Profit before taxation 1,847,307 155,118 - 2,002,425
12013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
BEAG Total assets 153,726,608 15,868,862 (2,368,322) 167,227,148
BEEE Total liabilities 138,645,357 13,884,544 (2,368,322) 150,161,579
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 558,265 - 876,932
AR B RRE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 73,083,535 1,886,809 - 74,970,344
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

6. FRAEWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2014 2013
FEWA Interest income
e MIERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 351,080 337,526
BHIEE Investments in securities 688,879 668,661
ZHEERNMEMEER Advances and other accounts 3,892,450 3,357,022
4,932,409 4,363,209
FEZH Interest expense
BITER BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,672,691 1,297,433
BEITHIFRE Certificates of deposit issued 72,106 90,181
BEEITHEBRES Issued debt securities 3,494 35,793
BEES Subordinated notes 189,996 133,513
Efb Others 3,650 8,793
1,941,937 1,565,713
FERABE Included within interest income
ETRRE 2 F B Interest income on listed investments 610,735 589,638
EETIRE 2 FIBUA Interest income on unlisted investments 78,144 79,023
688,879 668,661
FARAFEAEBEEB AERS Interest income on financial assets
MR EEZ2F SR A not at fair value through profit or loss 4,902,452 4,342,315
BEEE 2 A EHA Interest income on impaired assets = 1,204
FEXHEE Included within interest expense
RAARFEFE BEEBT ABE Interest expenses on financial liabilities
HEemBEZNEZ D not at fair value through profit or loss 1,937,001 1,557,019
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(AT TAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. FRBERAZWA 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2014 2013
REERASWA Fee and commission income
RARTFEFTEBEES T AERN Fee and commission income from
cRMEBEENMBEZRBEERASIA financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEEZREE R A — Credit related fees and commissions 135,992 135,670
—BomE — Trade finance 73,158 68,237
—=R+ — Credit card 311,848 302,699
HAmfR# & R A A Other fee and commission income
—BEHELEE - Securities brokerage 87,853 64,841
— IR EHE R H At — Insurance distribution and others 94,747 72,678
—TEREES LU EERRY - Retail investment and wealth
management services 170,801 131,776
—RITIRIEERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 58,599 51,175
—HREE — Other fees 128,289 108,826
1,061,287 935,902
REERASEH Fee and commission expense
RUARAFEFZBHEEB AEEN Fee and commission expense from
CREERABZRBERASIH financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
—FEERAS - Handling fees and commission 215,957 218,330
—BEfNHEMER — Other fees paid 13,610 15,659
229,567 233,989
AEERE=FIRHELE 5t CEBERE The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEHERS - ZSEUXBAFDREZEELT investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
BEEMLERNB®ERA - are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. REEWA

8. NET TRADING INCOME

2014 2013
INEE BF W E Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 193,762 211,663
FIEEERENRHF 2FERE Net loss on trading securities (11,123) (772)
REEERSZMITAETRE 2 F Net gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 51,351 56,317
BAFELEHRIEE SR THE 2 )FE1E Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to
fair value hedge (25,173) (39,677)
EEUAAFEFE BB A Net gain arising from financial
BareiT B2 F s instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss 73,583 32,546
282,400 260,077
9. Hth&EEWA 9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2014 2013
AN ERHFRE ZREWA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
— EmiRE — Listed investments 9,272 6,516
— 3 FmKRE - Unlisted investments 7,382 6,805
REYE RS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 23,650 19,111
Hip LA Other rental income 11,012 8,658
Efb Others 9,113 16,598
60,429 57,688
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. EEXH 10. OPERATING EXPENSES
2014 2013
EEFTMEENZ L (BIEEEEM) (EE11) Employee compensation and
benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 11) 1,316,240 1,218,760
TERABEEEES L - TRERTE Premises and other fixed assets
expenses, excluding depreciation
—{TEMeH — Rental of premises 160,279 153,769
—Hit - Others 126,235 117,895
P& (MizE34) Depreciation (Note 34) 139,966 115,044
EEREHEE S N Advertising and promotion costs 90,932 86,101
ENfl « X B RE & Printing, stationery and postage 49,329 48,637
EREE#EER (MiFE33) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 33) 3,398 4,078
Z SR B Auditors’ remuneration 7,437 7,213
Hith Others 233,547 229,071
2,127,363 1,975,568

1. EEFMEERNXH

11. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2014 2013
MR EMASZER Salaries and other staff costs 1,237,425 1,120,423

VAR5 B EE R SR 2 78 i e 48 Provision for share-based
(FfF5E50) compensation charged (Note 50) 5,622 26,452

BIRET Pension costs

— REHRETE — defined contribution plans 73,193 66,885
1,316,240 1,213,760
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
1. EEFMEEFAZH @) 11. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT
EXPENSES (Continued)
ez 5 AL The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
(i) BlesdEr ()  The aggregate emoluments
2014 2013
e FE - BEWA=E&REMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind
and other allowances 82,820 76,070
RIKE Pensions 2,120 2,120
84,940 78,190
(iy SAEERWAATHBSAHRRAT (i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within

the following bands:

A
Number of individuals

2014 2013
BT HKS
12,000,001-12,500,000 1 1
13,500,001-14,000,000 - 1
14,500,001-15,000,000 - 1
15,500,001-16,000,000 1 -
16,000,001-16,500,000 1 -
18,000,001-18,500,000 - 1
19,000,001-19,500,000 = 1
20,500,001-21,000,000 2 _

5 ®

fESfsmmBp @ MAZALTA - B 4467(2013F : Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
Af) REBES - HIBNESHEE 01E7EH the emoluments of 4 (2013: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’
BZMIEE12 © emoluments have been included in Note 12 below.
RERN - NEBWEREASMEERAALS No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
e - tERINASINERZARE B 2 528 s B individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
18 - compensation for loss of office during the year.
LitsfumxmBAATHNE BIEBBEEZSE The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
EFTREARIE M AN R Bl 2 BRI TRIR IRENEAL - included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services

rendered and the Group’s performance for the financial year.

N DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 181



B B Sk Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
12. EEME 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BEFZEHMn T : The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
BBERRH
FR#zER
REEAL
Incentive

2R bonuses
ENRE  accruedin

Salary, respect of URGBA &t

EZ#$  allowances services  EEMTA (1)
HE2014F Year ended Directors’  and benefits rendered  Share-based BHfRe Total
123 ALEE 31 December 2014 Fee inkind inthe year payment Pensions (Note 1)
£ Chairman
ITFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 16,050 - - 20,510
HiTES Executive directors
BEELA Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,350 - 650 12,000
THERE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 6,321 13,800 - 522 20,643
TiRERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5,271 10,430 - 492 16,193
FHTES Non-executive director
FHEREE Shoji Hirai 200 - - - - 200
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
FERLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 315 - - - - 315
REERE Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 225 - - - - 225
RREs I Seng-Lee Chan 315 - - - - 315
REBLE Yuen-Tin Ng 325 - - - - 325
fit Total 1,880 23,552 43,630 - 1,664 70,726
i Note:
1. ERERBTARTRITEEGRA 7 REKHE 1. For directors who are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries,

RRAIZEE HEZEMBARZNZHEME R remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
SIE LY ZEREFHMERTA © total remuneration set out above.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

12. EEME @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

BRFRRERE

TRz iR

AR

Incentive

2R bonuses
ENFIE  accruedin

Salary,  respect of AR & At

3%  allowances services  EHEAISA (1)
HZ2013F Year ended Directors’  and benefits rendered  Share-based Rike Total
123 BLEE 31 December 2013 Fee in kind in the year payment Pensions (Note 1)
Ed Chairman
TF¥E%E David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 3,960 15,000 - - 19,460
WIER Executive directors
FEELE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 3,350 - 650 12,000
FHELE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - 5,756 11,800 - 522 18,078
FhEEE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 5,036 9,300 - 492 14,828
FRTES Non-executive directors
IME—B%E Kazutake Kobayashi 115 - - - - 115
THEREE Shoji Hirai 77 - - - - 77
BUENTES Independent non-executive directors
LEBEE Robert Tsai-To Sze 309 - - - - 309
REERA Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung 206 - - - - 206
REBH % & Seng-Lee Chan 288 - - - - 288
REAEE Yuen-Tin Ng 294 - - - - 294
At Total 1,789 22,752 39,450 - 1,664 65,655
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13. EFREBRRAMEERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT

PROVISIONS
2014 2013
BEFREEE Loan impairment losses
BIEER R EMEE B REBEFRE (28) Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
losses on advances and
other accounts
— B 5 EK — Trade bills 2,070 937
—BFEX - Advances to customers 510,339 334,188
— A B R EMERR — Accrued interest and other accounts 20,553 (319)
532,962 334,806
FHEEFR R EALR B R EBEFRE Net charge of impairment losses
on advances and other accounts
— (&R FF A — Individually assessed 249,015 161,796
—iRARHE - Collectively assessed 283,947 173,010
532,962 334,806
ERaE Of which
— g RREINER (BIERFAEEME 2 ©FE) - new and additional allowances
(including amounts directly
written off in the year) 596,620 413,155
— Bl % - releases (22,866) (30,259)
—lgm — recoveries (40,792) (48,090)
532,962 334,806
Hib {5 E#E Other credit provisions
A S B A 2R E BRI FIRRE Net charge of impairment losses
on available-for-sale securities
— iR A - Collectively assessed 15,000 -
BREEFRRERFIERERN 2 ES Net reversal of impairment losses
& 2R EEEF B B on investments in securities
included in the loans and
receivables category
— iR EEHE — Collectively assessed (75,000) (25,000)
W BR A F 7 Net charge to income statement 472,962 309,806
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

14, HEHMBEEEE 2FER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2014 2013

& B A B E B E 2 FEER

15. REVELQFEAR 2 FRE

Net loss on disposal of
other fixed assets 2,579 2,715

15. NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2014 2013

REMERNHERR 2 F W

16. HERFREZFWE (BHR)

Net gain on fair value adjustment
of investment properties 56,809 34,785

16. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS
IN SECURITIES

2014 2013

HE & R

HEBREERMERFRER 2
BHRREFER

HERERIMEFFERE ()

it

2013 2 HETHEE B REMR RIMERREMRE

Net gain on disposal of

available-for-sale securities 21,692 107,287
Net loss on disposal of investments

in securities included in the loans

and receivables category (4,656) (172,413)
Net loss on disposal of
held-to-maturity securities (Note) - (85,215)

17,036 (100,341)

Note:

The disposals in 2013 were made after considering risk and external factors.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. ®E 17. TAXATION

EF78 RS IR BB F A E 5T B iR B0 F LA §f & Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5% (2013 F : 16.5% ) IR M o FINRFRTD 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
IR E NG IME ST FE R 5 A R AN B R A S 7S 1 overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
&2 IRITRRETE - profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

REFHBERBABINEREZR KBS Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
MEAGEEENEREEN FHREMER 2 the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
RIEREFER © year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
2014 2013

REERIA : Current income tax:
—BBFEH — Hong Kong profits tax 252,275 198,757
—BINEIR - Overseas taxation 31,957 48,528
—RIBEFETR (HB58) 2 & — Under/(over)-provision in prior years 2,760 (394)
RIEFIE (FizE42) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 42):
— BARET R = A A o - Origination and reversal of

temporary differences (64,671) (1,445)
— [FAMREEE - Utilisation of tax losses 2,988 541
BE Taxation 225,309 245,987
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. BiE @ 17. TAXATION (Continued)

AN EBRTLADE M 2 BB A RIRGR A & A Bl I The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
TR RAE 2 IBHEEEAT theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2014 2013
FR A AR A1 Profit before taxation 2,258,918 2,002,425
RE BT Tax calculated at Hong Kong
HE16.5% T8 2 FiE profits tax rate of 16.5% 372,721 330,400
THIBFAERR ¢ Tax effects of:
HMBER 2 TR = Different taxation rates in
other countries (36,847) (7,569)
Eﬁﬁ‘; B 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (25,898) (16,945)
BEFIRIAY 2 H Expenses not deductible 16,555 38,813
LA%R&%%%WZH@%%’& Results of associates and
HEEGIEEE 2 A jointly controlled entities
reported net of tax (102,787) (98,318)
ERBERER 2 HBEER Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (1,195) -
BEFEDR(B) 2BE Under/(over)-provision in prior years 2,760 (394)
A Taxation 225,309 245,987
18. RERE(REF 18. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
IR AKABMBRRAZEBRREES RN A The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
546,857,000 7t (20134 : % £/ 366,760,000 /& statements of the Company to the extent of HK$546,857,000 (2013:
JT) © profit of HK$366,760,000).
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19. RE

al

AT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DIVIDENDS

Company 2014 2013

BIRFERE : BREEAR0.10457T
(20134 : 0.09/8T)

BORREAIRE : FAREAAR0.26 87T
(20134 : 0.24/87T)

FEFF AR DRI 2014 F 5 2 F R HBRIRIE N
BTBE - 2013 FREBEZ BRI NEEA
336,369,000 % 7T ©

20. BREF

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.10

(2013: HK$0.09) per ordinary share 140,154 112,623

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.26
(2013: HK$0.24) per ordinary share 364,442 300,329
504,596 412,952

The actual amount of 2013 final dividend paid after taking into account
the additional shares issued upon completion of the Company’s rights
issue in the second quarter of 2014 was HK$336,369,000.

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

KE7|
Restated
2014 2013
(Bx) (E7T)
(HK$) (HK$)
FRAF Earnings per share
- iN Basic 1.49 1.35
e Diluted 1.48 1.35

5 B E AR A A Ty i BB & F2,033,641,0005% 7T
(20134 : 1,756,470,00078 ) R F RN B EITE
AR % (0 2 hnHE -39 £101,365,925,080 % (2013
4 :1,299,605,773 %) 5+ & °

&% #E & A T 1z B8 & F)2,033,641,000 7% JC
(20134 : 1,756,470,00075 ) R FNE EBE1TE
AR (9 2 hnHE - 5 811,369,915,482 1% (2013
F :1,302,128,774 %) W 5LFT A % & A% B 1r 8
SENFETAARANE -

2013 F 2 BREAZF R BREERFELAD
AR 2014 F K 2 R E T IAES -

RIFRITEEARAA | 20145 FF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$2,033,641,000 (2013: HK$1,756,470,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,365,925,080 (2013: 1,299,605,773) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of fully diluted earnings per share is based on earnings
of HK$2,033,641,000 (2013: HK$1,756,470,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,369,915,482 (2013: 1,302,128,774) ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the effect of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for 2013 have
been restated to take into account the effects of the rights issue of the
Company completed in the year of 2014.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
21. RERERTHER 21. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
%@ A7
Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013

RE RIERIT AR Cash and balances with banks 2,729,316 3,305,243 104,177 39,678
BANEHTFER Money at call and short notice 12,109,670 4,965,643 7,113 7,095

14,838,986 8,270,886 111,290 46,773
22. ERT1Z12EBRBHPNER 22. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS MATURING BETWEEN

ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS

£E Group 2014 2013
ERIT1IZE12@AR Placements with banks maturing
EEEtEppe between one and twelve months 5,324,811 4,101,293
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(AEEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. BFIFEERABMNESFRIEEULAFE 23. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
BEFEEHEHT ABENERE DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
=3 OR LOSS

£3 Group 2014 2013

FEBEERBENES Trading securities:

BRES Debt securities:

BB LM - Listed in Hong Kong 243,944 1,211,300
—3EETH — Unlisted 6,606,418 5,124,488
FEBEERABRNESF QR Total trading securities 6,850,362 6,335,788

EENATFEFEBEEEH A Financial assets designated at

BareREE fair value through profit or loss:

BEBES Debt securities:

—BABLAIN T - Listed outside Hong Kong 129,633 56,081

FEBBERBRRES RIEEN Total trading securities and financial

AEEFEEEZ ST AER assets designated at fair value
MR EEBRE through profit or loss 6,979,995 6,391,869
BIEEEBKBEHFANE : Included within debt securities are:
—BIEERIEEERRBEHF BN ES — Government bonds included
in trading securities 6,850,117 6,335,548
— B EE S — Other debt securities 129,878 56,321
6,979,995 6,391,869

R2014FE 201312 A31 8 » LiiF/EE=H As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no certificates of

B AT B EZ BB A ERANEOIEEE deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value

BHEHGE o debt securities.

BEEERGENBSREEUATEFFEAHE Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value

it ABEmm e @B EREITEBER S through profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

T~

£8 Group 2014 2013

— R R ET AR RERTT — Central governments and

central banks 6,850,117 6,335,548

/N - Public sector entities 245 240

—1% — Corporate entities 129,633 56,081

6,979,995 6,391,869
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
24, fTEE@T A 24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
R2014F12 A31 BRBHZHTETEEHNZ A The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
EASREQATENAT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2014 were as follows:
&/ NYE
2R4H Fair values
Contract/ EE 8%
&E Group notional amount Assets Liabilities
1) BEEERBZITETIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
H) SNETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHRHERY Forward and futures contracts 58,078,027 104,394 (120,380)
B8 A\ B L S e Currency options purchased and written 76,459,074 375,891 (375,654)
Z) FEFTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
il Interest rate futures 31,020 118 =
i Interest rate swaps 12,489,451 50,168 (155,762)
R) BERMETETR ¢) Equity derivatives
BARG LR Equity options purchased and written 332,987 9,870 (9,446)
BEEERR A TABE/(BR) At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 147,390,559 540,441 (661,242)
2) HEHRREZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
H) EEAATEHRZITEIA a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
il Interest rate swaps 19,416,887 216,388 (385,094)
ERiah Currency swaps 1,319,385 - (100,489)
B AR 2 ITETREE /(86 At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging 20,736,272 216,388 (485,583)
BRRZITEERIREE /(B A Total recognised derivative financial assets/(liabilities) 168,126,831 756,829 (1,146,825)
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24. $TEEBI B @)

R2013F 12 A31 BRI ZOTET AEG N2 %
EARAEREQFEMT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
and their fair values as of 31 December 2013 were as follows:

&t/ ATHE
L5458 Fair values
Contract/ EE a8
3L Group notional amount Assets Liabilities
1) BEEERBZITELIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
H) SNETETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BARBEAY Forward and futures contracts 49,420,058 80,348 (136,686)
BAREHINESE Currency options purchased and written 74,747,110 205,612 (203,254)
Z) FEFTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
MEHE Interest rate futures 821,908 600 (19)
i Interest rate swaps 10,700,774 10,486 (116,874)
A) ERMTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
BARG LR SR Equity options purchased and written 208,285 2,528 (2,528)
BEEBEMR AT REE /(B8R At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 135,918,135 299,574 (459,361)
2) HHEERAGZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B) EENATEHMZATETA a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ket Interest rate swaps 19,947,380 387,495 (623,816)
jgzee Currency swaps 1,379,471 - (34,079)
BemBR A TRABE/(BR) At Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging 21,326,851 387,495 (657,895)
BREAZITELRIAEE/(BE)A Total recognised derivative financial assets/(liabilities) 157,244,986 687,069 (1,117,256)

REMETAZ ATEREZREEFHEER
B(ER) WEE -

The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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24. $TEEBI B @)

FRRFAREBET L B FHGEE R 2 5
E2712A1AEERBERINAR WIEERBINE
2ER - 25T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December without taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as

follows:
£ Group 2014 2013
ERGH4) Exchange rate contracts 1,658,015 1,170,774
FEEH Interest rate contracts 156,200 209,991
Hitha 4 Other contracts 17,957 7,809

WETEZANBEERERBEHRNRS
E U TMRKREEREE -

EERRINEHELN2EFELEREL Z(R
TR(ER)RADMEAEZHE  AEME 28
BARFRXZHF REESORBFERE -

hIEREFRED ARKE2.9KE -

NEE E R AR R B 2 2 A B 0 SR
BREEERREBGIEAR 2 EHFIEE - AlEE
EEBEFREETAGBZHBHRENERER
% T A 7 518 4 51,687,000 /87T (2013 4F : Ik
7 £3466,453,000 7 7T ) © ¥R IE B FE (G R E
% 2 W %5 526,514,000 JL (2013 4F : E5i8 A
506,130,000 7T) ° UhFXEE 25K ME8 2
[BAFES BRI A 2 Fles HiE ]
|9q °

1,832,172 1,388,574

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The losses
on the hedging instruments were HK$51,687,000 (2013: gains of
HK$466,453,000). The gains on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$ 26,514,000 (2013: losses of HK$506,130,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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25. BRIEERKRHEMERE 25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

194

&£E Group 2014 2013
EAER KRB Loans and advances to individuals
—fERAFR — Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473
—RIBER - Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139
—Hfth — Others 8,660,111 6,674,529
TEERNER Loans and advances to corporate entities
—BHER — Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155
—RIBER - Mortgages 14,074,495 13,139,615
—EomE - Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081
—Hfth — Others 12,289,676 12,377,528
RPEERBEE Gross advances to customers 105,230,046 97,977,520
B5EE Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648
H & 2 (fiI3E36) Other assets (Note 36) 3,784,908 3,678,102

116,399,011 107,581,270
Mk REEE Less: impairment allowances
— &R FT Ay - Individually assessed (238,250) (244,294)
— kR ERHE — Collectively assessed (296,666) (201,212)

(534,916) (445,506)
BIEEER M EWGIELER Investments in securities included
ZEHFIEE (KizE26) in the loans and receivables
category (Note 26) - 1,062,631

ZHEERNEMRE Advances and other accounts 115,864,095 108,198,395
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25. BRIEERREMERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(R) EFERRBIFIRESEEZERE (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
and advances to customers and trade bills

BREHERX

B — BRI

Impairment allowances-Individual assessment

REER it &t
£E Group Mortgages Others Total
BAEBRRBHREEE 2 2E Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to individuals
20131 A1 HR&H Balance at 1 January 2013 257 1,155 1,412
REEE (E) /R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (819) 563 (256)
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible - (753) (753)
W BB R EMSH 2 B3 Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 780 709 1,489
2013412 531 H At 31 December 2013 218 1,674 1,892
2014 %1 A1 BR &5 Balance at 1 January 2014 218 1,674 1,892
REBE (%) RE Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (768) 1,844 1,076
AREERETMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible - (703) (703)
WEBREFME 2SR Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 768 693 1,461
2014F12 831 H At 31 December 2014 218 3,508 3,726
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25. BRIEERREMERE @)

(R) EFERRBIFIRESEEZEBEE (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

196

fBER B HERR @ and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
WEEE - RETE
Impairment allowances-Collective assessment
HERS REER Hith &%

£E Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAEBR KRB EEE 2 2E Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to individuals
2013F 1 A1 HE &R Balance at 1 January 2013 27,029 4,725 40,863 72,617
T EEERR Impairment losses charged 50,812 1,944 91,923 144,679
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible (64,926) - (106,391) (171,317)
W B B R EMSH 2 S Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 13,123 - 16,804 29,927
BE 5 R B At Exchange and other adjustments - 7 5 12
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
201441 A1 BR& R Balance at 1 January 2014 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
RIEEBRE Impairment losses charged 53,727 3,718 139,283 196,728
AEEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (66,561) - (144,873) (211,434)
WEBEREFMELER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 13,486 - 15,889 29,375
B R E A Exchange and other adjustments - (29) ®) 32
2014%12 831 H At 31 December 2014 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
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25. BRIEERREMERE @) 25.

(F) EFERKBRREZEBZBRE (@)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

BERRE B ARR (1) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
BEXER - BI04
Impairment allowances-Individual assessment
BHER BRBER ESRE Hif fit
%8 Group Term loans Mortgages  Trade finance Others Total
EEERRBH Movement in impairment allowances
AEERZEE on loans and advances to

corporate entities
2013%1 A1 BREH Balance at 1 January 2013 8,200 1,289 15,804 64,021 89,314
HEBERE /() Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 83,064 (321) 103,629 (24,320) 162,052
Rt BEEFTM A Loans written off as uncollectible - - (7,175) (18,789) (25,958)
KEEREERE 28R Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 2,725 322 1,503 12,116 16,666
B 5 A% Exchange adjustments - - - 328 328
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
2014511 BREH Balance at 1 January 2014 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
REERRE/ (&) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 68,052 (1,010) 142,687 17,704 227,433
RELERETHHS Loans written off as uncollectible (122,907) - (114,316) (25,606) (262,829)
KEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 217 25 1,635 8,014 9,951
B 5 AR R At R Exchange and other adjustments (2,001) - (938) - (2,939)
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
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25. REERKRHEMERE @ 25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(R) EFERRBIFIRESEEZEBEE (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
BERRE B ARR (1) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REEE-FAT
Impairment allowances-Collective assessment
BHER BRBER ESRE Hif fit
%8 Group Term loans Mortgages  Trade finance Others Total
EEERRBH Movement in impairment allowances
AEERZEE on loans and advances to

corporate entities
2013%1 A1 BREH Balance at 1 January 2013 27,716 6,109 21,420 42,078 97,323
EE R Impairment losses charged 3,121 2,238 6,873 16,418 28,650
REFER ST Loans written off as uncollectible - - - 2,086) (2,086)
KEEREE#E 28R Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years - - - 8 8
B 5 R A AR Exchange and other adjustments 604 - 23 453 1,080
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
2014511 BREH Balance at 1 January 2014 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
HEBRRE Impairment losses charged 27,125 5,859 40,769 13,419 87,172
ReGERE T Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (5,308) (5,308)
KEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years - - - 5 5
B 5 R A fh R Exchange and other adjustments (492) - (96) (511) (1,099)
2014512318 At 31 December 2014 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
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25. BRIEERREMERE @)

(2) BetFEREMRE 2 BIRERIRE
HR%K

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on

accrued interest and other accounts

WEEE—- BEEE-
RE R 1 55! 7 ik
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
assessment assessment
EBstFER EFER
HAtRE HiRE
Accrued Accrued

Interest and

interest and

other other
£E Group accounts accounts
EstREREMEREE Movement in impairment allowances

RIEZEEZ #E on accrued interest and
other accounts

201341 A1 BH4&eR Balance at 1 January 2013 638 -
B R R Impairment losses reversed (319) -
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 319 -
20141 A1 BH&RR Balance at 1 January 2014 319 -
R (B &S 18 (2] Impairment losses charged 47 20,506
2014%12H31 H At 31 December 2014 366 20,506
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25. REERRHEMERE @ 25. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(R) BEREEFERRERCHEHEE (c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
IRBRINT : lease receivables as follows:
&= Group 2014 2013
KEERENE 2 RIARREE Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,701,878 2,512,655
1FAEES5F Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 4,066,931 3,799,857
5 F Later than 5 years 2,406,979 3,320,741
9,175,788 9,633,253
BEMRE 2 KRB Z BE KA Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (1,045,112) (1,271,252)
BMEREREFHE Net investment in finance leases 8,130,676 8,362,001
BMEREREFHEOMAT ¢ The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,415,545 2,218,486
1FAEES5F Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,696,568 3,376,449
5 F Later than 5 years 2,018,563 2,767,066
8,130,676 8,362,001
R2014F12 A31 8 L@ ERERELA There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
RNEE B B RFIEREE (2013 4F « &) - investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).
R2014F12 A31H  AEB 2 EFRBEEER The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
FEAAEZ #EHERKRELEBET R in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2014 of the Group
34,002,000 7T (20134 : 33,731,000/&7C) ° amounted to HK$34,002,000 (2013: HK$33,731,000).
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26. BEEERREVRFIEERN2&ES 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE
B&E LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY
£HE Group 2014 2013
RAMEHERRIEN D H 2 BHIEE Investments in securities reclassified
from the available-for-sale category
—REDRF R @R T AT ES R — At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) - 548,651
— IR AT R - At amortised cost - 588,939
- 1,137,590
Bk : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— iR AR - Collectively assessed - (75,000)
- 1,062,590
RIEHERRED A BN Investments in securities classified
REWHRIB 2 BEHRE (FE) as loans and receivables upon
initial recognition (Note) - 41
- 1,062,631
e Note:
MR 2013F 12 A 31 BIHAZE LA VIGRERR S B AT Investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial
TREWNRIB B AR EEERBEDEE - R2013F recognition and outstanding as at 31 December 2013 were overdue at the time
124318 ' ZERECHHBR1FE - of recognition. As at 31 December 2013, these investments were overdue for
more than one year.
REFRAIHEERENENR S EMN2014F6 A5H For investments in securities reclassified from the available-for-sale category
MARFE 2 EZHFRE ENRREFHHEAR L ESE in the previous years and remaining outstanding as at 5 June 2014, they were
Bl o BB ME29 (F) - reclassified to the available-for-sale category on the same date. For details,

please refer to Note 29(a).
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26. BEREERREWRERN 2FS 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE
BE @) LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (Continued)

BREEERREWRIBERZ FHFIZE DTN Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables

T category are analysed as follows:

£E Group 2014 2013

BRES Debt securities:

— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong - 1,137,590

—3 — Unlisted - 41
- 1,137,631

R : REZEE Less: impairment allowances

— iR EFHE - Collectively assessed - (75,000)
- 1,062,631

th#ES2TE Market value of listed securities = 1,020,565

R2013F 12 A31 H @ LillEBESRELEHNA As at 31 December 2013, there were no certificates of deposit held

WEBERFETRE © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

BIEEERNERZUEERZ BEHIEE Investments in securities included

RETHERER DT ¢ in the loans and receivables

category are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:

—RTT R E M S s - Banks and other financial
institutions - 668,806
—1bE - Corporate entities - 468,825
- 1,137,631
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26. BEEERREVRFERERN2ES 26. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE
B®E @) LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (Continued)

() BREEERRERREBEER 2R H& (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
ErvEEREEREEYHER investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category

WIEZEHE
Impairment allowances
& Bl 31 maRh
Individually Collectively
assessed assessed

20131 A1 BH&&R: Balance at 1 January 2013 58,251 100,000
B (B &S 8 (3] Impairment losses released - (25,000)
A Allowance written off (57,170) -
ME 55, B Exchange adjustments (1,081) -
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 - 75,000
20141 A1 BR &% Balance at 1 January 2014 = 75,000
B (B 18 (2] Impairment losses released = (75,000)
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 - -
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27. AHHERES 27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

&£E Group 2014 2013

BEES Debt securities:
—&BLEm — Listed in Hong Kong 11,888,205 12,073,723
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,151,353 13,067,076
—3E L — Unlisted 1,920,824 1,711,066

22,960,382 26,851,865

MRS MERES Equity securities:
—BALM - Listed in Hong Kong 171,946 70,288
—3EEm™ - Unlisted 229,533 206,264
401,479 276,552
A E B A A Total available-for-sale securities 23,361,861 27,128,417
i Note:
R2014512 A31H  AEB R N2014F R ER K As at 31 December 2014, the Group had impairment of HK$15 million
FEWRIEENESF P EN A HEEERELERER recognised against those available-for-sale debt securities that were
15,000,000/ T ZR(E - BREEH DA FiEm 26 M reclassified in 2014 from the loans and receivables category. Please refer to
F29(F) - Note 29(a) for details relating to the reclassification.
R2014F K 201312 A31 B @ FilEKEFRE &R As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no certificates of deposit held
A E B IR BT KGR © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
A EFES Available-for-sale securities are
RBEITHBRERSITT : analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:
— R RIBUT R R SRR T - Central governments and
central banks 2,535,358 3,181,651
— NEHEE - Public sector entities 198,916 205,067
—RITREM S RS — Banks and other financial
institutions 5,161,559 6,559,368
—1F — Corporate entities 15,463,500 17,179,803
—EAfth - Others 2,528 2,528

23,361,861 27,128,417
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28. EZZHHH

28. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

£ Group 2014 2013
BRES Debt securities:
—&B/EE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 2,255,635 731,541
— BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 5,234,147 2,799,824
—3EEm™ — Unlisted 3,343,158 2,137,924
10,832,940 5,669,289
EhES 2 mE Market value of listed securities 7,519,030 3,602,160
BREEBKES Included within debt securities are:
— A NFRE — Certificates of deposit held 1,947,377 1,106,272
— B ERE 5 — Other debt securities 8,885,563 4,563,017
10,832,940 5,669,289
FER B BB SR BT AR R Held-to-maturity securities are
DATEAR ¢ analysed by issuers as follows:
— R R J AR R ERTT - Central governments and
central banks 1,219,264 935,473
— N - Public sector entities = 193,788
—iRIT R EM RS - Banks and other financial
institutions 4,927,850 3,154,149
— 1 — Corporate entities 4,685,826 1,385,879
10,832,940 5,669,289

Fal 2322014512 A 31 HRBEBIEHRKR A A
HEEBRENHEZ2FS(2013F : #) - 15
B2MMEE29(2) °

The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2014 reported above
included the securities reclassified from the available-for-sale
category during the period (2013: Nil). Please refer to Note 29(b) for
details.
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(LABBEFThz5I7R)

20. SREEZENDE

REBNEZE 2014512 A31 B IEFEAE#H»
BTIeREE -

() Efo BEEEERRERREERR
ZEZREZETHHEER

R2014F6 A5H  AEBHERKREWIELE
RIEFT D BATE BIEEE 2 % B U T 48 Bl I 5
AHERANREERAZEBFEE -

ZECRMEERENHP B ZATFEREREHES
711 5828,504,0005% 7T }2. 873,550,000 7T © EFT
DEARFE 4 2 A T{EE 18 45,046,000 8 T2 FI{E
Hb 2 mE s o

(2) EHF D BEETIHLEERFABED
%%

M20145F6 26 - AKEEFHHHEETHEEN

D AERF AT {E 4 4,378,815,000 78 . 2 AJ £ HH &

EREFAREIPFES  REASEFSRFS

ZEBHF BRI -

AREBREZ2013F12 A1 BIEFERIES
BT eRmERE -

AFERITEBBRAR | 2014554

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group made the following reclassification of financial assets in the
year ended 31 December 2014.

(@) Reclassification of investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category to the available-for-
sale category

On 5 June 2014, the Group reclassified all investments in securities
included in the loans and receivable category that qualified for
recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans and receivables
category.

The fair value and carrying value of these financial assets at the
date of reclassification were HK$828,504,000 and HK$873,550,000
respectively. The fair value loss of HK$45,046,000 generated upon the
reclassification had been taken to other comprehensive income.

(b) Reclassification of certain available-for-sale securities
as held-to-maturity securities

On 26 June 2014, the Group reclassified certain available-for-sale
debt securities with a total market value at the time of reclassification
of HK$4,378,815,000 as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting
a change in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to
maturity.

The Group did not reclassify any financial assets in the year ended 31
December 2013.



BT Rk B et

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. MENFRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

&£E Group 2014 2013
e B EFE Share of net assets 3,402,295 2,960,370
EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623
a5t Total 3,746,918 3,304,993
£5 Group 2014 2013
1A1H At 1 January 3,304,993 2,437,031
EIMEE Additional investment - 330,000
EIEGRTIE 34 Share of results, net of tax 602,299 578,556
EEBRE IR E BhFE Share of investment revaluation

reserve, net of tax 43,644 (20,399)
REHE 2 BB Loss on deemed disposal - (56,971)
BARE Dividend received (129,187) (35,624)
MR ER Exchange differences (74,831) 72,400
12 A31H At 31 December 3,746,918 3,304,993

R2014F & 2013F 12 A31 A BHERRIZEE

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

BRI ¢ December 2014 and 2013:

11 R A 3 B FEXEK bR B AL
£z Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of
Name and operation activities interest in ownership

2014 2013
EFEIRIT hEE AR HAFE RAT
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking 16.95% 16.95%
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30. BEQARRE@® 30. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
() ERRTZREMBER (@)

BERITZEATET2EAHA12A318 - HE
2014 201312 A1 B ILEEHRE - AEE
REZ2014F 12 431 H&2013F 12 A31 A1k
12@A 2HBHRRCBESEERITZESE -

Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to
the 12 months to 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

208

2014 F 2013 &
12H31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013

ERRTZEEEEREBEER Selected balance sheet

information of BOCQ

e REFRIBITHOE R Cash and balances with
central banks 44,609,051 42,025,557

FEUE IR T N & Rtk rE Due from other banks and

financial institutions 67,989,236 41,155,814
XPERMBR Loans and advances to customers 130,100,237 113,490,008
HEhemEE Other financial assets 94,690,965 63,302,319
Hb &= Other assets 5,660,511 4,792,053
BESE Total assets 343,050,000 264,765,751

FERTEABERTT K & ik Due to other banks and
financial institutions 102,010,776 43,212,243
BPEFHR Customer deposits 209,845,853 190,521,733
Hib e a B & Other financial liabilities 4,729,774 6,117,356
Hib B & Other liabilities 6,591,418 7,655,843
aEaE Total liabilities 323,177,821 247,507,175
A ET Total equity 19,872,179 17,258,576

EERITZBIRER AR EAFRITA S MEH
RAZEEESRRK

RITRITRIGER R ED A

Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying

amount in DSB’s consolidated financial statements

DSB’s share of total shareholders’

equity 3,368,619 2,925,576

hn: YRR 2 R R N B R Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition 378,299 379,417
BRTEIE Carrying amount 3,746,918 3,304,993
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30. BZEAQATKRE @)

() EERTZREMBER @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BE12ANBLFE
For the year ended

31 December

2014 2013

EERTZREKSRER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

R BUA Net interest income 7,832,779 6,540,557
F IR E RASKA Net fee and commission income 1,142,352 814,101
EREEER Loan impairment charges (1,118,118) (676,608)
TEREHEZER Depreciation and amortisation (171,951) (146,976)
FiIAS Tax expense (1,210,584) (919,685)
T A Profit for the year 3,553,508 2,941,846
Hah2mEE(E1E) Other comprehensive income/(loss) 254,628 (120,406)
EENEBTE Total comprehensive income 3,808,136 2,821,440
BWERRITIRE Dividends received from BOCQ 129,187 35,624

31. HEZFERRE

31. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

L Group 2014 2013
FEEMARMG » H=AAR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEMR U R 1A S Share of post-acquisition reserves 45,694 39,657

65,694 59,657

R 20144 K 2013412 A 31 B Ay K EEFI =2 a0

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December

N 2014 and 2013:
EHEEEZEDL
o i 3t 2 FTEEBRKE I Percentage of
728 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
HREHEAR A R A B8 WEERR - BB
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REMEEAR A A B8 BET X BA
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund
business, Hong Kong 13.333%
RIS RARAR BB BETER  BE
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund
business, Hong Kong 13.333%
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31. HEZEFEERE @

AEBERBERERAR 2 ERHHBARK
FIRTTRA - MRBELTARIALRBEEHE
RARTRIZERER AR 22 EMBRF] °

32. B RIIRERAKNE AR &R

al

A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries
of Bank Consortium Holding Limited.

32. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES

Company 2014 2013

FEETRAD - AR

U FENTB AR Z RBLRAEER - 2ER

REFEH -

R2014F12 8318 ' KRARIZHBARWMT :

Unlisted share, at cost 7,058,408 5,854,653

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2014:

RGBS ERTEBRRE
aEfi it 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER TEER Place of B f:3 issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
AFRTERAA 17 BB
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% = HK$6,200,000,000
LHH(1931) R A A NERE BB
MEVAS (1931) Limited Property Investment Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
AP BERRA mE% BB
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% = HK$25,000,000
REZKR RBRUAS
South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$1
RERK BRE
D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 75.5% - US$1,000,000
AR (HE)BRAR RAT hE AR HME
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of
China - 100% RMB1,200,000,000
BPIEERTRAERAR BRAT L
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100% MOP225,000,000
AHERAGERDA EmEE BB
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
AERpERER DA RipELR BB
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong = 100% HK$200,000
Ei RBRARE
DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1

RIRITEEER DA | 2014FF0
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. MEBRRRERENE QA HEER @ 32.

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRERBE S BERTEBERRE
aEfi it 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER FTEEK Place of HE Gk issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly  Indirectly share capital
HE RRRAHE
Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
AMEEERAA KB AR BB
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
REER BE
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$9,998
HE RRRAHE
Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1
REER 90
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$1
REER BB
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$1
AHREBRAA EREER BB
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000
Ei BB
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
E2E RBRUAS
Channel Winner Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
hEENE (BE)BRAT EEE BB
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
ZERBBRAF & BB
OK Finance Limited Money Lending Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000
i REBRURS
Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
HERERRAA NERE BB
Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited  Property investment Hong Kong = 100% HK$20
NERE EBENRS
Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
b RERS
D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited Inactive Guernsey - 75.5% US$15,000
NERE ERRAHE
Dragon Tiger Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% = uss$2
NERE EBENRS
Estoril Court Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% = US$2
NERE EBRURS
Grandmart Investments Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - US$2
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32. MEBRRRERENE QA HEER @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRERBE S BERTEBERRE
aEfi it 2 Percentage of shares held Particulars of
ARER FTEEK Place of HE issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly share capital
HNEEEERAF NERE BB
Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% HK$1
MNBEEEERAA NERE 90
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong 100% HK$1
ZEBRRA NERE RBRUAS
River Long Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% US$2
NERE KBRS
Skill Sino Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% Us$2
HEBRAA NERE EBETRS
Solar China Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% us$2
NERE RBRUAS
Superb Future Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% US$2
NERE RBRIHS
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% uss$2
NERE EBENRS
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% US$1
MRAFIEITER AR RRARARAAIN » EaipT Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company,

BRRBIARRSMREB UM I7 R
T HEMEESEM AT 2 AR T E A
e

BRAFTIRTT (FRE) GRAR - RPIHERITRG
AR AR « D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands)
Limited ([DAHCI ) K& £l 51|BR7E &7 ASN R
BRI AFIGN - B AR ETHLE o

RFEERTT (R E) BR AR 2008 F 7 B EFBR
AL - EARE AR EE A R MBI 20548
BIBRAR] (BReE  BHIRBRMZEER
&)

RIRITEEFRAR | 20145555

all the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a
Hong Kong incorporated private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., D.A.H. Hambros (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”)
and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above, all
other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. BEREREE 33. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BV EFBEf&
&4 BYEE BV EE
BYEE Core  Customer
wE Contract deposit  relationship ki &t
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
R Cost
201451518 R At 1 January 2014 and
2014F12 8318 31 December 2014 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
2iERE/ A Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201451818 At 1 January 2014 - 26,499 80,583 33,787 - 140,869
ERZH (i 10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - - - 3,398 - 3,398
201412318 At 31 December 2014 - 26,499 80,583 37,185 - 144,267
REE Carrying value
2014128318 At 31 December 2014 811,690 - - 3,592 58,252 873,534
LR EPBE
af BYEE mVAE
BREE Core Customer
BE Contract deposit  relationship ki ait
e Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
kA Cost
2013F1 A18R At 1 January 2013 and
201312 A 318 31 December 2013 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1,017,801
SV 6 Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201351411 At 1 January 2013 - 26,499 80,583 29,709 - 136,791
ERZ M (i 10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - - - 4,078 - 4,078
2013128318 At 31 December 2013 - 26,499 80,583 33,787 - 140,869
REE Carrying value
2013124318 At 31 December 2013 811,690 - - 6,990 58,252 876,932
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33. BEREFREE®@®

EEABRZEBVEERREALN BROEREE
FRARETNEERARBEBEZENF5E12
FZURFHEE - BREAEERMRYEESF
B ER B B 1B AR AR RERE RS

N

34

HEDEEREANLEERERE —HNEKD
ERPAReELBM([ReELEM]) - &
2B

-}
BOMBMEZ50T ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

2013%F12HA31 HE
2014512831 H
At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014

BERIT BASRT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &t
£H Group Banking Banking Banking Total
E Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
SBPY Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEESFERENR SR E 2ERAE
BEmMEEZHeELBMABKSE - ZiTEE
FEaE=SEEEABMGES - A58 2 AR
> KB RIAIE F SR K B AR E F IR E
%ﬁﬂ%siu&ERtoﬁsﬁﬁﬂm%E%
BAEBERHEUEBECEF BN 2 EBREE
TSR TE RIS B N 80 B VBB R 2 ST S FTAR 6 » FTAE
FA 2 B30 2R Th3 E N AN 52 [ 2 & AN Y AR I S 4
£9.7% (20134 : 10.1%) °

SR EEIT 2R ERFA T ERA2RBREEBR
5 2. 3% Tt Al B I #E B 2R % LA AP HAGT 8 2 T8 Rk
A v BRI F 8 R R 29% HEBI 55 5 6 ATB =k
R FTEAZENR X 59.7% (20134 : 10.1%)
TR ERAEE 2 BAKAIMETF IS -

EFEEYEREREERERZBERE2013
FE) -

RIMBITEBER AT | 2014F F5

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 9.7% (2013: 10.1%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 9.7%
(2013: 10.1%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2013: Nil).
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. TEREMEEEE 34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

&M~
HRERRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TZ  and motor a5
£E Group Premises vehicles Total
HZE2013F12 A31 HILFE Year ended 31 December 2013
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,163,736 311,345 1,475,081
i Additions 71,157 158,479 229,636
BN BTERBENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (57,365) - (57,365)
BN EREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 332,990 - 332,990
HeE Disposals - (5,611) (5,611)
FEZH (KisE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (34,481) (80,563) (115,044)
EHER Exchange difference 1,765 = 1,765
FAREEFE Closing net book amount 1,477,802 383,650 1,861,452
20183412 531 H At 31 December 2013
B AR Cost 1,696,455 772,684 2,469,139
2IEE Accumulated depreciation (218,653) (389,034) (607,687)
BREFE Net book amount 1,477,802 383,650 1,861,452
HZE2014F12831 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FYRREFE Opening net book amount 1,477,802 383,650 1,861,452
i Additions - 139,556 139,556
BN BTERBENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (66,966) - (66,966)
& Disposals — (2,757) (2,757)
FEZH (KMsE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (36,449) (108,517) (139,966)
ERER Exchange difference (8,325) (1,400) (4,725)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,371,062 415,532 1,786,594
2014512831 H At 31 December 2014
B AR Cost 1,625,235 877,722 2,502,957
RIEHE Accumulated depreciation (254,173) (462,190) (716,363)
BREFE Net book amount 1,371,062 415,532 1,786,594
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34. TEREMEEEE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

TEZREFERE : The net book value of premises comprises:
&£ HF Group 2014 2013
TRfEH Leaseholds
EBBFE 2 F AL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E10E50F 2 /M) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,003,124 1,097,488
TEBBLAINGE 2 EAE L Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(F10=50F 2fH) term lease (between 10-50 years) 367,938 380,314

35. REWEE

1,371,062 1,477,802

35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

£H Group 2014 2013
1H1H At 1 January 653,921 772,513
BN DBREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (332,990)
BRSO BRTERKREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 103,499 179,613
EEAFEKZS Fair value gains on revaluation 56,809 34,785
12H31H At 31 December 814,229 653,921
WEYFE 2 REFESTE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
£H Group 2014 2013
TRfEH Leaseholds
EBBFE 2 F AL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(F10=50F 2f8) lease (between 10-50 years) 743,077 598,455
TEBBLAINGAE 2 EAEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E10=50F 2 H) term lease (between 10-50 years) 71,152 55,466
814,229 653,921

RIRITEEER DA | 2014FF0
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35. REWE @)
() sHIEREVXE2AFE

AN B A 20144 2013412 A 31 B AR EY
EREBEET T EM o Wi ABB LB
EME-—ARFBEH (HERSEER) BRAR
BANRBEARPEBEANZ MRS — KR
CRF) BRARAMNRMZMERERELE S
ERBMARBEEBELTRAR 25 Z AU ER
3T AR A AC B IRHETT ©

MiZEEAYE L HEER  HEFBHHHRE
ERIFE13F(AFEFAE)VF ZAFEEE B K
EFFARTSREEMNS 2 xa MEENYER

EHEREMENEER  HPF—HEZLEA
KERRR - B RERNEZNEFH RN RE
BATEERHEEMER  IREZBENTE
5 R1,7007%8 7T (20134 : 2,300/80) EFF
73R 123,500 7% 7t (2013 £ : 103,000 7T) ° 4
EBEMUEBERN TRSBBUREME L AT EFE
BHEEAS LR D - RZIFA o

REMEDBRAE/B BV HFREEF135%
(R HERE)TF A THESRHE IR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2014 and 2013 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,700 (2013: HK$2,300) to HK$123,500 (2013: HK$103,000) per
square feet. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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35. BREWHE @) 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(Z2) AP PEERPEIRBIZ AR ETEY (b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
BR& the fair value hierarchy

TRFAVNEABEEATAEREE 2 HELA The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement

HWEIRR IR EYERTEN A TERHY R between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment

BiR 2 AR B ) 2 ¥k - properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with

significant unobservable inputs:

£ Group 2014 2013
1A1H At 1 January 653,921 772,513
ENMDEREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (332,990)
ENNBOERTENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties
—ENABATEZEMFE - Net book value of premises reclassified 66,966 57,365
-~ EHERBATESRHE — Surplus on revaluation credited to
premises revaluation reserve 36,533 122,248
103,499 179,613
NFEWE Fair value gains 56,809 34,785
12H31H At 31 December 814,229 653,921
RERFAZBEELERE Unrealised gains or losses recognised
W kP EBRZ AR in comprehensive income statement
Wz skEsiE relating to those assets held at the
end of the year
—EEHFAH - Net surplus on property revaluation 36,533 122,248
RERFE 2 EETERERET Unrealised gains or losses recognised
BRI REHR W mKEE in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
— AT ERE ~ Fair value gains 56,809 34,785
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(AEEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
35. BREWHE @) 35. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(R) BRAEIRBI AT EFES EZNER (c) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
fHER % TABRZHE
Valuation Unobservable giE
technique(s) input(s) Range
BREMEHE WARBEET A 5 W e & 2.85% % 3.50%
(EEkEx) (20134 2.85% %= 3.50% )
Investment properties Income capitalisation approach Market yields 2.85% to 3.50%
(reversionary yield) (2013: 2.85% to 3.50%)
mi5HE B G RAEEE
35 L= A 104 T
(20135 : HFHR
735 TR 5 807T)
Market rental HK$35 to HK$104
per square foot
(2013: HK$35 to
HK$80 per square foot)
LWABRBEEE A EEERATEZREDS For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
Bz THERFUABREEELREEEZEY the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
F 2 HEEAERRAZENETT o AFEET on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
EHMSHSKERAARER  EmslaEKE for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
MERARAMR - measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and

inversely correlated to the market yields.

36. Hth&EE 36. OTHER ASSETS
&= Group 2014 2013
FEUW R IE MRS IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,822,986 2,751,649
FEEURA Accrued income 732,687 705,585
HAth Others 229,235 220,868
3,784,908 3,678,102

37. HIEEEREMEAE 37. TRADING LIABILITIES
&= Group 2014 2013
HEBEREKEEES Short sales of treasury bills and

treasury bonds 5,597,614 3,362,473
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38. EFEX

£E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Group 2014 2013

EELERAISEE Y ST

BT
I AR R

BEFO&BBESHFEADEBET I RUEEE
Y& 2 I S 2 17 714,329,000 % 7T (2013 4F -
31,589,000 L) °

BEH  BAMREBMERI  AEEMEPER
ERFEER

39. ERITHERRE

£H

Demand deposits and

current accounts 25,792,461 21,143,032
Savings deposits 26,165,548 18,981,641
Time, call and notice deposits 90,622,230 89,718,478

142,580,239 129,843,151

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$14,329,000
(2013: HK$31,589,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments
under import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
carry variable interest rates.

39. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

Group 2014 2013

R A 2 @ B T RS AR

TR AR R

R2014 F & 2013 F K - NEB R ERVAFER
BHEEIMERTEREANATEAELHE
T ABZS o

AEEE S EE BT F B MRS QY
SRE A _EFTYI 2 BREE = 3,000,0007%5 7T (2013
F : 59,000,000/87T) °

40. ERITHNERRES

£

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,990,231 5,274,902
At amortised cost 1,119,546 857,659

6,109,777 6,132,561

During 2014 and 2013, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$3 million

higher (2013: HK$9 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

40. ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES

Group 2014 2013

100,000,000 7T 2014 £ B HH))F SR B
RO AT IRR (5E)

it

BEThRFTERITIA 20114 4 A 28 BB @A R1T 2 BT
SRR IR T - WEFMMER S (TFRFAT]) E
12100,000,000 % 70)F B2 ([ RHR]) - ZRBEAE
B REFEAA2014F4 A28H -

REPITEBERRDRA | 2014555 _______________________________________________________________

US$100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes
due 2014, at amortised cost (Note) - 775,385

Note:

This represents US$100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”) issued by
DSB on 28 April 2011 under DSB’s Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and
were listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading Limited (“SGX”). The
Notes were unsecured and matured on 28 April 2014.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. BEEH 41. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2014 2013
225,000,000 ZE T4 2020 4F F| #i#Y US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EBBREER GEF)) Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) 1,915,702 1,911,753
200,000,000 =Tk A E B EFEL US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated
(F£(2.)) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (b)) 469,056 486,740
225,000,000 #7103 7o R 2022 4 EI| HA Y S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate
EEREER GE(R)) Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) 1,301,352 1,363,978
225,000,000 ZE T4 2024 F F| HifY US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELBEREGE(T)) Rate Notes due 2024 (Note (d)) 1,746,268 =
5,432,378 3,762,471
R4 A = @ g T A TESI R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,963,322 3,762,471
R BR At amortised cost 469,056 =
5,432,378 3,762,471

R2014F K 2013 F KN - NEB KRB R VIR R
BHETTMBREEBABAATEFTEEELEH):T
ABEE o

Fa

() k73 R ¥ R 17 R2010F2 1180 & 17 2
225,000,000 3= 7T 75 ¥ 22 Bt 1 32 4% 57 7€ 4 B o0
BARNESBESHE(EK] - LEEHHR
20202 A11 BEH] - F£256.625% ' BHF
=R o RERITING B —BEBRRITEI L F =R
= HE A EBEEE RN SRR AAETRITR
S RERZEFSMARK -

(Z) k75 R ¥ 4R 17 R2007F2 160 % 17 2

200,000,000 E L= R T LR E A= E

B INE AR AE BEEER ([E]) o LEE

2 BEBWHEER A2017F2A17H - BE1TH

FHEEZEMBEER  F5/56.253%  BFFEN

B—R o Hig - MEBREEREEEERED -

HemF EeE:] A3 EABETRITRZERE

MN190% T - ERBAEBSERTE LM - K

SRATRI R IRIB I MBI A ok B B IS5 IE e AR BT 3R

AAZEEEEEEAFA (D) &R o KRR

B E—BIRRRTTR] AR E A A i E R A

EF SRR AT IR TR I 8 AR H)ZE)

FEAFHK

During 2014 and 2013, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 11 February 2010
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
11 February 2020. Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

4.

BEBK @)

& ¢ (&)

(2)

(A)

(T)

(%)

20104 % 2009 F © AFTRTTR 4L LR S5
A R R ATRERE AR A RES A
75,000,000 7T 570,000,000 7T 2 S (&7
MmBMZzEEBERERESEEEER AL
BT -

bt 75 K 7 iR 17 KR2012462A8H % 1T 2
225,000,000 7 N3 7072 #1 32 F7 £ T 4 57 E B
MifnEArE S A EER ([EF]) - WEEFS
72022452 A9HEIH] - EIZEEE H 52017
F2A9H - AFITAZHREBHBEER  £5
R4.875%  FEFNBE—K - B HEBR
EREMEERED RN EEETAER
5EHAF N IR IS R N376 % F - EEBE
BT RIELIE - KFIRITAIREZEEEA
FAFEEARFEN KA LZEEEEED RS
(FEEB P ) BT o RFTIRITINE B —EPRIRITEI L
FZ 2 By & Q1S B 8 & E A SR R AR TR
TREFEAERRZBFIS R -

It T3 K 37 SR 17 M 201441 A298 % 17 2
225,000,000 TEBABHERFER A F
(TEBXRSA]) L RGEEZEBBE I MR
ERZHRERNI0FHE SBREES (HETE
BCRITE (BAR) RADZ EHR) - EBEBHER
202441 A29 HE|H - EEMEEREH F2019F
1H29H - AETHEHBREMEER F84
5.25% * B¥FEHE—R - Hi @ WEFREE
BUBEHEE  TrOFNSeEIRERSF
BB EEREFEXRNITSE T -  EREEES
ERTBERE  RFRITAIRBZUE R AKE
MISEARA SN REAZmMEEEE S GE
o) B o RIFTRITINE B —BFRERITEI LA
i S B EB R EE I SRR AETRTT
R S AR ZENF EFR -

AEBMAENEREEEIPNEANENOSER
LA kB %1l 2 BF T {8 1X 197,000,000 7T (2013 4F : K
212,000,000787T) °

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

M.

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In 2010 and 2009, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total
notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000 respectively
at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount of interest
rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after receiving prior
approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of DSB issued on 8 February 2012
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 9
February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel IlIl compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are
not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$197 million
lower (2013: HK$212 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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42. EFEFIIE

EEHBEERBBENH R EARGENITE
%155 BN HAT 18 8 2 AN B AT 18 B (B B SR AR IR
B[R] — RIS B A RS 7 1T - B2 RN

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

N relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
£H Group 2014 2013
FRIEFR I & = Deferred income tax assets 80,591 22,975
FERIB A & Deferred income tax liabilities (65,077) (34,304)

BEXERBREENRBBRBEREZE 2 HEBER K
B 2 R B IO

M

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date
of recovery and settlement are as follows:

Group 2014 2013

ERERAEE
— Al 12 {8 A R E 2 R ER AR E

ERERIARRE
—BE1REAREEZEEHEARE

Deferred income tax assets:
— Deferred income tax assets to
be recovered after more
than 12 months 137,366 88,233

Deferred income tax liabilities:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to
be settled after more
than 12 months (121,852) (99,562)

15,514 (11,329)
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42. EIEFIE (&)
EIEFETAER B 2= Ean T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

£HF Group 2014 2013
1H1H8 At 1 January (11,329) 7,968
A UK 2 BR A I8 [0 7% Tax credited to the income

(M3E17) statement (Note 17) 61,683 904
AR AR AT IR S (5T 46) Tax charged to equity (Note 46) (34,183) (20,539)
EHLER Exchange difference (657) 338
12AH31H At 31 December 15,514 (11,329)

BELEMBEERABERAFEZES - FTRER
HRBAE SR THIEZAEHBOT

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

224

IREFRIEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
AR R
ERERERE R EHA
Impairment REEM Deferred
allowances BiEEE  Investment expenses &%
55 Group and provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
201341 A1H At 1 January 2013 30,878 4,606 24,101 26,939 86,524
RUEERA @R () Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 12,594 (541) - 9,255 21,308
RERIRAX 1 Charged to equity - - (19,937 - (19,937)
ERER Exchange difference 273 - - 65 338
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
k20141 /11 and 1 January 2014 43,745 4,065 4,164 36,259 88,233
RURESBR A BB (S2 ) Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 52,508 (2,988) - 4,434 53,954
AR R BR IS (H Charged to equity - - (33,831) = (33,831)
S papil Reclassification - - 29,667 - 29,667
EREE Exchange difference (582) - - (75) (657)
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 95,671 1,077 - 40,618 137,366

AFERITEBBRAR | 2014554
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42. EIEFIE (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

IBEEFIEBEEE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERHBHE RENXEM
Accelerated TEEfE  Investment REER
B tax  Premises  properties  Investment 2t ait
&8 Group Provisions  depreciation  revaluation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
20131 A1H At 1 January 2013 6,207 53,699 - 17,791 692 167 78,556
RpERRZE Charged to the income statement 915 11,624 - 7,865 - - 20,404
REGRRZ L Charged to equity - - - - 602 - 602
201312 A31A At 31 December 2013 and
R2014%1518 1 January 2014 7,122 65,323 - 25,656 1,204 167 99,562
RESERL L/ (R8) Charged/(credited) to the income statement 1,855 7,654 - (17,071) - (167) (7,729)
RERFRT Charged to equity - - - - 352 - 352
B Reclassification - - - - 29,667 - 29,667
014512831 B At 31 December 2014 8977 70,977 - 8585 31,313 - 121,852

T Ty F AR R AR A ST IR FERUIR

The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as

follows:
£H Group 2013
RIS 2 A EFEE Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
— A ER S (3 46) — available-for-sale securities
(Note 46) (34,183) (20,539)
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. BREERQEZ &R 43. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Eﬂﬂﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁqﬁﬁa BFEEERE N IR — R EF Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
EITR GFIESE 2 HEERFFIT balances with group companies arising from transactions conducted

on normal commercial terms:

- Group 2014 2013
ikl N o Balances from the holding company
EEGER Deposits from customers 7,962 3,480
1R R A Rl 48k Balances from fellow subsidiaries
ZEERMEMER Advances and other accounts 29,275 17,259
BEFR Deposits from customers 1,655,642 1,619,231
HEaiR B RTER Other accounts and accruals 4,259 4,416
RIEERS Subordinated notes 41,021 40,934
AHE] Company 2014 2013
EAHIEE A Rl 2 R Balances with a subsidiary
IRTTAEER Bank balances 111,290 46,773
44. FAREBBRAIRE 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
() BEAREE (a) Capital commitments
M12 A31 BERE ADARIRBEEBEBBAER KB Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
ABEEEZEREELT : assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:
£H Group 2014 2013
EHEEREN AT Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 16,078 22,109
EEAERRRER X Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 140,972 153,260
157,050 175,369
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44, HAREBRAE @)

(2) FERE

AEFBEEABRIMVAERETEPZERMTA
BREEREGERBRINESENT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

EHEE
Contract amount
58 Group 2014 2013
HEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 683,652 1,858,669
EAZZ 5188 AR B Transaction-related contingencies 302,523 285,002
B 5 A IEE Trade-related contingencies 501,525 651,824

AR BUR T NRTR S @A A

Commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 64,212,547 60,823,138

H A Other commitments with an
[RAEARR 7 - original maturity of:
— DR 1E - under 1 year 3,982,693 5,401,515
—1ERRE -1 year and over 998,616 1,497,268
REATER Forward forward deposits placed = 12,457
70,681,556 70,529,873
EERBIMNESRE
Credit risk
weighted amount
58 Group 2014 2013
N B E SR Contingent liabilities and
commitments 1,725,203 2,474,576
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44, HAREBRIEIE @)

(W) BEERZEE

TRTRRAREEINEESBEBELFNEE R
% KEBMERGEESERIINEESE

2K
i)

% 3
N)“r

A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)
(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

follows:

Group 2014 2013

ERGTE2ERNEE :
FIEEERENES
A EE

HEARE
FIEEERZNERE

TRTIBIREEGRER TIERESREE 2
B Es M EREAGEZREE

£E

Assets pledged with HKMA:

Trading securities 5,157,236 3,132,132
Available-for-sale securities 395,430 169,051
5,552,666 3,301,183

Associated liabilities:
Trading liabilities 5,597,614 3,362,473

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

Group 2014 2013

ClfE# T 2 EREE -

AN EES
R EEBIHIE S

D

ECEE
RITEH
b8 B RAER

BB ZRFLERBAENATFERER 2
MEREENES -

REBEHHEMA - AERETEER - HEHER
NEES  THHER 2EBFNETANEER
|§uu o

RIMBITEBER AT | 2014F F5

Assets pledged under repurchase

agreements:

Available-for-sale securities 94,500 512,318

Held-to-maturity securities - 16,882
94,500 529,200

Associated liabilities:

Deposits from banks 89,421 408,051

Other accounts and accruals - 97,862
89,421 505,913

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the
duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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44. FARBBEREAE @ 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(T) R&EHERIE (d) Operating lease commitments
MAEBEAEBA BT BUBMELEHREM Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease
RARRAL 7 HIEHESMRAAZENT ¢ payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:

&= Group 2014 2013
15 AR Not later than 1 year 158,901 159,051
1FUABRESF Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years 112,500 214,007
5ELAE Later than 5 years 47,428 61,661

318,829 434,719
MAEEAHTEAA @ EAAECEYEKQCLAEm Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
RARRBES N7z HEBENZRBEENT : payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as
follows:

&£E Group 2014 2013
15 AR Not later than 1 year 30,535 31,230
1FUABRESF Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years 19,128 49,936

49,663 81,166
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. B 45. SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013
SEERRA Authorised:
1,500,000,000 A% :@p% 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares
BREEET of HK$1 each N/A 1,500,000
2014 2013

BRE R e FRAR
BRTRHRKRA Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
BER SREME1ET Ordinary shares of HK$1 each shares Capital shares Capital

1A1H At 1 January 1,251,371,105 1,251,371 1,251,371,105 1,251,371
R2014F3 A3 HBE Transition to no-par regime

EEZEEE on 3 March 2014 - 4,404,692 - -
BATHRAR N Issue of shares under rights issue

(EMBREITIRIDER) (net of share issue expenses) 150,164,532 1,192,533 = =
AT R ETRG Issue of shares upon exercise of

(B RN IERER share options (with transfer from

Wl %) share-based compensation reserve) 166,168 1,758 = =
12 A31H At 31 December 1,401,701,805 6,850,354 1,251,371,105 1,251,371

201463 A3 H « # R EHEHIER  #2FlE
Bls& ) T BT B S M AL 2 8 IR A A B ER A &
EESE - WERAEEABSAINEE - RDE
B AREEBEAREMEN o

BEFLARKY BROZEBETZE&
4,404,692,000/%5 7T 2 12014F3 A3 H B AR ©

%2014%55 9H ' KARITTRAERSHETZ
REEEZR T 100 IRA% (7 AT AL 12 AR EARAR 15 2
% o ANA A 21T 150,164,532 R ILAZ D -

HIBAREN 200456 A12 BERA R EE
(lezRiRiERT81]) - BZRIRERTEIEITAK -
97 17 (2013 £F : 92 17 ) RN LAREE 14,356,991
fi% (2013 4F : 13,590,590 %) A AR D B
BIHCESREENSRITRAE - BZ:T
2 pK 37 18 22014F 12 A31 B 1E - 5119 (2013
& 4719D) RARHELATREE 2,039,841 % (2013 4F -
1,790,590 %) AN A IR D B KRk B E o

RIMBITEBER AT | 2014F F5

On 3 March 2014, the NCO came into effect, which adopts a
mandatory system of no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated
companies having a share capital and abolishes the concepts such
as nominal value, share premium and requirements for authorized
capital.

In accordance with the NCO, the balance standing to the credit of
the share premium account in the amount of HK$4,404,692,000 was
transferred to share capital on 3 March 2014.

On 9 May 2014, the Company completed a 12-for-100 rights issue at
the subscription price of HK$8.00 per share. A total of 150,164,532
new shares were issued.

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 12 June 2004, 97 (2013: 92) options to subscribe for
14,356,991 shares (2013: 13,590,590 shares) of the Company had
been granted to certain Directors and senior executives of the Group
since the inception of the Scheme. Up to 31 December 2014 and since
the incorporation of the Scheme, 51 (2013: 47) options to subscribe
for 2,039,841 shares (2013: 1,790,590 shares) of the Company have
lapsed or expired.
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45. BRZS (@)

RERNHEERDRITHRA BRBBIAE B
B ZRBRERARRBRMDEEZEZHMT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share
options under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives
during the year are as follows:

RRERRGHE
Number of shares
in the options

2014 2013

1H1H At 1 January 11,800,000 11,800,000

REART Granted during the year 300,000 -
REREIR T E 2 AR Adjustment for rights issue

completed during the year 466,401 -

RERFTE SRR Exercised or lapsed during the year (415,419) -

12HA31H At 31 December 12,150,982 11,800,000

K12 A 31 BIDARETE 2 BEAEF T

Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as

follows:
RREFRAHE
AREHA Number of shares
Number of options in the options
RYBRTHEE Date of grant and exercise price 2014 2013 2014 2013
2011128128 - 12 December 2011, at an exercise
BEESRS.N B price of HK$8.91 per share* 15 15 8,100,655* 7,800,000
2012412 A218 21 December 2012, at an exercise
BITEESRT7.968 L price of HK$7.96 per share* 24 30 3,738,763* 4,000,000
20143 F 260 - 26 March 2014, at an exercise
RITEEER11.68/8 T price of HK$11.68 per share* 5 - 311,564* -
44 45 12,150,982 11,800,000

* IRIRFZ B BAER B Z GR - DRIETTE 2 RRAHE
RARERD#E RITRED AR FN20145F
5 A Z HARIEHTEEE -

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, adjustments were made to the
exercise price and the number of shares that can be subscribed for
under the then outstanding share options as a result of the Rights Issue
of the Company completed in May 2014.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. 18 46. RESERVES
WRftR  REER
fEEMRRE REEMHRR EREH AR (&)
ROEE  GEEE  Premises Investment  EXHE  -REE Resenefor  Retained
Share Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General share-based  Eamings At
1] Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve compensation (Note) Total
014E1 1R At1 January 2014 4,404,692 (220,986) 202,267 (40,409) 391,690 700,254 43711 10,356,871 15,798,750
R14E3A3EA% Transftion to no-par regime
FREENR on 3 March 2014 (4,404,692) - - - - - - - (440469
fifEAReE Exercise of share options - - - - - - (435) - (435)
THHERS A TR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BENERRNED securities recognised in equity - - - 260490 - - - - 260490
DFEEENIEREETH  Fairvalueloss realised and transferred to
HERBINEN S BARR income statement upon disposal of
REdEEER R E investments in securities included in
Blz@5RARER the loans and receivables category and
FERElER held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from the
available-for-sale category - - - 3,756 - - - - 3,756
AFEhRRLETHNE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
FFRERRERE R income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - - (21,692) - - - - (21,692)
REEFEREZHZEMLR  Defered income tax on movements in
(Hrz42) investment revaluation reserve (Note 42) - - - (418 - - - - (48
REENABNERRE Reserve arising from reclassffication of
VIEVA premises to investment properties - - 3,533 - - - - - 3,533
ASBINBLARERRE Exchange differences arising on
HERZR translation of the financiel
statements of foreign entities - - - - (108,600) - - - (108,600)
MR AR AT Provision for equity-settled
Eipg L share-hased compensation - - - - - - 3754 - 3754
ERmA Profit for the year - - = - = = - 0033641 2,033641
RES /6 2013 final dividend - - - - - - - (336,369)  (336,369)
0145RERE 2014 interim dividend - - - - - - - (140154 (140,154)
NEAIA At 31 December 2014 - Q0gE 20 1679 2300 70024 7630 1191399 13090799

RIRITEEER DA | 2014FF0
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46. f#fE @

46. RESERVES (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

WRhE  REEA
EERRE RABRER U bl (i)
BHEE  GREE  Pemises Investment  EXGE  —KEE  Resevefor  Retained
Share Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation ~ Exchange General share-based  Eamings At
58 Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve compensation (Note) Total
013F1 1A At 1 January 2013 4,404,692 (220,986) 80,019 98,643) 285,172 700,254 130 9,000,839 14,162,077
RER5 AT ENE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
NERRAET securities recognised in equity - - - 50413 - - - - 50413
DFEEERUERAEARE  Fairvalueloss realised and transferred to
HEBAIRENEARR income statement upon disposal of
ReElErEER R investments in securities included in
BRl EFRERES the loans and recelvables category and
REEENER held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - - 135,647 - - - - 135,647
ATERRRmETHETE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
Py SNE LB income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - - (107,287) - - = - (107.287)
RAERREESZETHE  Defored income tax on movements in
(M 42) investment revaluation reserve (Note 42) - - - (205 - - - - (05%)
REENABNEARE Reserve arising from reclassffication of
VIEPA:A premises to investment propertes - - 1248 - - - - - 1228
REBINHEATNBRR Exchange differences arising on translation of
HEGZZ the financial statements of foreign entities - - - - 105918 - - - 105918
DR AR AT Provision for equity-settled share-based
R compensation = - - s - - 4241 = 4241
ERi Proft for the year - - - - - - - AT56470 1756470
N0EXERS 2012 fnl dividend - - - - - - - peigs Te)
013FRERE 2013 interim dvidend - - - - - - - (112628 (112629
013F12F318 At 31 December 2013 4,404,692 (220,986) 202,267 (40,409) 391,690 700,254 4311 10,356,871 15,798,750
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

46. & @
it

RHATIRIT BB EMIRITAAEE R A ERHREE
S MERER AN RACRERSE - BRZEER
BHRTEEBRITEGIMAFTEEERBNZ AN
EERE %EERERBAIKETRRFERE
EERBCEPARTESERETEN  LEERE

R2014F12 A31 B - AFERITE 157E 1,481,245,0007 7T
(2013 4F : 1,433,269,0007% 7T ) 2 & FEIE A EE ML E
HESE — MG SEBLERARBRAERNPIEE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS in
the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2014, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,481,245,000 (2013: HK$1,433,269,000) first against its consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against

its consolidated retained earnings.

DY T S8
B REHE
BM 8%

Provision for

B REEA equity-settled
Share Retained share-based &5t
AT Company Premium Earnings compensation Total
201361 H1H At 1 January 2013 4,404,692 35,822 130 4,440,644
FEw A Profit for the year - 366,760 = 366,760
ARR A S A AR 1) A LTt Provision for equity-settled
BN < B share-based compensation = = 4,241 4,241
2012 FREIR B 2012 final dividend = (287,815) = (287,815)
2013 FHHR S 2013 interim dividend - (112,623) - (112,623)
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 4,404,692 2,144 4,371 4,411,207
20141818 -tk At 1 January 2014, as above 4,404,692 2,144 4,371 4,411,207
R2014F3 A3 HEE Transition to no-par regime
EERZEENE on 3 March 2014 (4,404,692) - - (4,404,692)
FREEM Profit for the year - 546,858 - 546,858
R B AT RRRAE 2 [ Reserve arising from
exercise of share options - - (435) (435)
AR A S 1 AR 1 A LTt Provision for equity-settled
BN < B share-based compensation - = 3,754 3,754
2013 FREIE A 2013 final dividend = (336,369) = (336,369)
2014 FHEARL B, 2014 interim dividend - (140,154) = (140,154)
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 - 72,479 7,690 80,169
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() NMRREBER 2 EERNELEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit after impairment

BREESRAFEHERER losses to net cash flows from operating activities
2014 2013
MR E/BER 2 E&ERT Operating profit after impairment losses 1,564,696 1,531,800
R B Net interest income (2,990,472)  (2,797,496)
H& s Dividend income (16,654) (13,321)
EFUREBERELMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 472,962 309,806
e Depreciation 139,966 115,044
B EE B Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 3,398 4,078
IR EUiE 2 Bk aH)F 88 Advances written off net of recoveries (439,482) (152,024)
AR AE Sz A ARR 1 A Tt B 2 48 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 3,754 4,241
B AR Interest received 4,936,140 4,261,394
ERME Interest paid (1,581,648)  (1,196,863)
BB Dividend received 145,841 57,737
BEERABRYRIZEE R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,238,501 2,124,396
HEEERBEZES Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—RERERITHEH LR B BB - cash and balances with banks and money
3ME A 2B &R ETER at call and short notice with an original
maturity beyond three months (873,074) (855,447)
—RIEE BB EA 2 ERITHFR - placements with banks with an original
maturity beyond three months (1,605,524) (1,637,694)
—FREEERSGNES - trading securities 947,848 (649,613)
*ﬁiéﬁﬁli — derivative financial instruments (40,191) (425,259)
—EENRTEFZ A EEEABREMN - financial assets designated at fair value
ﬁrﬂﬁ? through profit or loss (73,552) (32,556)
O L - trade bills (1,458,409)  (1,595,776)
—BRFEHX - advances to customers (7,252,526)  (11,803,939)
—HifRE - other accounts (79,703) 217,668
—BREEERREWRIERR 2 BHFRE - investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables category 2,910 2,281,756
— A HEE - available-for-sale securities 711,974 (5,137,080)
- -iriﬁllﬁﬁ* - held-to-maturity securities (863,088) 1,378,126
HEEEHIEE — loan to a jointly controlled entity 14,620 =
- fETTTM - deposits from banks (422,830) (650,323)
—FEEERENERE - trading liabilities 2,235,141 1,084,429
—BPEX - deposits from customers 12,737,088 11,906,749
— BTN - certificates of deposit issued (28,645) 807,084
—HitbAR B RIER - other accounts and accruals (302,256)  (1,239,551)
b 5 SR Exchange adjustments 49,772 (120,147)
REEEBRA /(A MRS Cash generated from/(absorbed by)
operating activities 5,938,056 (3,847,177)
THBEITHEREZFIE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (76,598) (80,609)
BHEENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (262,604) (128,393)
BEUBINIR Overseas tax paid (27,143) (19,836)

mEEEEA (R BE %8

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 5,571,711 (4,076,015)
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
47. HERERELFERKT 47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

() EHEEREZFERAN HENERR (b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
SHEBERREERFTEIEATUT and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
Mg REEESLLES with maturity of three months or less from the date of
AEKMETEEEREREE S S acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to
ZER o known amount of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

£H Group 2014 2013
e MIERITHE Cash and balances with banks 2,402,187 3,011,711
REIHRE3 @A ‘)ZLATZ AN ER Money at call and short notice

with an original maturity

within three months 10,751,666 4,447,115
JREIEA B 72 3 & A sk LA N 2 FEERITAITF 3K Placements with banks with

an original maturity within

three months 886,792 1,268,798
FHEEBRENES Trading securities 2,040,796 578,374

16,081,441 9,305,998

48. ERAEER 48. LOANS TO OFFICERS
HEREBNTEGFE161BIE  ERTIHZAEZ Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section
U 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
12 A 31 B4t FAERBRSER
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
2014 2013 2014 2013
e kA B aEerERE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 202 219 322 439
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49. FREALZXRE

BEREALRZEALARNERIMEEESS
— 7 FHE - TEELP R EERRTET
EERTES - WEEMTRALZEHKRZES
FHAEATER  REALTRE/SEEEA
4.

R2014F % 2013%F » AEBREBEA LB
AEBZZERAT - AEAMBAR - ZERARZ
RERFEEHEIEERENKEBERATENZ
REETZHARS - NABBELIFAITESER
BIASE 2 MisHiRR 2 8ZEWTHEF)
RN BRFEEAMEZ X HETERN - ZFE
EREBEREEREBEANEEEZAR  RAZH
SEEMEZRGIRBARBZERER - &
RtE - —REXEIRES  BATFEAER
HEARRBIREENHET -

HABBEALTZERRZSIT :

() RERAFREZMBLTNRS

AARRAEEZENE A AR FEANEZERA A
RRAZMBAREIZHERAER S (ERAE
BMERZMBERARAES EMRA( LW
Al 14A31 BO)WEI REE T2 WA R I H ©
ZERGZBRERBANFEIRE EMARANE
14A53E R 14A54 8 - MRARASEZFE £
R o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or common significant influence.

During 2014 and 2013, the Group entered into various transactions
with related parties including the holding company, fellow subsidiaries
of the Group, companies directly or indirectly controlled or
significantly influenced by the shareholders or directors of the holding
company. These, as described in Note (a) below and being continuing
connected transactions, had been reviewed by the Company’s
independent non-executive directors in their review of the financial
statements of the Group. Based on their review and enquiry with
management, the Company’s independent non-executive directors
were satisfied that all of the continuing connected transactions
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with relevant
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from the
continuing connected transactions (within the definition of Rule
14A.31 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) entered into
with the holding company and fellow subsidiaries during the year. The
aggregate values of these transactions are within or consistent with
the respective annual caps applicable to the Group pursuant to Rules
14A.53 and 14A.54 of the Listing Rules.
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49. EREATZRE @)
() HERARARRZMEBARNRS (&)

RES LM ERRBEAFIRT  RPIFERTT
kE—SENBRARHEREFRAR(MHE))
RHZBARTH 2T ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49.
(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Income or expense arising from transactions involving subsidiaries,

namely DSB, BCM and another subsidiary of the Group, Vanishing

Border Investment Services Limited (“VB”) are as follows:

£ Group 2014 2013
EFLE (FE () Interest paid (Note (i) (11,701) (11,839)
BUWERITFEE (FX (i) Bank charges received (Note (i)) 7,983 6,874
BEliEe REFAAEERE KRS Rentals and related building
(&% (i) management fee and charges
received (Note (ii)) 19,661 15,288
ENHeREFAAEERE KRS Rentals and related building
(& (iii)) management fee and charges
paid (Note (jii) (9,814) (5,422)
BRERE (FE(iv) Management fees received (Note (iv)) 16,188 16,599
BlRRAE RENE (FF(v) Insurance commission and referral
fees received (Note (v)) 115,025 106,864
S RERE (FE (Vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (16,909) (15,486)

() AEEARHSREBEETARRKZRITRYE

RITIRITRAEEE MK B R A REZERA R RIE
AEENE AR RRME AR (58 [ K
SE D REEARRITIRG - SEXREEE - 88
#BiE - XERRTERES - GRAREPRIE -
BEEARRRERR -

FRAXERE  aBER XERFHREPZR
1TIR% - THRIRIRER P MEMRRARE T A
SEEMEPZHART A RET AN EREE -
ER AP RIEREEERRLZHNRIBERRE
EaNW BiIEmisRERHE - ERREPRIEZ
RAETISBEPIWEEEFH - HRITAIAZER
HTFIARIE - REE LA & RSB 2B =8
R REREMFR  AIBEN—FHETH
D6 AR S EBA T IARIE - B ZSRITR
B EEE — RIS IZREEF R - Bt -
REBEAH ©REEM 2 RITLHE - ThiRIEE
EFHLRMH -

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

Note:

(0]

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Group provide standard banking services
to members of the holding company and fellow subsidiaries not being
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including
cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit
card merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment
dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque
and deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way
as they are provided to other customers of the Group under standard
account opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities
and co-brand credit card arrangements are provided under normal
commercial contracts and are at market standard. The standard market
practice for credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed
term, but allow for termination at the option of the bank by giving written
notice. The co-brand credit card arrangements between the Group and
the DSFH Group can be terminated after the first two years by either
party giving not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking
services, by their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term.
Accordingly, the banking arrangement between the Group and the DSFH
Group are not for a fixed term.
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49. EREATZRE @)
() HERARARRZMEBARNRS (&)

it ()

() AEESRMcBEBRETNARREZRITRN
(&)

HARBZRITHBERRAAHEHEBRR TR
AR ZIRITIRG - AAKEREMEFPREMHZ
—RRIRITIRS R HE - BIRIRIE R B F GRE
17 o REBMAFT LB EBRHZFRITRS -
SAREE A RIEZ S RITIRGIEE RARE — B
ZEBRA o

AEEZRITHE A BN —RRIEFELBRED
REFPIRHEERTRERER - ZFRS
RERBRERATR(BEEEHFERBAT
K)o RAEBEZRITHBRRFRERZES
BREAMEHEBKERR - B ETRAME
A& RSB E R A7 RFRER LR RIS
VAABFISEZ FBER S

EEERANEBEBAXEARNFHRAANEEZ
RITMBR R 2 FHRIEM SRS - XHFE
BRETELE =77 2 GERBERTERZE K
R ERREEESR - BABERZETHEUR
SEBEFEER - BER - ZERERERS
EReET EmARRIE14A.9016 2 Bl - WE R
B RRBAEZ FRE ©

(i)  AFRERRE - RHFREBRARE - AT RAM

RERANAFIRTT - SEFRFIHERITEZME
HE
RFRTT  BPIRERTRBECHERTEE

METAFTEREB KB RF - AARFRER
BHERRR ([RHREBRS ) - AFRBRRES
BRAR ([AFRERRIE]) - KIABRBERD
A RHAE]  BFRBRERXR(DRPR
@ 1) RARFRITIEE PR E R - KFiRT R
FIRERIRTT R B R P EE A 2 B R AR R A S R
B AR « AFTIRBRAIE - K37 AR KRBT R U
RiES =8 KEEBREREMAXKREE
R e BRI ZHEREMIINTE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49.

(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(U]

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group (Continued)

The banking services provided by the Company’s banking subsidiaries
to the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by the Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by the Group to the DSFH Group enables the Group
to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of the
banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of the Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual
course of their businesses. Such services and products include the
taking of deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and
deposits at call). Customers who place deposits with the banking
subsidiaries of the Group include members of the DSFH Group.
For purposes of the Listing Rules, the placing of deposits provided
by members of the DSFH Group constitute continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of the Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security over
the assets of the Group is granted in respect of such financial assistance.
On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are exempt from
complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
and BCM

DSB, BCM and VB have leased certain of their owned properties to
members of the DSFH Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Services
Limited (“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”), Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited (“DSLA”), Macau Insurance Company
Limited (“MIC”) and DSB as their office premises. DSB, BCM and VB
received from DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC the lease rentals, and air-
conditioning charges, building management charges and other utilities
charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred. The following
table summarises the leases that have been entered into.
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49. BEEREALZRE @)
(R) BERATRERKBELARTNRS @ (a)

49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

240

= (&) Note: (Continued)
(ii) KRB IRTS « AFRB IR - A ASE RIRFT (ii) Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
RBFIAFIRT - HERRPIBERTEZ W% and BCM (Continued)
HE (&)
SRHES
(TEEEEER
AHRIEE R
Monthly rent (exclusive
X% A8 ARG HERN HE2NE of management fees and
Transaction date Contracting parties Term of lease Property subject to lease utility charges)
2010412 A30 A AMPARTAFRERSE  2011F1818F EAILAREES10RBEANE 18122E - IHABREER HK$447,206
30 December 2010 DSB leased to DSIS 201312 A31H 514,426 7 R
1 January 2011 to The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King's
31 December 2013 Road, North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area
of 14,426 square feet
2013128308  AMBIATAHRRERY  2014F1A1EE EAILAREBSI0RBEAR1822E  THAREER HK$621,600
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H 515,540 F A R
1 January 2014 to The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King's
31 December 2016 Road, North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area
of 15,540 square feet
2010612 A30H RARTRTFANRRRS  2011F1 /182 BEAE20ZHANEE - AHBEEEERS838 TR HK$192,654
30 December 2010 DSB leased to DSIS 201312 4318 A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
1 January 2011 to floor area of 5,838 square feet
31 December 2013
2013F 128308  AHBIATAHRERERY  2014F1F1BZE BEANE0EHHAE - AIHAEERER6402 THR HK$268,884
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
1 January 2014 to floor area of 6,402 square feet
31 December 2016
2010128308  AMBIATAHRRAE  2011F1A1EE BEAE0ZHHAE - AIHEEERER2,186 TAR HK$65,580
30 December 2010 DSB leased to DSIA 201312 A31H A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
1 January 2011 to floor area of 2,186 square feet
31 December 2013
201312308  AMBTETAHRRAE  2014F1A1EE BEAR0EHHEE - AHEEERER2623 TAR HK$102,297
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIA 2016512 A31H A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable

RIRITEBERRRF] | 2014F 50

1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016

floor area of 2,623 square feet
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49. ERAEALTZRS @) 49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() RERARKERZRKNBL TS @) (a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

= (&) Note: (Continued)
(ii) KRB IRTS « ATHRB IR - AT A S RIRFT (ii) Lease of properties between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and MIC and DSB, VB
RIRMAFIRT - S RRPIE LRI W and BCM (Continued)
HE (&)
=32k
(TEEEEER
AHRIEE R
Monthly rent (exclusive
R5AH HF3pa BEHX HE2ME of management fees and
Transaction date Contracting parties Term of lease Property subject to lease utility charges)
2010128308  HEETAINAS 2011 F1R1A% RERYRIREE R L1504 EHHETE - BIZEEEA 132 HK$7,876
30 December 2010 VB leased to DSLA 2013F 12 A31H ERx
1 January 2011 to A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre,
31 December 2013 Shenzhen, People's Republic of China, with a gross floor
area of 132 square metres
201312 A308  HERTFAIAS 2014F1R18% RERYIR B RS 1504 EHHER - BEEMER 132 HK$11,756
30 December 2013 VB leased to DSLA 2016F12 4318 EhK
1 January 2014 to A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre,
31 December 2016 Shenzhen, People s Republic of China, with a gross floor
area of 132 square metres
201012 A30F  RMEERCETRMRE  2011F1 /1B RITRFRERTARI0ER NEZE - TEAEARREA MOP123,000
30 December 2010 BCM leased to MIC 201312 A31H 924K
1 January 2011 to The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau
31 December 2013 with a total lettable floor area of 924 square metres
2013F 12430  EMIEERTETEMRR  2014F1A1BE RFVRPIEERTAEI0ER11E2E - AfLAEEEREAR MOP147,000
30 December 2013 BCM leased to MIC 201612 A31H 924 F 7K
1 January 2014 to The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau
31 December 2016 with a total lettable floor area of 924 square metres
20124 A3H AMBAETAARERS 201264 A3RE BEAEAEHHEE - AHBEERERS919 TAR HK$207,165
3 April 2012 DSB leased to DSIS 2013F12 A31H A portion of the 19/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable
3 April 2012 to floor area of 5,919 square feet
31 December 2013
2013128308  AMBITATAHRRERYE  2014F1A1EZE BEAE192EHERE - AIHEEEnRR6558 FAR(B HK$249,204
30 December 2013 DSB leased to DSIS 201612 A31H 2014F6 A1 BE  FPE5297 FAHR) (8201456 A18% "
1 January 2014 to A portion of the 19/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable B ZE HK$201,286)
31 December 2016 floor area of 6,558 square feet (reduced to 5,297 square  (reduced to HK$201,286
feet with effect from 1 June 2014) with effect from 1 June
2014)
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49. BEREALZRE @)
() HERARARRZMEBARNRS (&)

it ()

(i)  ARERITHEYE T R AT R L R AFRIT
[ High Standard 78 f ¥ %

MARER2010F12 A0R 2 BEHE © X
FERITE A ABER DA G - BIEZ R
ATASBLHAEBHBFER2KRABRNEH
TAASRIMEAREH S EE (AT HAEHEER
2,340 FHR) TAFIRIT - HEWZRRHAF -
2010412 A28 H#EZE2013F 12 27 A 1k -
5 A< /450,000 AT 0 TREEEE - BN
Z - BERTEAE - KRITEZMERER
I -

Ea e R B R EHR B M AR LE - TAET
RITERAFIABE N 2013412 A28 BRI — 1B
MM ERZ - RBHEAFRITRAATASEHER
—¥)3 - AT 630,000 7T @ TRIEERE « K
FEf - BEEREHAE  QRBERB=F " H
2013412 A28 H#£Z2016F 12 A27 Bt °

WA R A R2013F 12 A0 2@ EHE - K
#7877 82 High Standard Investment Ltd ([ High
Standard]) #Z 1 & =% © BiRiH = - AFTRIT
#tHigh Standard A& & 1L A% 2851050 5iE
ANEATIEZ —HOERI RS - AIEREEE
X R4,681FHR - BH=F H201451 A
1H#EZE2016F12 4318 1k + A 174,07878
T BREERE  BUTEM  BERERE -

(iv) ERFEEEEZ B RITBURS B

2010612 4301 + RFRIT(REAMBAF -
BIERPIRSEIRIT) A & /ET VB RITER
BR# % - FRiS1H = EEFHR=F 52011
F1A1BRBAE - K20183F 12 A30H + KT
RITE AN RET SLET A0 B RATER AR TS 1775
B2014%1 A1 B#EER - £2016512 531 H
®ik - BEFHR=F -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)  Leaseback of property by DSB from DSLA and lease of property by DSB
from HS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2010, a lease back agreement was entered into by DSB with DSLA on
30 December 2010 pursuant to which DSB leased from DSLA a portion
of Flat A on Basement and Portion AA on Ground Floor of Thai Kong
Building, No. 482 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong with a lettable floor
area of 2,340 square feet at a monthly rent of HK$450,000 exclusive of
management fees, government rates, electricity service charges and
air-conditioning charges for a term of three years commencing on 28
December 2010 and ending on 27 December 2013. The Premises have
been used by DSB as bank branch premises.

The above lease back agreement was terminated upon the maturity of
the lease term and a new lease back agreement has been entered into
by DSB with DSLA on 28 December 2013 pursuant to which DSB has
leased from DSLA the same premises at a monthly rent of HK$630,000
exclusive of management fees, government rates, electricity service
charges and air-conditioning charges for a term of three years
commencing on 28 December 2013 and ending on 27 December 2016.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December
2013, a lease agreement was entered into by DSB with High Standard
Investment Limited (“HS”) on 30 December 2013 pursuant to which
DSB has leased from HS a portion of the 17th Floor of Island Place
Tower, Island Place, 510 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong as its
office premises with a lettable floor area of approximately 4,581 square
feet at a monthly rent of HK$174,078 exclusive of management fees,
government rates, electricity service charges and air-conditioning
charges for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2014 and
ending on 31 December 2016.

(iv)  Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH

On 30 December 2010, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM) entered
into a computer and administrative services agreement with DSFH. The
Services Agreement was for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2011. On 30 December 2013, DSB entered into a new computer
and administrative services agreement with DSFH, for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December
2016.
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49.

(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH
(Continued)

Pursuant to the services agreements, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following:

. computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

o administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

o secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group (collectively, the “Services”).

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB
which historically has been operating to provide administrative and
computer services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-
recovery basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a
fee enables the Group to continue to expand its scale and operational
capabilities while costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services
are recovered from the DSFH Group.

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral
services

(a) Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC

On 30 December 2010, DSIS and DSIA entered into distribution
agreements and underlying agency agreements with each of DSB
and MEVAS (1931) Limited (“MEVAS (1931)”) for the marketing
and distribution of life and general insurance products through
DSB’s branch networks and the former branch network of MEVAS
(1931) for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January
2011. On the same day, MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited (“MLIC”) entered into distribution agreements and
underlying agency agreements with BCM for the marketing and
distribution of life and general insurance products through BCM’s
branch network for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2011. The agreements entered into by DSIS and DSIA
with MEVAS (1931) were terminated on 30 June 2012.
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49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(V) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

On 30 December 2013, DSIS and DSIA entered into new
distribution agreements and underlying agency agreements with
DSB. In addition, on 30 December 2013, MIC and MLIC entered
into distribution agreements and underlying agency agreements
with BCM for the marketing and distribution of life and general
insurance products through BCM’s branch and other distribution
network.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIS
with DSB (the “DSIS Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and
distributes such life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through its branch
and other distribution networks and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the DSIS Distribution Agreements, DSB has
entered into an agency agreement with DSIS (the “DSIS Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies
in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the DSIS Agency
Agreements, the commission payable by DSIS to DSB in respect
of such life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 50% of the first year’s premium
received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums in respect of
certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “DSIA Distribution Agreements”), DSB markets and
distributes such general insurance and life assurance products as
agreed between the parties from time to time for the DSFH Group
through its branch and other distribution networks.
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49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB has
entered into an agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
and life assurance products in return for commission payments,
as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under the terms
of the DSIA Agency Agreements, the commission payable by
DSIA to DSB in respect of:

(1) general insurance products shall vary, depending on
the product type, between 1% and 30% of each year’s
premium received in respect of a new or renewal policy;
and

2) life assurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 50% of the first year’s
premium received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums
in respect ofcertain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MLIC with
BCM (the “MLIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such life assurance products as agreed between the
parties from time to time for MLIC through its branch and other
distribution network.

Pursuant to the MLIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered
into an agency agreement with MLIC (the “MLIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies
in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the MLIC Agency
Agreement, the commission payable by MLIC to BCM in respect
of such life assurance products varies, depending on the product
type, between 13.5% and 35% of the first year’s premium
received.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets and
distributes such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution network.
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49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v) Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSIS, DSIA, MIC and
MLIC (Continued)

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has
entered into an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of general insurance products
in return for commission payments, as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency
Agreement, the commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of
general insurance products shall vary, depending on the product
type, between 10% and 50% of each year’s premium received in
respect of new or renewal policies.

In respect of each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSIS
and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and MLIC
and MIC shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed
expenses including the registration fees for licences for the bank
staff to sell insurance, sales incentives, marketing expenses
and other costs and expenses related to the performance of the
Distribution Agreements.

Each of the Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-
exclusive basis and is for a three-year fixed term with effect
from 1 January 2014. Each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC
Agency Agreements (collectively the “Agency Agreements”) is on
a mutually non-exclusive basis for a three-year fixed term with
effect from 1 January 2014, save that the provisions relating to the
payment of outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force
until payment is received in full.

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
the Group with insurance products and services to be offered
to the customers of the banking subsidiaries of the Group. The
distribution of different types of insurance products through the
respective bank branches and other distribution networks of DSB
and BCM in return for a commission income to be paid by the
DSFH Group will also produce fee income which will be of benefit
to the Group.
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49.

(a)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b) Business referral services

On 30 December 2013, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH pursuant to which and as part of their
respective usual and normal course of business currently
conducted, members of the Group may refer to members of
DSFH Group business opportunities for life and general insurance
policies to be underwritten by any member(s) of DSFH Group,
either directly or via their sole agents, if any, from time to time.
There is no commitment on any member of the Group to refer to
member(s) of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or
maximum number and/or amount. The cooperation agreement
is on a mutually non-exclusive basis and is for a three-year fixed
term with effect from 1 January 2014. Where concluded between
the relevant parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of
such business referral services shall be, if required, reduced into
individual written agreement(s).

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of the Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.

Insurance services provided by DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC

The insurance policies underwritten by Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited (“DSI (1976)”) and MIC in the name, and for the benefit,
of DSB and other members of the Group and their respective customers
are subject to renewal annually. The group life assurance policies
underwritten by DSLA and MLIC in relation to the provision of insurance
cover for the death and/or critical illness of the employees of DSB and
other members of the Group are subject to renewal annually.

The master policies between DSLA and DSB in relation to the provision
of insurance cover for their respective customers are for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2014.

DSI (1976) underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for
the benefit, of DSB and other members of the Group and their respective
customers including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’ compensation
and group personal accident. Such policies are subject to renewal
annually.
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49. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)  Insurance services provided by DSI(1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC
(Continued)

DSLA underwrites insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of certain borrowing customers of DSB and employees of DSB
and other members of the Group. The provision of the insurance cover
for customers is set out in the terms and conditions of the relevant bank
borrowing arrangement. Such policies can be terminated within two
months in the event of non-payment of premiums.

MIC underwrites insurance policies in the name, and for the benefit, of
BCM and its customers including policies covering medical, personal
accident, employees’ compensation, motor fleet, properties, civil liability
and money. Such policies are subject to renewal annually.

MLIC underwrites life insurance policies to cover the death and/or critical
illness of BCM’s pension plan members and such policies are subject to
renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable
in arrears on a monthly basis and are calculated by reference to the
outstanding credit balances in respect of each of the products to which
they relate.

The insurance policies are procured by the Group to enable certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with
relevant regulatory requirements in reducing the risks to the Group’s
assets, businesses and operations and/or to provide additional services
to the Group’s customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the
insurance services by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC are effective
and the fees proposed by DSI (1976), DSLA, MIC and MLIC respectively
are comparable to those offered by other insurance companies in the
market.

On 30 December 2010, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH pursuant to which members of the DSFH Group
would provide insurance services to DSB and other members of the
Group. The cooperation agreement was for a fixed term of three years
with effect from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013 (both
days inclusive). It was terminated upon the maturity of the term and
a new cooperation agreement was entered into by the Company and
DSFH on 30 December 2013 for a fixed term of three years with effect
from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016.
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49.

(b)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key
management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from the
Group’s key management personnel, their close family members and
entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31 December, the
following balances were outstanding:

BZERIAT ¢

59 Group 2014 2013
ER KRB Loans and advances 2,922 3,895
TR Deposits 281,380 320,590
KREUA 2 B Undrawn commitments 3,329 2,511
EIR Guarantee 545 545

FABREBRZ K=E58 Maximum aggregate amount of loans
and advances during the year 3,733 9,742

(i) FEEEASHZ

ARBEIREBEABRATES  H&RM
ERRERENNHEI12 -

(R) BHEQAARAREFHNER2XEZR
ek

FR AEBEWRIBHBEERAERERAT
129,187,000 77T (2013 4F : 35,624,000/57T) % &
WA o FR - AREEERSG — LRI E R =T
BRARZER » MER 2014512 531 BERE
#2/526,995,0007% 7T (20134F & 21,407,00087T) °

50. ARG BERREG S

REBEBBARRA] 2RI 8 ([ RFTRITEE
A MEZERARAHERERERARZA
Rt &) ([ K& mbat 81 1) R R IA B i B ERE R
BMTHEERBRITRAS - BRAES 2K
0 RER R 2 WEZ2FIRHIE12

(c)

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 12.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Group received from Bank of Chongqing,
an associate, dividend income of HK$129,187,000 (2013:
HK$35,624,000). During the year, the Group received deposits
from Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled

entity and as at 31 December 2014, the balance of deposit was
HK$26,995,000 (2013: HK$21,407,000).

50.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Share-based compensation, pursuant to the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its
holding company, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH

Scheme”), is available to directors and senior executives of the

Group. Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors are

disclosed in Note 12.
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MERAT3ER 2 &R EEEE © (i) AR AR
MERTEREBRZMERZWMIE : (i) A2
ARMEZERTHEASERSEREER B
BEZFHUWHE  K(ii) R2014F3 A3 BH
RAMEOIERATE T 2 RRHE - AR BIRAT &
ARAR 1 1 BT 2 1B o %R IRAE 2 1T R BRI
BTHHRAFE1Z2E6ERA - ARRIBKRER
201445 A 27 B #t LR — (BT eR AR ERT 21 ([T
FTEl ) AERREEET &I o W MR (ElRRAE NG &
BT o

(2) R¥FEmatE

AHEBETERENBARETEEREER
Itk o BERIRRA AN ERAEREZERK
BITERMEEEHREEXNRBENRSE
B AERDEFHEITRND - RITEHERAIR
EXNEHRITEERENRBITER T 2R
A o
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@) DSBG Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company the
choice of making cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to
the directors or employees at the date of exercise. The Company has
the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the share
options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in 2012
and afterwards, the Company has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme (“Old Scheme”). The exercise price
per option share is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the Company on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and is
determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares of HK$1 each in the capital in issue for
options granted before the commencement of the NCO on 3 March
2014. The exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries
from the date of grant. A new Share Option Scheme (“New Scheme”),
which replaced the Old Scheme, is approved for adoption by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 May 2014. No options have been
granted under the New Scheme.

(b) DSFH Scheme

DSFH issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSFH the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSFH has adopted the cash
settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in respect of
the existing share options issued.
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50. AR AERBRMEE ®
(Z) XFEratE @

ZERRIETIERFT S BN 2005F 4 A 28
H#t /& 2 R R 8 2 (R RIGHEF R T - 81p
RREZITEEDBRERFMEE SRR
CREEFGUTBREERREBRZAT LTRAIE
17.039) & E T + T MERARIER 2 &= E
BT : () AFTLRBRNERTAREERZF
BEZRME (VAR HEZER T
5ERSHARNBEBRZMEBRZ FHRME: &
(iii)) 7 2014 5£ 3 A 3 BT A GHEHI ERREIR T 2 R
fiHE - KT mIRA T BRRMD 2B T2 EE °
ZRREZTEE TN ER T AR E1 256
BB o

BARBRREERT 2 RRHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Scheme (Continued)

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme approved by the shareholders of
DSFH on 28 April 2005. The exercise price per option share is concluded
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board
of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than the requirement set out in
Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK and is determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of DSFH'’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of DSFH’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of DSFH shares
of HK$2 each in the capital in issue for options granted before the
commencement of the NCO on 3 March 2014. The exercise period is
between the first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Share options granted under the Company Share Option Scheme:

®¥H 5l BT S Cigid BRTEE(GET)E()
Date of grant Type Vesting Period Exercise period Exercise price per share (HK$) Note (i)
2011E128128 MBEEYR 20115121262 2012512 A12A =%

201612 A12H 2017512 A12RH
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91

201212 A21 8 DARESfF

21/12/2012 Equity-settled
201463A268  DAREZN
26/03/2014 Equity-settled

BAHERARET R T 2RRE

2012512 A21HE
20174612 A21H
21/12/2012-21/12/2017

20145326 A%
20193 26 H
26/03/2014-26/03/2019

201312 421 A%E
201812 A 21H

21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
201543 26 R %

202053 A 26 A
26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

Share options granted under DSFH Share Option Scheme:

il bl BFFH 78 BRTEEGERT) ()
Date of grant Type Vesting Period Exercise period Exercise price per share (HK$) Note (i)
11FE12A128  LREZH 2011 E12A12A% 2012F12 12

201612 A 12 H 201712 8128
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35

201212218 HUEESH

21/12/2012 Cash-settled

201212 A21H%
20174612 A21H
21/12/2012-21/12/2017

2013F12H21HZE
2018512 21 H
21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88
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50. AR AEERREME @) 50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

(R Note:

(i) 2014 F 5 AR P2 RRIEZITEEBERAA R (i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
ER#FErD RN 201445 A K% 20144F 4 A5ERL adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and DSFH
AR T ATEE - in May 2014 and April 2014 respectively.

RIS BR N FER 2 LA A EL 7 R B >~ Sz 40 Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

T follows:

2014 2013

VAR #E =2 A5F 2 SRR Equity-settled options 3,754 4,241

AR € S+ 2 RN AE Cash-settled options 1,868 22,211

aaEr Total 5,622 26,452

B2 RE Cash-settled options

gt bl AR EET 2 T 2 LB S R With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the two share

Rt NEED R4S H 31,677,000 7T option schemes described above, the Group has recorded liabilities

(20134 : 29,809,000/8 7T) B HE ML ERRER of HK$31,677,000 (2013: HK$29,809,000) in respect of the fair value

TEZEE ZAEETBEETLZE (V) AFEHS of the share options at the reporting date. These do not include cost

NPT AEAER S utfw?@)}u:ﬁft,ﬁmgﬁfg separately borne by DSFH as stated under note (v) below. The fair

IR NR AT 2 E 2 /|REE value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model, and

based on the major assumptions set out in the following tables.

RIERITEEE
DSBG Scheme

2014 2013

2011 & 2011 &
128128 12 412 H
12 December 12 December

BT H Grant date 2011 2011
AATNR12 31 H Share price of the Company

ZB&(E (BT) as at 31 December (HK$) 12.44 13.64
1TEE (&) (R ) Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i) 8.91 9.25
TERTR R (5 (i) Expected volatility (Note (i) 39.17% 39.72%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <3 <4

[l B 1) 2= (5 (ii)) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.98% 1.03%
TEETAR 2 2 (5 (iv)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 2.90% 3.80%
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50. R AEREBRMEE ®

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

UBHF(12 25 (&) Cash-settled options (Continued)
RF SR
DSFH Scheme
2014 2013
20126 2011 2012F 2011 F
12A218 128128 124218 124128
(& (v) (& () (&) (FE(v))
21 December 2012 12 December 2011 21 December 2012 12 December 2011
£FH Grant date (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v))
AF&En12 431 BZREGET) Share price of DSFH as at
31 December (HK$) 45.25 45.25 44.45 44.45
176808 (A7) (G () Exercise price (HKS) (Note (i) 31.88 38.35 33.25 40.00
FETRIE (& (i) Expected volatility (Note (i) 34.76% 34.76% 34.31% 34.31%
iiﬁ (%) Time to maturity (years) <4 <3 <5 <4
R (5 (i) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 1.24% 0.98% 1.40% 1.03%
féﬁﬂi E (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (v)) 3.02% 3.02% 3.94% 3.94%
e Note:
(i) 20145 AR T 2 RBREZTEEBER KR AR (i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were

MARF D RIR2014455 B % 20144F 4 A 5K
AR T ATIEE -

(i) FEROREEZRBRERFERZABE—FARF
AR ERERENE - URKRBE
ARB BRI BREZKIE - 8B ERANBR
B2 FHAZIBIRE  YEEANER -

(i) WERFIEAEHEH EENELE TR

(iv) TFEARHARS RTVIBEREME] °

(v ZERREZIZLAEBRARATSEALE-
AN ¥ & B8 B 5t 7% R AR ¥ 7 724,600,000 7% 7T
(2013 4F : 3,049,000%7T) & & R i BR TERR
1,551,000/ 7T (20134 : 1,881,000/ 7T) 2 °

ZEBRTHURDRESHEINETEE 2R B ER
2014412 A 31 H 419,074,000 7T (2013 4F :
14,478,000787T) °

(i)

(iv)

adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and DSFH
in May 2014 and April 2014 respectively.

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of the Company and DSFH, as applicable, during the
one year period immediately preceding the measurement date and is
based on the assumption that there is no material difference between
the expected volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company and DSFH as set
out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
has recorded liabilities of HK$4,600,000 (2013: HK$3,049,000) and a
charge to income statement of HK$1,551,000 (2013: HK$1,881,000) for
these options.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’

right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2014 is
HK$19,074,000 (2013: HK$14,478,000).
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50. U EBERFETE @) 50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
LUBRES (T Z R R Equity-settled options

gt P KFTIRITE B2 TR T 2 AR M /Y With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
RARHE - HRETH 2 AFETA=E BHEE Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
BEXFE - FARTHRREZ AFETEHA Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
TR Z EFBBREEE granted. The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the

options granted during the year are as follows:

20143 A 26 H

£FH Grant date 26 March 2014
RARRET B ZRE (BT) Share price of the Company
as at grant date (HK$) 11.26

1TEE (BT) Exercise price (HK$) 12.13

TRET R E (5E (i) Expected volatility (Note (i) 42.35%

RIRHEF A () Option life (years) 6

o B 8 2R (5 (1)) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.71%

FaET %R (FE (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.44%

FRARHE A AR (D A 1B (FBT) Fair value of a share in the option (HK$) 3.35-3.5

(2 Note:

(i) AR IERRIRENR T H 2T —FARA (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
MALERARRE M E - WREBEAQBRE of the share price of the Company, as applicable, during the one year
MR - B ERANBREZFHAZ BRI period immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the
g WESAMER o assumption that there is no material difference between the expected

volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share prices of the Company as set out above.

iy ERRFEANRETREMFTFHZBESINEES (i)  Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
ZR 2 WamEK o time to maturity at grant date.

(i) FEFREXRTDZNETHZBEREME] ° @iy  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.

2013 FF N A T R AR o No share option was granted in the year of 2013.

MR201455 A - RNATR AR o it - RARE In May 2014, the Company completed a rights issue. The terms of the

ZIEREERAR AR RRE 2 EE - AR ZH share options have been adjusted accordingly to maintain the value of

EE) NI =TI the options. The adjustments are set out in the table below.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. AR AERBRMEE ®
BT 2 BIREL A R AT (T E 2 2

50. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

T weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AFBTREHE K€ RTE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013
RYTEE  hEYH RTUEE RYUBE  mEYH RTUEE
AFRTEE fEE AMHRTEE  METS RiEH fiEE  AHeR  METH
ARES (Bm)  AkEs ke  RRED (E7) AT (i
it 42 &)  RhE&E (#71) %A (& () fingi A (#71)
Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted
DSBG shares average DSBG shares average DSFH shares average DSFH shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price (HKS) options price options  price (HK$) options price
granted (Note (i) granted (HK$) granted (Note (i) granted (HK9)
—-A-A At 1 January 11,800,000 8.92 11,800,000 8.92 400,000 37.47 608,950 44.95
B7F Granted 300,000 1213 - - - - - -
SRRz AR Adjusted for rights issue 466,401 8.66 - = 17,227 35.92 = =
BiAH Expired - - - - - - (208,950) 59.28
27 Exercised (166,168) 7.96 - - - - - -
EBH /SR Cancelled/forfeited (249,251) 7.96 - - - - - -
12318 At 31 December 12,150,982 8.69 11,800,000 8.92 47,227 35.92 400,000 37.47
12 A31 BAJ{fE Exercisable at 31 December 6,293,590 8.69 3,920,000 9.05 219,045 36.50 130,000 38.44
it Note:

(i) 201445 AR T2 RREZITEEEH AR T
RRFE o5 BN 201445 B K% 20144 4 B5eK
AR T IATE o

AATR2014F 12 B 31 BRITEZRRIES 5
FRARREMER T ARBZITEEN F7.96 7%
TLZE11.68 7L (20134 : 11 F8.27 B L £ 9.25
BIT) - REINETHERGELITHEEHRS.324F
(20134 : 4.30%F) - IRAEBEZ RERITH
ABEAZ KHE R E - K2014512 A
31 BRTEZ AT ERARREERFART R
HEAR T LA EE 2 17 (B0 31.88 B ;T £ 38.35 %
JL(20134F : /1 F33.258 0 240.00/8 L) * &
H Nt T TR E £77F 815 3.33 F (2013 4F -
4.33%F) o

(i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and DSFH
in May 2014 and April 2014 respectively.

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December
2014 have exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68,
adjusted for the Company’s rights issue in the year (2013: HK$8.27
to HK$9.25), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
3.32 years (2013: 4.30 years). In respect of directors and senior
executives of the Group, their applicable DSFH’s share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2014 have exercise prices in the range
of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35, adjusted for DSFH’s rights issue in the year
(2013: HK$33.25 to HK$40.00), and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 3.33 years (2013: 4.33 years).
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

51. SRIEEREENHE

fi 5 B AR LR B MER T RORE R AT S S S R B
REAEZEHRSE  UREENFEEENH
‘REIFRSEREENBERE AT HERE
ENBERTHE -

() xFHRAEBZEEY C £ MR
RAYECERMEERER

AEEBBETETREEBERAR(E
BRREEDRARZIEFREFPETER

REBRZ2F BN R EMESRRER
CHERDEHEEEBPREE 2 BT
HREE N ENFRIBAEEE - TR2014F 12 A31H
&2013%F 128318 @ ZFEARKFIAER
BERHEI6 T2 [EHRFBEREMNEE ]
BRIEA o B2 ST T ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Sill:

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it
conducts securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As
at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 36. The amounts offset are shown below.

58 Group 2014 2013
EREBFRER 2 Gross amount of accounts

TRIAKRAEE receivable from HKSCC 88,886 23,531
JERNBARREE Y Gross amount of accounts

RIAKAEE payable to HKSCC (7,623) (12,441)
FEULE R RAEH 558 Net amount due from HKSCC 81,263 11,090

(2) RFRRFERFERBEMBERR X
NHHEEMEERAE

AEBESRARER S FRI AR TR
BEREE - WREEERR - FEAEER
FRE - —BHREDNEN  EPEXR
GHFIRERRZEERIE - MAEHE
RAARHRFEEE - WIFELED
= AR FIRSEUNBEEER
—RIASENBHRARTHHEEERAE -

TRINREZEE  LEARRNZEBFR
REZBRBRBEMORNERB T AR

I o

AFERITEBABRAR | 2014554

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs,
all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be
terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled on
a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis
and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
51. TRIEEHEBBENHEE @ 51. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHEREBEEVEMRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRmEEREE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR E T HE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TRERRRRARYE 2B

Related amounts not set off
in the statement of
financial position

REHRREA RBRRRA

HiER fImzER
SRAEAT EETE
BRZSE  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HI8
BELE  recognised financial financial assets  (FFFRLERR)
Gross amounts liabilities set off presented in the Financial BHESER
1] Group of recognised i the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash #E
014F128318 At 31 December 2014 financial assets financial position financial position  non-cash collateral)  collateral received Net amount
SHER Financlal assets
EeRIE Derivative financial instruments 386,035 - 386,035 (367,976) - 18,059
PERIBRRRANE L RELR
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of
financial position
HEHHRRA REBRRRA
HiER fImzeR
SHEERAR BE¥E
BRZSE  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HI8
BE4E recognised financial  financial liabiities  (BEFREAAR)
Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the Financial BERBLER
1] Group of recognised i the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral #E
014F128318 At 31 December 2014 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SRAR Financial liabltes
HiTfa Deposits from banks 89,421 - 89,421 (89.421) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 1,038,590 - 1,038,590 (367,976) (141,207) 529,317
RIEEERRIAR Trading liabities 5,597,614 - 5,597,614 (5,552,666 - 44,948
HHRA RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - - -
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51. TRIEEHESENEHE @

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X

Sill:

(b)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting

AEHzEREEREE @) agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
R FHESELH ) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
UREBHRARAHE AELE
Related amounts not set off
inthe statement of
financial posttion
REHBRARR REBIRRR
Fof - PARY: ok
SHAGLE HEWE
BR7E%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of £HIR
BEEE  recognised financial financial assets (B35S EAR)
Gross amounts liabiltes set off presented in the Financia BUERLER
£H Group of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash i
135128318 At 31 December 2013 financial assets financial postion financial position ~ non-cash collateral)  collateral received Net amount
SHER Financial assets
EeRIE Derivative financial instruments 501,072 - 501,272 (435971) - 91,301
REBHMARAHE AELE
Related amounts not set off
inthe statement of
financial posttion
REHRARR REBIRRR
Fof - PARY ok
SHAESE BE¥E
BR72%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of £HIR
BEEE  recogised fnancial  financial liabiities  (BE3FRAEER)
(Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financia BERRSER
£H Group of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash colateral i
201312 A31A At 31 December 2013 financial liabilities financial postion financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
£RAR Financial liabltes
RFR Deposits from banks 408,051 - 408,051 (408,051) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 915,133 - 915,133 (435,971) (66,606) 412,55
HEEERENER Trading liabilties 3,362,473 - 3,362,473 (3,301,183) - 61,290
LAY Other accounts and accruals 97,862 - 97,862 (07,862) - -

RIRITEBERRRF] | 2014F 50
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LABREFThz5I7R)

TIREBAKE 2 ERHERR IR Z B M
MER - BWIFLEAH B RERZ A0

1. BAXAZREEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2014%12H31H 201312 431H

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

BAR B E Capital adequacy ratio

—EEARE A — Common Equity Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
—— & — Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
— - Total 16.3% 14.5%

2014412 A31 H X% 2013412 31 H 2 EAFE
RLEERTRIFRITHGEE MR (BIFRFIEER
FTRARFRIT (R E)) 2ECIRITHE (BAR) RAD
HWEZERGE | ERAAENSHEE - ZEXR
FRLENFEDZREITIZEARMRIERR

AFERTT BB B EMIRITARBETERITEED
BTEATREERHFEENR - RPIHERITAE
SARPIRITEEENRE RAHRIT (PE)
AETABTRRITEEENRE - AEE L
ML ERAERHESE -

2. RBE®LR

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis with reference to the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account market
risk and operational risk.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations. The above ratios
of the Group are calculated for reference only.

2. LIQUIDITY RATIOS

2014 2013

RBE S %

MEEZ LR SRS BIRTTHE R AR M BFEE
12EASEEANFEORDES L RMBEFY
B ZMNPECHERR2ERBRITEMRIIF4
iR AR ITARTE ©

RHARITREBEMBITARBEBRITERD
BIRBES L EHFEER - RPIHRRITAE
STARRPIRITREETNRERAFRT (PE)
ABTAMTRRITEEENRTE - AEE LA
ML REFAERHESE -

Liquidity ratio

45.3% 46.2%

The liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of the Group’s banking subsidiaries for
the twelve months of the financial year. The liquidity ratio is computed
with reference to the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
minimum liquidity ratio requirement under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB
China is subject to China banking regulations. The above ratios of the
Group are calculated for reference only.
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3. SERE 3. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

T3 AR2014F12 A31 HZE LMEEERNE The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
w7 INEFEER (B B 2 SNE F B B P A INE F other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
RH10%) + R EAAME 2 LEERENEE - net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2014 and the

corresponding comparative balances.

12014512 A31 HX% 20135 12 A 31 BA%KE The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
A AT A INEE 5 AR 4E o 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Hitijps NS
BN T oAk Other Total
Ep AR¥  Australian Macau foreign foreign

2014512831 H At 31 December 2014 US dollars  Renminbi dollars Pataca currencies currencies
HERESBT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 57,240 25,030 1,275 6,894 1,874 92,313
RERE Spot liabilities (24,667) (24,960) (3,324) (8,176) (4,718) (65,845)
EHEA Forward purchases 15,767 5,900 2,150 - 5,371 29,188
RHIE N Forward sales (47,028) (5,559) (146) - (2,523)  (55,256)
=/(Q)®FH Net long/(short) position 1,312 411 (45) (1,282) 4 400

Hioh SNERE

ke Other Total

xET AR Macau foreign foreign

2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 US dollars Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
HERESBT Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 45,668 26,788 5,712 3,678 81,846

REAE Spot liabilities (23,461) (26,038) (7,218) (9,068) (65,785)

RHIEA Forward purchases 16,805 2,097 250 9,140 28,292

RHE M Forward sales (37,282) (2,261) - (3,756) (43,299)

/() &5%8 Net long/(short) position 1,730 586 (1,256) 6) 1,054
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4. BEFERKREBXK

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

() RITESBEZ2EFERLE (UEXKA (@@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ROoERUSEARRENBE S LS classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) by percentage covered by collateral
2014%12 8310 2013512 A31H
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
EXEH B
SHEARRE ZHERRRE
ZEA ZAD
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REELH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EBBLRNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
s Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property development 1,741,185 67.7 2,015,552 72.8
—MERE - Property investment 15,752,867 98.9 15,122,078 98.3
-SRI - Financial concerns 821,938 62.1 740,178 46.5
-BRELRE - Stockbrokers 133,234 55.0 109,264 90.7
-HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 4,497,466 90.1 4,006,724 95.7
—SUE% - Manufacturing 2,971,483 91.3 1,975,672 91.5
— B8 B RE - Transport and transport equipment 4,612,041 94.2 5,050,680 95.9
—[RESEE) - Recreational activities 277,832 55.9 300,505 12.2
—ERH - Information technology 22,938 67.1 24,916 82.1
—Hft - Others 5,036,198 84.4 3,571,083 82.5
35,867,182 91.6 32,916,652 92.0
EA Individuals
-BE [REEHEE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[FLA2RERE] K flats in Home Ownership
[BEBEEE] BT Scheme, Private Sector
R Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 962,720 100.0 1,080,873 100.0
-BEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 19,451,578 100.0 18,041,141 99.9
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,838,208 - 3,949,544 -
—Hffy - Others 8,355,472 35.3 6,880,302 31.0
32,607,978 .7 29,951,860 70.9
EEERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 68,475,160 82.1 62,868,512 81.9
Z5mE GE(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 6,517,342 62.8 5,918,454 61.3
EEBIMEBNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 30,237,544 64.8 29,190,554 63.8
105,230,046 76.0 97,977,520 753
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4., EFERRBF @) 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

() BITEDP B EFEREE (LLEFRHA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ROoBERUSEARRENBS LS classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) () by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

&t Note:

(1) EdIRzEIMERSLERASERELZA (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
BiEsIMAEREBED - HOMBOMNRE - imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
NEEREIMEZZER - merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines

issued by the HKMA.

TEREBZEHMEER (BIERHBIT 28I Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
RITMBRATR T 2 B HE1E ) #(5618,230,000 finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of DSB) totalling
B7c (2013412 A31 H : 992,627,000/ 7T ) 7 HK$618,230,000 (31 December 2013: HK$992,627,000) are classified
R [EBEIMERNER] ET ° under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

(2 EBFBMIMEANERBERTEASRFAES (2)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
BUAIMERR 2 &R located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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4. BFEERRBI @)

() #ITEs BB FERRRE (LEXA
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

) (@)

Bl AR ZBRETF EFAERE10% KA EHTT
¥ HE(SRES AR - a8 S M fE R AAR

AFEOEFAEERIT ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,
and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

ERAH
BHREE
BB3MEA 18 3IFEME mals
Gross HEERE HEERE
advances Individually Collectively
REELR HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2014 12A31H At 31 December 2014 balance loans months allowances allowances
EBBRANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial
and financial
S E - Property investment 15,752,867 = = = 12,357
5N Individuals
-BEEMEENEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential properties 19,451,578 - - - 1,074
EBEBAIMERNER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 30,237,544 217,649 172,414 135,109 169,999
BaE
B3 EA (BT AT
Gross ELEE BEER
advances Individually Collectively
KMEELEH BEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2013512 A31H At 31 December 2013 balance loans months allowances allowances
ERBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEeH Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,122,078 - - - 8,614
BA Individuals
~BEEMEEYEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential properties 18,041,141 = = = 674
ERBAIMEBRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,190,554 273,679 216,275 177,723 109,982
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(LABBEFThz5I7R)

4. BFEERRBI @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(R) RITESBEZ2EFERLE (ULEXKA (@@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ROERUSHEEAREENES S classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (8 by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

TREZRENEWRRIRR I EEINREE The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

BT Z MIHBER o

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

BEEREE

REEEER  MHZEN
HME5%  Recoveries
Loans of advances

ERFE R written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
2014 2014 written back  uncollectible years
ERAFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrEer Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = - 1
fEA Individuals
- BEHEMEEMERR — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - 614
TEBBAIME BB ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 22,653 263,913 8,335
WEIERESF
REEEER  MEHZERN
M55  Recoveries
Loans  of advances
B E written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
20134 2013 written back  uncollectible years
EREFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TH2 Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEKE - Property investment - = =
EA Individuals
—BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - 335
EBRABLAIME AR ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 15,568 14,641 13,221
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4., EFERRBF @)
(Z) BB KREFBITEEFNERE

REFBEEERRITERE) (EFT) KA
2014) A THHBEAREFRITREFHHREL
AN HSRELESERHPEAREIRITET,
HY BRER B SR R TSI 2 SRIRTT R R B F 5 &
BERERARERUADE - HhRBEAMRT
REARITHBARR T 2 hBEARERFHER
A o

B R B A SR SR TR P OB AT (245
REFRITRAEEINRITHBAARET 2 R EARE
BENBE) DREEBGRTE(RE) RADZ
IERITIR HHFMBIFIT + H20135 Z LB
FEES) -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
(Amendment) Rules 2014 with reference to the HKMA return of non-
bank Mainland exposures, which includes the Mainland exposures
extended by DSB and its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

No restatement for 2013 comparative figures is made as the analysis
of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-
bank counterparties under the prevailing Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
which includes the Mainland exposures extended by DSB and its
overseas subsidiaries.

EEEE EEEE
RAWERE  RIMIERE
On-balance  Off-balance N ]
sheet sheet Total
2014 F 2014 exposure exposure exposures
1. RREUT - RREFFEER 1. Central government, central government-
HELEBA AfaE owned entities and their subsidiaries and
NGIICRE= NI joint ventures (“JV”s) 8,356,840 57,758 8,414,598
2. BT M B AR 2. Local governments, local government-
Hets R HL T B A B A owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 2,686,695 50,814 2,737,509
=N
3. EFEHREAM2BERSAE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
R B A S A EL AR B other entities incorporated in Mainland
HiIBARINAEE AR China and their subsidiaries and JVs 8,665,363 1,791,678 10,457,041
4. REELRE-—TBZH 2 4, Other entities of central government not
RO E o R reported in item 1 above 123,365 - 123,365
5. REELMETHBIZRH 2 5. Other entities of local governments not
T EATE E (s reported in item 2 above = = =
6. BEEEFREAMIANZEE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
SRAEAR B A DA SN A B China or entities incorporated outside
i - oy ROERR Mainland China where the credits are
Fh B A £ granted for use in Mainland China 7,457,039 222,237 7,679,276
7. Bt R 5T - HAEERK 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
BIEE R B AREIEIRTTSR considered to be non-bank Mainland
KR China exposures = = =
27,289,302 2,122,487 29,411,789
ARENIRIT RE AR TH B Total assets of DSB and its Mainland subsidiary
NElZ MG EER 2 EEAT  bank after provision 172,905,559
EEABRARNGEG On-balance sheet exposures as percentage
BESANL of total assets 15.78%
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266

4., EFERRBF @) 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(Z) BB RBEIRITEETFWEREE @) (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures (Continued)
TE RIS
EEGER BEAEX RELER
EIEREE SNEVERER Individually
On-balance  Off-balance RN assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
20134 2013 exposure exposure exposures allowances
B RBEE Mainland entities 15,977,192 2,878,378 18,855,570 114,235
HARB AR B RBEA - Companies and individuals
i K% B B R AR B K B {5 outside Mainland where the
credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 8,432,247 249,666 8,681,913 79,011
HEtRSEFMERBIERE A Other counterparties the
MIERITEE P RR exposures to whom are
considered to be non-bank
Mainland exposures 239,374 - 239,374 -
24,648,813 3,128,044 27,776,857 193,246

Fa

P2 RBERREPERERLEMHELPREZE

o

RIRITEEER DA | 2014FF0

Note:

balances of claims on the customers.

The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and other
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4., EFERRBF @)
(R RES I MZEFERBERAHNE

=h
TA

BEFEFRZRESTIRECEERRERR L
RHUFHREMDE - —RME - BEFNER
TR B R 5 8 F ARz @ R - e i e
% o

TRATFPEREHE - ERREFFPER - AH
BEPEREERNREAF AREERZRE D
i

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that
of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment
allowances by geographical area.

1B B3R & 18 B 374 e

BEFEX RE%ERE RE%ER

EFEHMEE  Individualy BEEFEX  Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto advancesto advances to impairment impairment

2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 customers customers customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 83,856,418 217,196 251,710 123,521 144,074
Fr China 8,278,746 110,874 44,674 81,114 98,321
JRFY Macau 11,435,277 20,153 25,442 13,045 44,671
Hith Others 1,659,605 64 64 64 4,003
105,230,046 348,287 321,890 217,744 291,069

{E IR (E ERIFHE A RS

BEPER AR RIELER

EFEFHEE  Individualy BEIZEFEZ  Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 customers customers customers allowances allowances
i Hong Kong 77,492,360 212,953 180,209 120,956 100,032
F B China 8,890,132 140,535 83,166 111,850 50,788
A Macau 10,187,485 27,369 34,013 11,431 44,572
Hith Others 1,407,543 83 83 57 2,340
97,977,520 380,940 297,471 244,294 197,732
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4. EFERREBER @R 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(T) EERERFAEESERARREN (d) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed
B2 by percentage covered by collateral
2014 2013

TEAR S

EHEE RENESE AR REMNADL

Contract % covered Contract % covered

amount by collateral amount by collateral

WS EREEMMEERRBEZ Financial guarantees and

ABE other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,487,700 171 2,795,495 40.3
B EREMEERRZ Loan commitments and
HHE other credit related

commitments 69,193,856 9.5 67,734,378 7.6

70,681,556 9.6 70,529,873 8.8
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. & - mENEBERRBRZERER 5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

BIERBIER 2 EAREREE AT -

() FERBZERER

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2014 2013

F RIS R bR R Sovereign exposures 1,916 3,680
N R e Public Sector Entity exposures 22,981 29,342
SRITR PR A& Bank exposures 1,032,642 772,721
B A R bR AR Securities firm exposures 1,702 3,745
5 B R B Corporate exposures 4,655,599 4,362,830
HEIEH Cash items 26,673 29,117
BT TR RIE Regulatory retail exposures 866,133 839,902
FEZIBER Residential mortgage loans 1,055,622 976,928
F At AR 280 HA | P A 42 Other exposures which are

not past due exposures 1,420,181 1,195,176
160 HA R b Past due exposures 16,432 14,385
BHA R B IE Securitization exposures 9,818 4,247
AEAGBRARRAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 9,109,699 8,232,073
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 24,988 47,509
B ZE/ 2 S ATEE Transactions-related contingencies 15,036 16,294
8 5 E < S ATEE Trade-related contingencies 6,446 8,045
RATER Forward forward deposits placed - 199
H e Other commitments 91,546 125,918
EERAEL Exchange rate contracts 132,641 93,662
FEEEL Interest rate contracts 12,496 16,799
EEEEH Equity contracts 1,437 625
ERMBERE Credit valuation adjustment 56,451 62,687
AEABRINARAE 2 ERNERERE Total capital charge for off-balance

sheet exposures 341,041 371,738
BEER 2 ERE KB Total capital charge for credit risk 9,450,740 8,603,811
I H B AREE B Fs & AE 2 R hnE This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
HEERAB% MEE - WHAKE BER[EEE derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the

]

institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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(ABEET TTALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5, EE -TENEBEERBZENRER 5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
(&) OPERATIONAL RISKS (continued)
(i) WMERBRZEARER (i) Market risk capital charge
ANEE B A EES E A E MR o The Group uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market
risk.
2014 2013
B g BXER  ERINESE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
FRE R AGE Interest rate exposures
(€253 (including options) 1,129,588 90,367 1,511,850 120,948
JINGE o B i 1 Foreign exchange exposures
(BREESRHE) (including gold and options) 1,342,400 107,392 1,289,213 103,137
2,471,988 197,759 2,801,063 224,085
BB N 2 5E B R P p 2 ER 1T AT IR 1T (PR The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
B) BRI ZITEALEEE - derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.
(i) BERBZEARER (iiiy Operational risk capital charge
AEBEFHAENEEAEETHRERR - The Group uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating

operational risk.

2014 2013

BRIERR 2 EARERK Capital charge for operational risk 550,893 466,074
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6. EREE

AEERRSRRRE M P Z BB
ENERRABERUERE -

REERRIRERERR TSRAR  FEE
% RBETRR - RERER - BERER MR
MR - FERBRZELTZRENARBEZEE
e HherEmnEilTeas - #mmEEe
BNV EBMEREBRTG DO EEE -

ANEBD TS RRITRNE B R o thEREALE
BMEEABRAZEBERSREERBERINCE
BEXHREFZHRERRM -

) 2 e g i R 1) 2 ) 1S 6 28 B i 5| B R L 0 B
BOR S B e LR o

RBEERBRIEAREREENTETAER
BROBATRAMENEEREINI Mz
BERITNREE -

1B IERIR VENHIZF - BIREGZ TRER
RSN FHTME L EEREEERZA
B -

BEREREFANAEEZBHEED - 2ERE
FEBEBRRAMAIGEERZBEASERER - ELA
HRETwEeRBE AL EPELERN
BEEZL  HISEFPERKTISHEAXREHE
BRAZFAIBDHA -

REMERBRIZIERRES ZRIBIDRE - TR
XZMBRE - BT ERE AR R H5E
R REBEE M A S RBY I R MG NE
AR AREABEZEZEERR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on-and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.
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(CAEREFThz5I7R)

6. EREE@m
B pmz R ERFMNAT o

(F) SEERREERE

EZeUMAEINAREER EEEBNEE -
BARERZESIE  EFENEEEE

o HUEEBHRENMBEAEREER SR
HeEmEEmEREEREMER

s UBNIMBITENEARER  BEBLE
MITHZES] - BREEEEZZESHBRIE
EEmA (LHERR) - 2ERFTNBERE
BIEHMEE Rk

s EHHLYRE  RENFREMONEZIM
BHERR ©

HWTZEeEAREENAREZESREEESR
REEMEERBANSNEZEETEEER
BRIZH) T RAREL R

WA

(2) BB

AEERNBY AR A BERTEEBEBHOBRE
FIEMER - SERRBERITEBRRER R
AERZBEERESSERSERRLKR - fIES
BERMERNTEENERRE  REREEM
REIMEBNBREF - TMOE BB EHAE
o SERERIFEMMNEEMEASENEE
RBRBER - BEEHmS - QFETE A8 =
EERMSASEELEEEMAMRARNITET
EMEE - RAEEEMARBER - SEEAR
MEEERBLERMENES - FHEHARE
[EBRAAEBE R R RIR ©
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

o the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

° the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

o the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

The EC and the RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee
and guide the management of different risks which are more
particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk Division and
different functional committees.

(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole.
Group Risk Division monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions
to the Board via the RMCC, sets standards for the management of
financial risks and data integrity and ensures that the financial risks
are fully considered in the product planning and pricing process.
Group Risk Division reviews and manages all credit and risk exposure
policies for the Group including the approval of exposures to new
markets, economic sectors, organisations, credit products and
financial instruments which expose the Group to different types of
risks. In determining risk policies, Group Risk Division takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.
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6. EREE@m
(Z) EER I @

AEEEREENEXMBFERTEEELS
ERER YREASBEEENREPNEE
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REAROHHZE - AEBAE@YH A EEHERE
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ETEAENEBTENEERIBREL -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function (Continued)

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division, with increasing
focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital.
The Group uses a range of risk measurement and analytical tools
in its management of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day
businesses and these are continually being enhanced and upgraded
to reflect the ever-changing business needs and the requirements of
the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major
credit limits. The Credit Management Committee and the Treasury &
Investment Risk Committee are the functional committees responsible
for approving and recommending policies, limits and mandates for
risk control in loans and treasury business respectively. The credit risk
function, while set up to support the business areas, reports solely to
the Group Risk Division.

(d) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

The Group uses external credit ratings from the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) such as Standard & Poor’s
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures
to rated corporates. The Group also has an internal grading
methodology for assessing credit exposures to unrated

corporates.

The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

()  1GEERAEE) () Credit risk exposures (Continued)
SATER
A
-Gt
ahREZ
ERARLE
Total
EIRERRRRE expostre
LERAR RATEAR covered by
Exposures after BRIESE REZER recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted REAT guarantees
risk mitigation amounts BRMES Total or
BRAE B AEHR B AR ] exposure recognised
] (32) (33) (32) (33) Total risk- covered by credit
0145 2014 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BRER Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
A5H The Group
B BEBERM A On-balance shest
1. THEfE 1. Sovereign 6,715,284 6,715,286 1,400,757 23,956 - 23,956 - -
2. NEEN 2. Public Sector Entity 458,877 1,421,834 14,451 284,367 2,890 287,257 - 118,333
3 LEEREG 3 Multlateral
Development Bank 269,888 269,888 - - - - - -
4 #f 4. Bank 33,048,302 32,380,389 2,066,273 12,494,764 413,255 12,908,019 - -
5 B5E 5. Securiies firm 42,545 2,361 40,184 1,180 20,093 21,213 - -
6. 58 6. Corporate 71,086,039 19,141,165 45,907,049 12,645,937 45,549,046 58,194,983 4,133,933 1,102,510
1. B4%E 7. Cashitems 844,505 - 4,612,236 - 333,409 333,409 - -
8 EEZE 8. Regulatory retail 14,901,604 - 14,435,546 - 10,826,660 10,826,660 217,150 179,903
9. (FERE 9. Residential
mortgage loans 31,721,758 - 30,642,182 - 13,195,280 13,195,280 - 1,079,340
10, 2@ 10. Other exposures
Bl which are not past
due exposures 16,096,555 2,145,650 13,990,106 1,385,009 16,367,255 17,752,264 390,682 -
11, BEERAE 11, Past due exposures 168,482 - 168,462 - 205,402 205,402 43,090 17,184
L. BEEER) B Off-balance sheet
1. BaiE 1. Off-balance sheet
TARA exposures other than
50k OTC derivative
TAAH transactions or
EEBER credit derivative
e contracts 1,983,233 - 1,983,233 - 1,725,203 1,725,203 76,127 -
2. BIMIETE 2. OTC derivative
5 transactions 2,856,896 1,548,757 1,308,139 602,412 1,229,760 1,832,172 94,290 243
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6. [ B B B () 6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) FERE @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEERAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
RATER
HiT
[EEfTETR
BHREZ
Total
BRAERRRRE exposure
LRRAE XRAERR covered by
Exposures after BRMESE [REZRE recognised
recognised credit Risk-weighted RELE quarantees
risk mitigation amounts B Total or
el R AEAR R AEAR oz eXposure recognised
gz (342) (343) (32) (53) Totalrisk- covered by credit
0135 2013 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BB Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
A5E The Group
B, BEBERM A On-balance shest
1. TiEdE 1. Sovereign 6,406,987 6,406,987 1,491,439 45995 - 45995 - -
2 RNEEN 2. Public Sector Entity 710,688 1,789,779 44119 357,956 8,824 366,780 - 118,333
3 ZEEEEN 3 Mutatera
Development Bank 343,425 343,425 - - - - - -
4, #f 4. Bank 24,748,866 23,935,678 1,622,170 9,334,578 324,434 9,669,012 - -
5. &78 5. Securis fim 98,630 1,345 92,285 672 46,143 46,815 - -
6. £ 6. Corporate 66,504,502 18,443,880 42,654,896 12,221,133 42,308,241 54,535,374 4,299,867 1,185,333
1. Be%EE 7. Cashitems 876,108 - 4,383,771 - 363,965 363,965 - -
8 EEZE 8. Regulatory retail 14,351,120 - 13,998,373 - 10,498,780 10,498,780 157,312 187,173
9. (FERE 9. Residential
mortgage loans 29,455,131 - 28,240,929 - 12,211,600 12,211,600 - 1,213,807
10. Ettka s 10. Other exposures
Rl which are not
past due exposures 13,504,800 2,112,382 11,434,405 1,694,195 13,245,502 14,939,697 77,960 -
1. BHBERAZ 1. Pastdueexposures 147,811 - 147,811 - 179,815 179,815 28,567 17,589
L. BEEER) B Off-balance sheet
1. BaMiE 1. Off-balance sheet
TARA exposures other
E&fTE than OTC derivative
TARHH transactions or
LHERRR credit derivative
NERAE contracts 3,735,920 8,529 3,727,391 1,706 2,412,810 2,474,576 193,743 -
2. BMIEIE 2 OTC derivative
25 transactions 2,301,192 1,431,638 869,554 534,990 853,584 1,388,574 3,601 38,764
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(d)

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
() Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAl issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from
over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions, repo-
style transactions and credit derivative contracts booked in
its banking book or trading book. The credit risk exposures
associated with these contracts are predominantly their fair
values (i.e. the positive marked-to-market values favourable to
the Group). These credit risk exposures together with potential
exposures from market movements are managed as part of
the overall lending limits allowed to counterparties. Collateral
or other security is generally not obtained for such credit risk
exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
6. [ B B B () 6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) XKBHFEEEfRANE &) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TERBAAEBRESIMTERGZEE The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
EE R BRI o exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.
2014 & 20134
12H31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2014 2013
55 Group
NEEESERRE Gross total positive fair value 829,590 760,123
EESEHE Credit equivalent amount 2,856,896 2,301,193
RAEIRREE - RER Value of recognised collateral by type
—TFR - Deposits 2,998 52,737
[R\Be2 hntE £k KA Risk weighted amounts 1,832,172 1,388,573
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6. [ B B B () 6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(T) FERE @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) XKBHFEEEfRANE &) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TERBUEESESBENEERRFENL An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
[B\ R ANFESRRE 2 AT o exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.
2014 F 20134
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2014 2013
£ Group
B Notional amounts:
—R1T - Banks 89,489,496 76,279,835
—=E — Corporates 35,478,655 33,038,898
—HAth — Others 874,642 1,013,013

125,842,793 110,331,746

EESEHE Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERBFE credit exposures:
—8R1T — Banks 1,534,486 1,416,017
— =B — Corporates 1,203,595 762,823
—HAth — Others 118,815 122,353
2,856,896 2,301,193
[\ Bex e B Risk-weighted amounts:
—IR1T — Banks 595,275 527,179
— =B — Corporates 1,196,120 751,285
—HAth — Others 40,777 110,109
1,832,172 1,388,573
R2014F12 A31 HX2013F 12 A31 B » i There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style transactions
RERBEARS MEETERSGAHZIEER and credit derivative contracts at 31 December 2014 and 31
fg o December 2013.
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6. EREE@m
(T) EERK @
(i) RIS EE R

AEERAZREEERRIA -RA
CERTTEE (B A) SR AR LR & 7 g
BZAR - WBZERRERNEERRS
TR THENERHTAIHL)PELE
e RLER 2 BEPER - AEEITME
BRI REBURREIEREEFNR
EEFBE R -

REER R 2 TBEMEER B E R
Reth - AR ZEMEYME - ARTS
EBEHRIB6EAMKE—R - FER@Z
MEERR  AEEZERRA/RATER
THEREE -

() miEmkE

AEBEEETRER TS RR - FIERA AR
EIE BRI AL B TS 3R R M RE 3.3 R AL

(C) BEEHL

REBRBRE(BHL) FEXREZBBE I
EMFAEIHCEECERR - RELANREA
BERAEESERN R 2R 2 EF AR
AT A 2 E AR -

AEBZFAHERBKOABRSEERIREET
HE=HRELBEANMEEZ EBHITRETH -
ZRENEAREBETERERETUATFENE
BHZEH T ABEMNSRMEE - WE 2007 F i
FEADRE - R2014F12 A31 8 - BRHRIRE
KIRANBERZRE  ZIREUNEEEZ 12.66%
(20134 : 5.50% ) FIFIEREESIER ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every six months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel Ill basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures
below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
12.66% (2013: 5.50%) of the par value as at 31 December 2014 based
on price quote obtained from the investment manager.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Asset securitisation (Continued)

£E Group
B hniE
L
Bl 1250%
BREE BREETHE
AME  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from
7 amount - BEARE LRRE-RER “HER
E51 Securitisation Outstanding at 1250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
EBAE exposures amounts risk weight  requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
2014 % 2014
FEHLAEK Synthetic securitisations
—FEMRATA - Structured investment
vehicles 9,818 122,725 9,818 - -
2013 F 2013
FEHLAEK Synthetic securitisations
—HREERETR - Structured investment
vehicles 4,247 53,088 4,247 - -

(BR) BATHRZ R

REBENEBVIRE R BRI E BRHER B
MEFHEERZRERN - RASFIEENIEER
M2 SR EBREEZRENN RARERE
PR - mISRAK - HE - FRREMNEEET
BB E 2 NEPES - REM T RSEESIME
Al - IR IR BRI REREEME
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(g) Equity exposures in banking book

The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued
on the basis of market bid prices.
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6. [ B B B () 6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(BR) $BATERZ MR AEm B () (99 Equity exposures in banking book (Continued)
£ Group 2014 2013
HE ERMER 2 W Realised gains from sales/liquidations = 64,497
RER Bl Unrealised revaluation gains
—BEeEEREEEERNKGRR 2 - Amount included in reserves
but not through income statement 106,230 79,128
(3£) SR1TERZFI =R & B (h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book
=3
Currency
BT En ARM Hith =1
2014 F 2014 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
FlxE R EHE Interest rate risk
EF200%F shock +200 basis points
—&FIENCRD) - Increase/(Decline)
in earnings 2,000 (203,000) (12,000) (133,000) (346,000)
=
Currency
PSIL X BT Hith &%
20134 2013 HK$ USs$ EUR Others Total
R b 2 Interest rate risk
FF200%F shock +200 basis points
—BFICED),/Em - (Decline)/Increase
in earnings (12,000) (182,000) 1,000 (120,000) (313,000)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational
risk management and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is
chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and
senior management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately identified,
assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s Risk Management and Compliance Committee have an
overall oversight of the performance and effectiveness of operational
risk management.

() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established by the
Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to reputation
risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, review business performance, deploy proper resources to
achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take
appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital and Liquidity
Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, DSB has adopted the
standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Group has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet
the standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2014, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in the 4th
quarter of 2012. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorized institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
DSB has enhanced its capital management and reporting framework

as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
under the Basel Il framework in Hong Kong from 1 January 2015,
two new capital buffers, namely the Capital Conservation Buffer and
Countercyclical Capital Buffer, designed to ensure that banks build up
sufficient capital to withstand periods of stress and system-wide risk
associated with periods of excessive aggregate credit growth, would
commence to phase in starting from 1 January 2016. In this regard,
the Group has been keeping track closely with the development in
the regulatory framework to ensure readiness to comply with the new
requirements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the
New Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk
Policy which requires the relevant business and supporting units,
including Group Risk Division, to review the critical requirements,
risk assessment and resources plan before the launch. New products
or services which could have a significant impact on the Group’s
risk profile should be brought to the attention of the Board or its
designated committee(s) before the launch. The Group’s Internal
Audit function performs regular independent review and testing to
ensure compliance by the relevant units in the new product approval
process.

(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 258, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch ik Address E5F Tel BE Fax

RERITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

BEBEDTT

Hong Kong Island Branches

ERFDT BRI E 20 5%

Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843

SEBEFROLDIT EREA8IEE T LS —1E 10954

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 3110 1886 3110 2818
No. 18 Harcourt Road

thRE 1T S S S BT B 5518 482 5%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

FEDIT EEBET19RIRRAE

Central Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BELDIT 3238 293-299 SR E = AEH T 15-22 5% & K i

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

ETITEDT HTITE 108 AFT 2R O T

Gloucester Road G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

8 5 i 2 17 S HERFE 13 R B GHAEM T AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

HREBDIT L5 B AT 100 SEASIE WA IEFT I T G59 57

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HEBEAT BT BB 164 5%

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

B i 51T TEFER A2 OB T AR 1 IBAE

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 3101 3883 2960 0790

BT 218 433-437 SRR N E

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BEEHIT LB 57-87 SRARIEM T GB LA

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

BEEEDIT 2R ARET443-453 571 T 15-16 5747

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERA4T FIREEET 288 5 HBEFE AEM T B2 RAE—EB=E

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

REH DT RE A 1 SR B A 501 5k 4

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151

Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

417 Branch ik Address £ Tel BE Fax

RERITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEESDIT

Kowloon Branches

REHDT ByERCEET 105 T A

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 2191 8103 2191 8723

AWDT AIMERE 28 EERM T 3 R 4R — 2R R 1235

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop 23658110 2363 5917

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EBR1T R RHUE 335 5%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993

BES1T BUERZEASFELTR O T 7-9 558

Kwun Tong Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, 2389 3911 2389 8239

Kwun Tong

BEHT ML EES —1E 1101 2110255

Lok Fu Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom 2337 6300 2337 6922

EFHWPBDIT FEF AR FE 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V 2370 2660 2370 2006
Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HADT FE A 8 0B 697 5%

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104

AR 21T KT RERE 124 55T

Shamshuipo G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo 2361 0951 2958 0985

EREEED T FREEBE S — A "2 F5A-F6A TR

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

T &R 1T + & 237A s 2K E

Tokwawan |I-Feng Mansion, 237A Tokwawan Road 2365 9035 2363 5696

BERAT 15 528 B £ 17 9 3% PopCorn i35 1 T /8 G58 SR p5 4

Tseung Kwan O Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O 2752 1223 2752 1098

R 5 R AP R0 58 = HA— 12 127 SR 4
HFEBE PO DT

Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O 2927 2101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza

RDEHAT K IERZE 66-70 55 & EAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch ik Address E5 Tel {HE Fax

RHFBITHRDA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
hEEDTT

Kowloon Branches

BT
Wong Tai Sin

JH i 3t 2 4T
Yaumatei

FAMIEEE 103 5 F A O T G3C R4
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin

B b S EE 561 5%
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2326 5165

2782 1339

2350 0894

2385 9285

MREDT

New Territories Branches

REBD1T
Cheung Fat

BEDIT

Kwai Fong

BRILBES DT
Ma On Shan Plaza

BRHEDIT

Maritime Square

BB 1T
Ocean Walk
PDHD1T
Shatin

WIBE S 1T
Sha Tsui Road

EXkaT
Sheung Shui

REDT
Tai Po

RE ST
Tai Wai

FRIEATILFE 6 5% R 3 5 =12 302A [ 302B 574
Shop Nos. 302A-302B, Level 3, Cheung Fat Plaza, 6 Tam Kon
Shan Road, Tsing Yi

ZORBLS IRATT SRR W ES 1165k
Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate,
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

5821175 25 608 5% 5 82| LI B 15 = 12 335 51 4
Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

K E AR 33 57 75 7K 108 D-E 54
Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
P9 22 75 168-236 57 37 93-95 5 4
Shop 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
B LFE AR TS 9 54
Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

S0 IH 8 288 i T
G/F, No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
_OKET &K 55-59 SR IKRNIEM T B SR
Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
RIBL TR A SR E S T 53 5% & 54 57
Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po
YWHKE & 55-56 S iEEH 14-18 S & 2B N 1 K& 25748
Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin

2436 1866

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

2606 3533

2615 1510

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2436 1505

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2601 2413

2615 1099

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch 3k Address B Tel {EH Fax

RHFBTERAF

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

MREDT

New Territories Branches

KKEEEDIT RKEEE 5 =B 132 5% 5

Tin Shui Wai Shop No. 132, Chung Fu Shopping Centre Stage 2, Tin Shui Wai 2448 9008 2448 9112
Chung Fu

EEHT HERME14-16 B HENE

Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984

EMS1T TP = i 52-62 SR S EH T 458 R 5574

Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 2441 6218 2441 6613

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
REDAT NI L) BROR B SR A7 1 SR SRR VBB b T~ 23 SR 4
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

ZEHWPHT ) S 2E R PR ZE AR 35 201 SR 4

Wah Ming Estate Shop 201, Wah Ming Shopping Centre, Wah Ming Estate, Fanling 2677 8830 2669 9950

B ILERTT TCRAS LI AR TTRAER 162-168 5B A4 T~ C 5t &

Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

H#b ik Address

E5F Tel

BRAEXRTROBRAA

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

BN DT

Macau Branches

FBAT FEE RS 572 5%

Main Branch Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572 (853) 8791 0000
REDT R LE TR £ B X S BR 43 5% B

Almirante Lacerda

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B

(853) 2831 6191

EDBAIT BAIRE %5818 K5 ¥ 30-30E 5%
Areia Preta Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262
BTEST SRPI = LK BB 53-59 5k T ir )+ 528 A,B,D £

Horta e Costa

Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos. 53-59, R/C,
Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D.

(853) 2821 6523

BERT BAIRGE G EEN P 13 Bt T~ A

Kin Wa Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N, (853) 2845 0759
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

B E 21T R 40-42 57 AT

Mercadores Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

2SI REHEES315-363 FELFIR O T OM

Nape Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpgéo, Nos. 315-363, (853) 2872 2515
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

BEEM ST BEE AT 4-6 57

Palha Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

AT ASTT AFTE 2957

Ponte e Horta Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29 (853) 2837 8704

DHEST ERITH L4025

Ribeira do Patane

BATT
Toi San

Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C

BILERAHE +—EFm/EEE 18 &£ “CC” 4
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

&KFB1T

Taipa Branches

RFEHBDIT BREEAFIEN — BRI T 4

Prince Flower City Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C | (853) 2884 2788

BEST BRAG K EESSIEE F i

Tak Fok Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden, (853) 2882 1308
R/C, Loja F

BERDT

Coloane Branch

BRDIT B35 A1 9 5% D

Coloane Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D (853) 2888 2374
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MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

292

%17 Branch 3t Address B Tel
RERIT (FE) BRAF

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

w7 R T 78 4 1R R P SRS 5047 SR R IRITRE 1618

Head Office 16/F, Ping An Bank Building, 5047 Shennan Dong Road, (86-755) 2519 9033

FYAE AT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch

BEMND1T

Guangzhou

EBH1T

Shanghai

=Pk

Nanchang

EID1T

Zhenjiang

HiL %47

Foshan Sub-Branch

Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

RIYIT R LR AR O EORYINEER 2136 5% 2 B4 & 2 26 L [ b i

2136 Zhong Xing Road (Shenzhen Bay Part), Nan Shan District, (86-755) 2238 5500

Shenzhen
EREEMNTEFEARILE 604-2 58 RFTIRITAE—[EH
“EOo1¥ET

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building,
604-2, North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

(86-20) 8116 0888

EETHREREZIK8651EBE

Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai (86-21) 2411 3388

IFAEaEmRARELEK 1365 1-2/E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi  (86-791) 8688 7333

T ER B BT T A O & AR RS 59 5%

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu
& FR A B 1L T 0 [ Ak B (B BX 8 R R B B SR SR B R
111145 ~ 1204

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

RIRITEEER DA | 2014FF0
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Dah Sing Banking Group Limited X#B{THREBRAT
36/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
BERETIHEBE T/ URAFEEF L =171

Telephone &% : (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile {EE : (852) 2598 5052

Website — #84F : www.dahsing.com
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